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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MEBERERBREBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BEEE
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Bz HE
—E—+tf —TE—RE
=A=+—H —HA=+—H
IEFEE I+ HEA
RMB million RMB million
ARBBET AREBHETT
Gross revenue (V) 3,194.7 4,483.3
w5
Revenue 1,144.8 1,603.7
&=
EBITDA (49.9) 405.1
HEIE RE A FE
EBIT ((Loss)/profit from operations) (191.0) 2431
RERFE (&E (BE),EH)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders (352.3) 22.2

ARRBEREMN (BB, a A

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

FREAX (EE) &7

(15.2) cents &

1.0 cents &

FCEAREEFE?

At At

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

S i

—E—+tF —E—RF

=BA=+—H =—A=+—H

RMB million RMB million

AREBEER AREBETT

Net assets of the Group 4,317.3 4,628.4
RNEEEEFE

NAV per ordinary share @ 3.66 yuan T 3.94 yuan JT

Note:

izt -

(1) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
rental income from operating leases and management and
administrative service fee income charged to tenants.

(2) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company per
ordinary share.
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBRRERBAEXREER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX RAREEKRIEE
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
8=z HZE
—E—+f —TE—RE
=HA=+-—8 —A=+—H
IEFEE IE+HEA
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Sales per ticket 1,185 1,087
RHEE O
Annualized area efficiency (per m?)? 32,600 29,500
FEATFR(FFEFK)@
Notes: B aF

(1) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of
transactions of department stores.

(2) Annualized area efficiency represents annualized gross
revenue per department store average operating area.

(1) RZEEEDERSRANEBRIAERS

B

2) FEFBEFRECERRBAEER

B ML EE -

HESEHEERER AR

A
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IENBKERRBE
For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —F—+F=HA=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))  (UAEE ([AR%E])Z5)

RESULTS
g
Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=1+-HLEE
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2014 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
S Hz
-t —ZT—RE
=ZR=+-H =ZA=1+—H
ILEE T AEAA  —T-mF  —T-=f _—T-—F
ARETRE ARETT AREFT ARETRT ARETR
Revenue Y &
- Continuing operations —RELEEB 1,144,753 1,603,739 1,364,421 1,493,498 1,414,215
- Discontinued operations —RIEREER - - - - -
1,144,753 1,603,739 1,364,421 1,493,498 1,414,215
(Loss)/profit attributable R e
to equity shareholders (&#8) /&
- Continuing operations ~RHELEER (352,337) 22,181 95,178 354,021 343,544
- Discontinued operations —RIEREX% - - - - -
(352,337) 22,181 95,178 354,021 343,544
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAM
As at 31 March As at 31 December
R=FE=+-8 R+=A=+-H
2017 2016 2014 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-tE _T-NF _S-ME _T-SE _F-&
ARETRE ARETT AREFRT ARETT ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 7,104,859 7,238,892 6,716,628 5,606,846 5,241,408
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE 1,245,330 1,587,518 1,480,097 1,583,542 1,722,636
DEDUCT: i
CURRENT LIABILITIES nHEE 1,769,159 2,634,471 2,437,698 1,595,737 1,954,735
NET CURRENT RBAEFE
LIABILITIES (523,829)  (1,046,953) (957,601) (12,195) (232,099)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERLDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,581,030 6,191,939 5,759,027 5,594,651 5,009,309
DEDUCT: i
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE 2,263,725 1,563,530 1,288,935 1,467,317 1,310,226
NET ASSETS BEFR 4,317,305 4,628,409 4,470,092 4,127,334 3,699,083
L ] [ ] [ ]
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017
("the year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading operator of middle to high end
shopping malls, department stores and supermarkets in
northwest China. After the Xinjiang Youhao Store has been
closed in August 2016, as at 31 March 2017, the Group owns
and operates seven department stores and seven supermarkets
in Shaanxi province. It also owns several prime commercial
properties strategically located within premium central
business districts. The Group’s store GFA covers approximately
270,000 square meters (approximately 2,900,000 square feet),
of which approximately 160,000 square meters (approximately
1,700,000 square feet) are self-owned properties.

In accordance with the data announced by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, China’s gross domestic product (GDP)
in 2016 grew by 6.7%, and the growth rate decreased by
0.3% when compared to the preceding year, hitting a 25-
year low. Gross retail sales amount of social consumer goods
grew by 10.4%, and the growth rate decreased by 0.3%
when compared to the preceding year. The downward pressure
on domestic economy still persisted. In the first quarter of
2017, China’s economy achieved a good start, showing much
more positive signs, including strong signs of recovery, with
a GDP growth rate of 6.9%. According to experts, however,
uncertainties still exist and there are still downward pressures
on economy. But the overall steady and positive situations will
persist in the second quarter of 2017.

In the aspect of offline retail industry, in accordance with the
statistics of China National Commercial Information Center,
retail sales of 50 key large-scale retail enterprises grew by
2.0% year-on-year in the first quarter of 2017, 7.2 percentage
points higher than that of corresponding period of last year.
In particular, retail sales of 50 key large-scale retail enterprises
grew by 3.1% year-on-year in March 2017, 5.4 percentage
points higher than that of the same month of last year.
The department store market in Xi'an also showed signs of
recovery. Number of department stores achieving positive
growth in the first quarter of 2017 significantly increased,
while the decrease for those recording decline substantially
narrowed.

Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

FE®HE

AANBRERUELSEIEERAERAA
(IFrAEFg ([E5g]) MAZER
ARAREMBAR ([AEE]BEE-F
—tF=ZA=+t—HUEFE(XFE])z

XK EE
AREBAPEAILL I TSEESE BE
MBATISELEEBE - BAFPER
“E-RNFNAEHE BE=_FT—tF
—A=+—HB AEBERKRAEERFE
ErRAEEENMERBAETS YR A
I HZEEcHEMRSEEEDE:
FE N P35 B SR T A& £9270,000°F 75 2K (49
2,900,000 5 HR ) + A #7160,000F 75
K (#91,700,000F R ) BEEWE -

BEBERGHARAGERBER FR=-F
—ANEFEEANEELBEGDP)IERE 7% &
S EEREFHEIEE D AI2SFH
B H2EERnTERTILERI104% & E
—FEREOIFEE DI BALEERET
TEBRIARARBRK - ZE—+tF—FEHH
KEERTRUMAB E@%%?‘zﬁi%
[B] A% {Z 9% % 3% - GDPI% 3% 56.9% - HH
X BRI THEERZKRAGFE & ;ﬁi‘ﬁ@ﬁ
METTERND BEFAGEBREE=FE
ES A4 -

TERBTEXEFTE BEREPEZEFEE
APOHT T+ F—FTE2HS0R
ERARUTELETERRFRALER
20% RSN EFRBA72EE D E - H
FoZAMEHES0OREFAATELET
EBEALLIER3 1% EBREN EFRIA5.4
TIE DB ML HEMSHEREHTR

—tF—FEHIRIEHERPIEAEE
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

From the second quarter to the fourth quarter of 2016, the
business scale and total profit of the Group still suffered from
year-on-year decline, but the decrease significantly narrowed.
By increasing operation area, fine-tuning property structure,
adding customer channels, introducing innovative marketing
campaigns, enhancing turnover rate and joint rate, adjusting
organizational structure and lowering labour cost, the Group
maintained the leading market position of department stores
in Xi'an and Xianyang.

To cope with the changing trend of consumption and demand,
the Group adjusted and shifted its positioning, product mix
and 132 brand counters of each boutique department store.
These adjustments effectively slowed down the decline
in performance under the adverse circumstances. The
performance of wholesale supermarket business segment
was stable. In addition, the Group consolidated marketing
resources of all of its stores, improved its membership
management system, 020 project planning and measures, so
as to solidify the management base and prepare for long-term
development of the Group. In terms of store management
methods, the Group strived to lower communication cost,
improve efficiency and achieve rapid and timely integration of
resources by adjusting the performance evaluation method,
optimizing workflow and implementing high degree of
autonomy in stores and other measures.

G98 Omni-channel Intelligence Service Platform Project

The development of phase Il of the G98 Omni-channel
Intelligence Service Platform Project was finished in early 2017,
which improved various sales forms of the online shopping
mall to serve online customers and launched many service
functions. High-end members may enjoy exclusive services
including ordering and paying for parking and making airport
VIP room reservations and full-process shopping guide through
APP. Members may view information on and sign in for salon
activities online and purchase gifts with membership points
at the online shopping mall at any time throughout the year.
It deeply explored the focus of customer needs, adopted
various marketing forms including content marketing, theme
marketing and video marketing, a number of new programs
were launched and nearly 1,000 new items were added to the
online shopping mall, which has a total of 470,000 registered
users.
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FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, despite the adverse effects brought by various
domestic and foreign unfavorable economic factors, the
situation may not have significant difference in the short run.
However, regarding the acceleration of the pace of reform and
further adjustment of economic structure, China’s economy
is in progress while maintaining stability. The “To increase
guarantees and to expand domestic demand” policy was
announced on the Third Plenary Session of the 18th Central
Committee, pursuant to which, the industries serving in
consumption and livelihood sectors will obtain government
support, it will be beneficial to retail industry in the long run. It
is foreseen that the rapid urbanization will lead to the gradual
change of consumption ratios and structure, which further
stimulates the potential demand under consumption upgrade.
Subsequent to the vertical deepening of the national system
transformation and reform, the national policies will create a
macro-environment conducive to enterprise development. The
Group will also timely adjust its strategies and develop future-
proof policies for the updated situation.

As for the G98 project, various functions will continue to be
developed in order to serve offline entities while completing
online business development, to drive sales conversion with
membership marketing and to launch multi-channel marketing
activity management; to realize the seamless connection
between various online and offline links from view, payment
to order delivery, efficient delivery for orders from all channels,
and flexible handling of product returns from all channels;
to provide more payment options and enhanced experience;
and to create the basis for more extensive interaction with
consumers by enhancing scenarios between product and
people, between people and people and between people and
technology.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

Taking into account the in-depth analysis of the current
situation and the objective assessment of the future trends,
the Group will seize the key factors affecting retail industry
and accelerate the formation of the customer-oriented
business model and capability, with the core retail philosophy
of “goods + services” in mind. It will cater to the needs of
high- and medium-end urban consumers which seek “fashion,
quality, health and happiness” in the life and provide them
with high-quality services in a spirit of artisan. It will conduct
marketing activities with guide of information analysis in
order to improve the efficiency. The Group will also strive to
strengthen its product operation management capabilities
and marketing capabilities, and enhance consumption guide
in order to stimulate consumption and output. Equipped with
the SAP-based enterprise resource planning system and unified
management platform, the Group gradually established its
online/offline integrated capabilities via the implementation
of strategic 020 project in order to solve the problems in
respect of shopping convenience of the customers. The Group
will continuously provide our customers with great shopping
experiences by understanding and determining the customers’
real needs. Meanwhile, sales area, customer base and
commodity resource coverage have been gradually increased in
order to optimize business structure of the Group and become
the source of future growth for continued expansion.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, the existing
business will be integrated and optimized, while considering
the coverage of second-tier cities in Shaanxi to achieve healthy
growth of scale.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, the Company will further develop brand agency
business and introduce well-known domestic and foreign
brands to enter the northwest market, so as to provide
consumers with more quality choices and provide operational
management services to the franchise stores. By reducing
channels to directly provide goods to consumers, the pattern
of profit distribution will be changed.
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Besides, the Company will adhere to its principle of prudent
financial management and strive to control costs. It will strive
to increase the relevance and effectiveness of incentives by
optimizing and adjusting performance appraisal models and
designing various assessment and incentive programs for
different management models and positions in view of its
operational needs.

With our strong brand strength, outstanding operating
efficiency, good financial performance and loyal customer
base, we believe the Company will maintain its leading
position in the marketplace among the industry and generate
better returns for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Wu Yijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Global economy was full of uncertainties, while the economic
environment in China remained complicated. Although the
“stabilising growth” stimulus policies by PRC government
have gradually improved the retail industry, the retail industry
was still under severe hardship due to the short-term sluggish
economic growth and various macroeconomic factors, such
as weak consumer confidence. During the year under review,
the performance of the Group was inevitably affected by the
aforesaid negative factors.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 decreased to RMB3,194.7 million as
compared to RMB4,483.3 million for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016. The decrease was primarily due
to the absence of three month gross revenue during the
year.

Annualized area efficiency (annualized gross revenue
per department store average operating area) for the
year ended 31 March 2017 was RMB32,600 per square
meter, as compared to RMB29,500 for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 decreased to RMB1,144.8 million as compared
to RMB1,603.7 million for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2016. The decrease was primarily due to the
absence of three month revenue during the year.

The rental income and management and administrative
service fees of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 were RMB148.9 million, as compared to
RMB207.0 million for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016. The decrease was primarily due to the
absence of three month revenue during the year.

The Group's operating loss for the year ended 31
March 2017 was RMB191.0 million as compared to the
operating profit of RMB243.1 million for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016. Regardless of the
impairment losses on goodwill of RMB273.0 million,
the operating profit margin (profit from operation over
gross revenue) decreased from 5% to 3%.
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(vi)

(vii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Net finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2017
were RMB136.9 million (fifteen months ended 31 March
2016: RMB209.5 million). The change in net finance
cost was mainly due to the absence of three month net
finance cost during the year.

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
loss attributable to shareholders of the Company were
RMB349.9 million (profit for fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: RMB29.8 million) and RMB352.3 million
(profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016: RMB22.2 million)
respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s consolidated net asset
value was RMB4,317.3 million (31 March 2016: RMB4,628.4
million). As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash at bank
and on hand amounting to RMB512.7 million (31 March 2016:
RMB394.7 million). The current ratio of the Group as at 31
March 2017 was 0.70 (31 March 2016: 0.60). The gearing
ratio, being bank loans less cash at bank and on hand and
short-term investments divided by the total equity, as at 31
March 2017, was 0.42 (31 March 2016: 0.29).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the year, the PRC retail industry will continue
to face challenges and be subject to internal and external
factors including macroeconomic fluctuation, government
policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail channels such as
e-commerce and rising costs.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this report, Hony Capital held 28.34% of
the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company’s second largest shareholder.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Launch G98 omni-channel platform to facilitate
information management

As a traditional business form that once was designed to meet
pure shopping needs of consumers, department stores face
challenges brought by goods homogenization, same marketing
model, regular price competition and rising operating cost in
recent years. On the other hand, the rise of Post-80s and 90s
consumers who have grown in the Internet era and whose
consumption habits and behaviours are substantially different
from that of their parents has hit department stores and
shopping malls in the online shopping era. Facing intense
competition, all retail business forms attempt to expand their
presence into the areas of other forms, and omni-channel
competition has become an irreversible trend.

The Group successfully launched and upgraded its dedicated
Online-to-Offline (020) team in order to facilitate the
integration of its online and offline operations, whereby its
online sales will boost its offline sales which will enable the
Group to achieve omni-channel marketing and comprehensive
customer services. In the long term, the Group expects to
analyze its customers’ consumption behaviours through data
mining, in order to promote accurate marketing and guide
consumption.

In addition to placing great efforts in marketing strategy, the
implementation of information management also marks an
important step for the Group to improve its management.
The Group has been running SAP ERP, the world’s leading
enterprise resources and information management system,
since August 2013, with the aim of optimizing management
process, improving operational efficiency, and achieving
synergies across channels and interaction across business
forms. SAP ERP has covered the majority of the Group’s
department stores.

Optimize business structure and expand into second-
and third-tier cities

While making innovations in marketing, the Group also
strengthened its core competitiveness of retail commerce by
providing outstanding shopping experiences and services,
improving tenant mix and gradually expanding the coverage of
its sale region, customer base and brand resources.
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Most of the Group’'s department stores are mixes of
department stores and shopping malls. Saigo Store joined
the department store as an anchor store, providing food and
beverage, recreational and entertainment elements to reinforce
its ability to attract customers and promoting experience-based
consumption to withstand online shopping while meeting
consumers’ purchasing demand.

The Group aims to finish adjusting the positioning and brand
mix of its boutique department stores in the coming year to
reinforce its operational strengths. During the adjustment
period, its results of operation will be negatively affected
to a certain extent. The Group will expand its mid-end
department store and supermarket business at the same time
into second and third-tier cities in northwest China. In respect
of supermarkets, it will give high priority to building its chain
operation and management system, optimizing its supply chain
system this year. It may expand its scale in Xi'an and second-
tier cities in Shaanxi Province in the future. In the future, the
Group will continue to identify potential business opportunities
to achieve benign growth.

Merger & Acquisition

On 4 December 2014, Century Ginwa Company Limited
("Ginwa Bell Tower”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the agreement with Shanghai Huade
Investment Company Limited (“Shanghai Huade”) pursuant to
which Shanghai Huade agreed to procure Xi'an Yigao Property
Development Company Limited (the “Project Company”) to
develop the property as commercial part of project known
as “Xi'an Centre” in Xi‘an Hi-tech Industries Development
Zone of Xi'an, the PRC, comprising the commercial part of
a gross floor area of approximately 69,061 square meters
and 457 car parking spaces (the “Property”) in accordance
with the requirements of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell
Tower agreed that upon the completion of the development
of the Property, it will purchase the Property for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. In this regard, the
Company had obtained the approval from the shareholders at
the special general meeting on 6 February 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Blasting demolition of existing buildings of the project took
place on 15 November 2015. The substantial construction
of the project commenced in October 2016 and is originally
expected to be completed in 2018. The construction of the
Property has been delayed due to bad weather condition, in
particular strong haze environment, encountered around the
area of the Property. Since the project is located in the central
business district of Xi‘an, it allows the Group to establish its
presence in such premium location and enhance the market
share and market influence.

The Group continues to explore merger and acquisition
opportunities and quality commercial properties across
northwest China to further increase its market share.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the reporting year (fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: HK$Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the number of the Group’s staffs was
approximately 8,100 (31 March 2016: 9,700), including
directly employed approximately 2,000 (31 March 2016: 2,300)
full time employees, and the remaining were concession
sales staffs managed on behalf of the suppliers. Most of the
employees are employed in Mainland China. The directly
employed employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary
increments are assessed based on both individuals’ and the
Group’s performance, professional and working experience
and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
Apart from the general remuneration package, the Group also
granted share options and discretionary bonus to the eligible
staffs based on their performance and contribution to the
Group. The Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key
factors to corporate success.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian (“Mr. Wu")

Mr. Wu, aged 56, was appointed as Chairman of the Company
on 7 January 2011 and re-designated to an Executive Director
of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Wu currently holds
the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and
he was the executive director from January 2001 to May
2008, the chairman from May 2003 to May 2008 and the non
executive director of the Company from January 2011 to 18
February 2013 respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with
a Master degree in Economic Management (Political
Economy). He was granted the national titles of “Ten Most
Outstanding Youth of China” in 1996, “Contribution
Award of International Excellent Entrepreneur” in
1997,"Chinese Excellent Youth Entrepreneur” in 2002
and”National Outstanding Builders of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu is chairman of Ginwa
Enterprise (Group) Inc. (@ company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and the chairman of the board and the
president of Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”). He is also the vice-chairman of the China Civil
Chamber of Commerce, chairman of the Chairmen Board of
China Federation of Industrial Economics, vice-president of
the China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises, vice-
president of China International Chamber of Commerce for
the Private Sector, Secretary-general of Augmented Reality
Alliance China, vice-chairman of the China Red Ribbon
Foundation, expert committee member of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president
of Shaanxi Business Promotion Association, vice-president of
Shaanxi General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president
of Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant and
honorable president of Shenzhen M & A Association of Listed
Companies.

Mr. Wu is also the sole director of Maritime Century Limited
("MCL"), the substantial shareholder of the Company. MCL
is wholly and beneficially owned by Ginwa Investments.
Ginwa Investments is held as to 92% beneficially by Mr.
Wu. Therefore, Mr. Wu thru MCL was beneficially interested
in 336,166,156 ordinary shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO").
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Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan")

Mr. Chan, aged 64, was re-designated to an Executive Director
and the Vice-chairman of the Company on 7 August 2015.
Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor degree in Social Science
(Economics) from The University of Western Ontario, Canada,
in 1978. He has over 20 years’ experience in marketing and
business development. He was an executive director of Zhi
Cheng Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) with Stock Code: 8130) from
8 April 2014 to 1 April 2015 and Gold Tat Group International
Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 8266) from 27 March 2003 to 13 October
2014.

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (“Mr. Kam"”)

Mr. Kam, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 2 May 2017.
Mr. Kam holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from The University of Manchester in the United Kingdom. He
is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA") and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Kam is a member of Standing Committee of the 5th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Futian
District, Shenzhen, a member of ACCA China Expert Forum,
and he is an expert juror of the First batch of Hong Kong
Expert Jurors of Qianhai Court. He was previously appointed as
Vice President of 7th Director Board of Shenzhen Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and was a member of
the Project Advisory Committee for the Authority of Qianhai
Shenzhen-Hongkong Modern Service Industry Cooperation
Zone and the 13th and 14th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Xi‘an.

Mr. Kam has 20 years’' experience in corporate, personal
and interbank business. He was Zone Manager — Corporate
Banking Division and General Manager of Shenzhen Branch of
The Bank of East Asia (China), Limited from July 2012 to March
2017 and Zone Manager (Western China) — Corporate Banking
Division and General Manager of Xi'an Branch of The Bank of
East Asia (China), Limited from November 2006 to June 2012.
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Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha")

Mr. Sha, aged 60, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 July 2007 and holds the directorship of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sha is currently the
deputy financial controller of Ginwa Investments. He once
worked as the financial controller of Xi‘an Supply Station of
XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited and the financial
controller of Xi‘an Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has over 20 years of working experience in commerce
and finance. Mr. Sha received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also holds a master degree in
business administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded China career manager in June 2003
and was appointed taxation practice review inspector by
Xi'an Tax Bureau in the PRC since 2014. He obtained a chief
financial officer qualification certificate in respect of business
administration position in 2007. In 2012, he was admitted
as an affiliate member of The Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 43, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012. He
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.34% of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, (ii) the
security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares held by MCL
under a share charge created in favour of Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, and (i) 1,177,068,181 convertible preferred shares
of the Company. Mr. Chen directs investments in financial
services, culture and media, consumer goods and retail and
construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in investment management, supplier
management and retail business.
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Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600649).
He was a non-executive director of China Glass Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock
Code: 3300) for the period from 2 January 2009 to 6 March
2014.

Mr. Cao Yonggang (“Mr. Cao")

Mr. Cao, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 17 May 2015. He was also appointed as a
member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company on 17 May 2015.

Mr. Cao joined Hony Capital in 2004 and is currently its
managing director. He is responsible for the management of
the risk management and compliance department, human
resources department, department of Hony Capital. As at the
date of this annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
28.34% of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue, (i) the security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares
held by MCL under a share charge created in favour of Glory
Keen Holdings Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible
preferred shares of the Company.

Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Cao was an attorney at the
Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm. He is currently a supervisor
of Happigo Home Shopping Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 300413).
He was the chairman of supervisory board of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science & Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 157) for the period from 22 July 2010 to
29 June 2015. He received a bachelor of arts degree in civil
and commercial law from Tianjin Nankai University, a master
degree in international law from Peking University, a master of
laws degree in international law from the Erasmus University
in Rotterdam and a master of business administration degree
from the China Europe International Business School.
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Biographies of Directors

EEEE

Mr. Qu Jiaqgi ("Mr. Qu”")

Mr. Qu, aged 58, was re-designated to a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Qu
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and was an Executive Director from 11 August 2007
to 18 February 2013. He is currently executive vice president
of Ginwa Investments. Mr. Qu worked with several other large
department stores and shopping malls in Xi‘an, China.

Mr. Qu has over 30 years of working experience in department
store business. Mr. Qu received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also received training in High
Level Business Administration from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province
Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and
“China Professional Operational Management Master” in
2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xi'an City People’s Assembly.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 10 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Services Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 605) from 28 May 2007 to
27 May 2016.
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Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Beijing Atman
Technology Limited and the chairman of the supervisory board
of New Star Energy Stock Company.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of Jilin
University.

Ms. Sun Zhili (“Ms. Sun”)

Ms. Sun, aged 49, was appointed as an independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Ms. Sun
holds a bachelor's degree from Nanjing Normal University and
a master’s degree from the University of Houston. She has
over 20 years of working experience in corporate finance and
investment banking field.

Ms. Sun is currently a director of Taiping Financial Holdings
Company Limited. Prior to that she worked as a vice president
of Bosideng International Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 3998) focusing
on mergers and acquisitions and investor relationship
management, an executive director and chief financial officer
of China Mass Media Corporation (a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange), and in different positions in
investment banking in several banks in Hong Kong.
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Dr. Cao Guogqi (“Dr. Cao")

Dr. Cao, aged 53, was appointed as an independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 November 2015.
Dr. Cao graduated from the Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, the University of Hong Kong, and the
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences and holds a Ph.D.
degree in Economics. He has over 20 years of experience in
project financing and investment, finance, fund investment
and management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
advisory.

Dr. Cao is the executive director and general manager
of Probest Limited and Master Energy Inc. He is also the
deputy president of the Asian Economics Research Institute
at the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, an
EMBA professor of Hunan University, a MBA supervisor at
the Advanced Institute of Finance of the Shanghai Jiaotong
University, and a research fellow at the Shanghai Institute of
Development Strategy. From April 2014, he takes the position
as the chairman of SBI China Capital Group. Currently, Dr.
Cao acts as an executive director of China Smartpay Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 8325) and an independent non-
executive director of Dongwu Cement International Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 695).

Dr. Cao was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Co. Ltd. (a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with
Stock Code: 8205). He was a probationary economist in the
International Currency Department of the Economic and
Financial Affairs Councils, European Communities, as well
as a project coordinator of the World Bank. He co-founded
Shanghai Jingcheng Internet Consulting Co. Ltd. with
Shanghai Jiaotong University, and was elected as Chairman
and CEO.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together EERARIBEERNEE 7 RE FRLEX
with the audited financial statements for the year. B TSR -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEK

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding KAFIZEBEBAREERKR -SHB R
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the A7 EXFBEBE NI BEHRERMT16 -
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW e
Environmental Protection RIEIRE

In order to promote corporate governance, drive ATIRAMCEEAE FREGHSEIBEN
environmental protection proactively, facilitate relationships RE-RESHEEENONELE BB
among stakeholders and contribute to the society, the BERABREHAKRIIERE HERERE
management has established Environmental, Social and Eg([ESGEREE]) HERE - HERE
Governance Committee (“ESG Committee”) to set targets, ERHIEBRE KR EFRNIES . UNEETT
policies, procedures and guidelines for ESG related matters @B AREBNEE ML BEEBOHLEA
during the reporting period so as to promote the sustainable RAMBFERR -ESGEEEE NRA5E
development of the community where the Group’s business /N4 /NARKE KRB EEBEFINES 5
is operated. Five ESG Task Forces are set up under the ESG  BIB EWHMBEIESGE E @ BB & A FIHEESG
Committee. Members in the Task Forces come from the EBEE WS EREEEIIEE T H
elites of relevant departments responsible for assisting the AR c ESGEESNWATHREES S
ESG Committee in promotion of the corresponding ESG WATERRIREE(LEZE-

related matters, establishment of key performance indicators

and periodic effectiveness assessment. ESG Committee is

responsible to report to the board of directors periodically the

status of execution and recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to ~ ANEBEE KV EaLEE/ A EHAE
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction VAR TS R AR TH 5 B i % TR A A2
measures in offices, shopping malls and supermarkets to reduce  JFEEREE - LURA B R 552 Wa9 5k
electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and to avoid AR ERERBER - AEBSHERS
wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of “Green N EEER R IR FE M A HETT 1B 00 K 4% B 38T
management and balanced development”, the Group will Bt WEBMIgERE HEER] 218
continue to review and monitor the implementation of each e

measure, and optimize the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations BrLERER

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full NEFBDHEREBEERIRT D ESTE AR
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have SEEEFEZFEMHBBEEZNRER
significant impact on its operations, including but not BEEBTEREEEREZERET RERE
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety BN BENBELIAEAELEFEM
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and ERAMERENRDESENERRER-
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to

property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in BB TREEIMAREIRENERD
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek BEMELEZZE MRFERISKINR

external advice if considered necessary. B 4 & B

o SHEEERERAT
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal business activities of the Group are the retail services
at its shopping malls. The risks associated include burglary, fire,
significant incidents, cash storage and in transit. The Group
has followed relevant laws and regulations to set up security
measures to lower the chance of these risks, to protect the
security of human lives and inventories and to minimize any
loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risks Management Target
and Policy” in note 28 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognize performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department
stores and shopping malls. Through good standards
of the look, appearance and actions of employees,
the Group creates a good service model to customers.
The Group not only devotes to set up a consistent
labelling system and clear pricing system, but also
endeavors to eradicate the selling of fake and inferior
quality products. The Group treasures complaints
and comments from customers. In order to provide
excellent customer services and to increase market
share and business expansion, the Group has set up
various channels to strengthen the communication with
customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.
L] L] L]
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

3)

4)

(5)

Goods and Services Vendors

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/services inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and services supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different shopping malls which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each shopping mall has taken steps
to ensure that relevant local concerns, customers and
changes of laws or regulations have been accounted for.

Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board of the
Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 and the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 92 to 100.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017 and the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016 and the three years ended 31 December 2014 and
the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2012,
2013, 2014 and as at 31 March 2016, 2017 are set out on
page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of
management and employee (either full time or part time)
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the
“Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent. of the issued
Share capital of the Company at the date of such award.

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income
or distribution such as dividend derived from the unvested
Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
purchased 3,070,000 shares of the Company through the
trustee in the open market on the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of Share Award Scheme and no share was granted by
the Company under Share Award Scheme.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(31 March 2016: RMB995,255,000) were available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders. In addition,
the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately RMB1,133,854,000 (31 March 2016:
RMB1,133,854,000) may be distributed in form of fully paid
bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group and the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2017 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
(ceased on 8 March 2017)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Sun Zhili

Dr. Cao Guoqi

In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company, Mr. Wu
Yijian will retire from the office of directorship by rotation and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John, the newly
appointed director, will be subject to re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-
Law 86(2) of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr.
Cao Guogi, and considers them to be independent for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The Company considers that each of
such Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent
from the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 18 to 24.

‘l“Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
[Annual Report 2016/17

T
@RIy

EERESEZRBEEN

REBEZE-_ZT—+tF=A=+—HLEFER
HERAFHRABIL ARRIZEEESN
T

BITES

R—BRE(EE)

RALEE (BIXE)

SEBERLE (TTHALH)
(RZTB—LFHA_HEZE)

BRNEE (7THAH)
(R=F—LF=AN\BE)

DEANRE

FHTES
REDSEAE (BIE/E)
EKMmIEE

B R BT E

BYFHITES
DEERE
Brieid st
BRIXBRL
BEHBL

REBEARABARES7()GE R—BELER
RS REERG  BNAEBLBERNE
BRTZERBFAG LEREE -
EZINEZEREBRBARBAMAE
86N EERRIBF RNE LB &S

ARARDEESBIUIFNTER (AEE
BEL BBElg kAt  ARBEA LT NEEH
BL)REBISNBLZFERRE R
REEFRBE-_T—tF=-A=+—HLt
FEABBIAL - REBIAES LT
MAN(TEMARRN) E313MEMAEES - K
RARR LM EBIIFRTEFTIR/AE
E B AL

ARBEFZEEFITHNFI18E24E



DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined
in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements and
independent shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been
made and obtained by the Company in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions

On 13 February 2015, the Company’s three subsidiaries, as
lessors, entered into tenancy agreements with Xi‘an Century
Ginwa Epin Life Supermarket Company Limited (“Xi'an
Epin”), as tenant, in respect of renting at Bell Tower Store, Hi-
Tech Store and Nandajie Store for operations of supermarket
business for a period of three years commencing from 16
February 2015, at annual rental of RMB5.6 million, RMBO0.8
million and RMBO.3 million respectively. Xi"an Epin terminated
the tenancy agreement for Nandajie Store in December 2015.
Renting to Xi'an Epin for operation of supermarket business in
the Group’s department stores can enhance the product mix.
Xi‘an Epin is wholly-owned by Ginwa Investments, which is
beneficially owned as to 92% by Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The transactions under
the tenancy agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 31 to the financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed,
except for those described above in the paragraphs headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

All the continuing connected transactions above have been
reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company who have confirmed that for the year ended 31
March 2017 the continuing connected transactions have been
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
(or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditor to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
continuing connected transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their conclusions in respect of the non-
exempted continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/
or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of  ordinary share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of director Nature of interests shares held Company

HERE

e 81T ERTEER

EsnR EEMtE EERHE RASHOEIL

Mr. Wu Yijian Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 29.52%
R—BEAE REEHEEFEER

Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests 1,551,500 0.14%

WEARNTE (PN 325

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(i)  a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

EERFTETHRAEBRAEARTR

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 HHEROPREFCEZRER
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (#)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) AQTEREZRER (&)

Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Scheme adjustments).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 85,380,000 representing 7.50% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Set out below are the details of

BEREZTEERAZL A TIER
ZEEE (VWRPEE: ()EBPT
BHZBRBERAT  ROVE D
B2 Y (B R (i) HR B 2 P 3
ZEBERERAR RORERR
HAEMAAEERA 2 FHRTE
(BZATEIELAE) -

HEAFRAH BEBRESTS
Al B 1T 2 f% (D 42 £ 585,380,000
B AR AR A BB EITRAT7.50% ° T
XHINBE—_E—+tF=ZA=+—

AEFE  REBEE IR DA

movements in the outstanding options granted under the

Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2017: RITEREREN S G
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Exercised Expired asat
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HKS) exercise period 2016 the year the year the year 2017
RZB-t§
RZE-RE =H
ke MA-H ERRl/ =t-8
ARALE RHEE (Br) BRRTEH HATE AR TR P31 HATE
Mr. Wu Yijian 200ct 2011 1.9 20 0ct 2011 to 3,750,000 - - - 3,750,000
19 Oct 2017

R-ZEE - “F—§tAZtHE

TAZ+H ZE-tETATAR
30 May 2013 176 30 May 2013 to 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000

29 May 2019
“E-ZF ZE3-SERACTHE
il =R ZE-NERAZThA
L] L] L]
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERFETHAEREAQITR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 HHERPRESCEENRER
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (%)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) ARATFABEBREZRE (&)
Company (continued)
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) exercise period 2016 the year the year the year 2017
Ro8-t§
RIE-AE =
%@ mA-H ERRY/ =t-H
ARALZ REBE (B1) BRRGEH GESHIA ERRH FRfTE X% GESH
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, 20 0ct 2011 1.96 20 0ct 2011 1o 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 -
Edwin 19 0ct 2017
gRARE _E-F I i ik
(Note 1) TAZtH “E-+E+BtNA
(Hit1)
28 May 2013 173 28 May 2013 1o 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 -
27 May 2019
23 ZE-CERACTN\AE
EAZTNR ZE-NERAZTLR
Mr. Qu Jiagi 20 Oct 2011 1.96 20 0ct 2011 to 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
19 0ct 2017
BRHLE “E-f “E--5tAZTHE
+A=1H ZE+EtATAR
28 May 2013 173 28 May 2013 to 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
27 May 2019
23 ZE-CERACTN\AE
EA-TNR ZE-NERAZTER
Mr. Sha Yingjie 200ct 2011 1.96 20 0ct 2011 1o 1,875,000 - - - 1,875,000
19 0ct 2017
PEARE Ik Z2-—£+ACTHE
tAZtH “E-tEtATAR
28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
27 May 2019
23 ZE-CERACTNRE
BAZTNH ZE-NERAZTLR
L] L] L]
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERFETBRAERERQTR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 HERORESZEERER
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (&)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) AXRATFBEREZRE (&)
Company (continued)
Number of share options
BEREHA
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HKS) exercise period 2016 the year the year the year 2017
Rog-tE
RZB-RF =f
ke mA-H ERiRl/ =t-H
ERALS REAH (Br) BRRTEH HATE ERRH ERfTR 3 BATE
Other employees of 20 Oct 2011 196 20 0ct 2011 t0 19 Oct 2017 26,150,000 - - - 26,150,000
the Group
(in aggregate)
FEEEMEE  ZE——F ZE-—-5TAZTRE
(&%) -t ELETATAR
28May2013 173 28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 44,255,000 - - 800,000 43,455,000
5= ZE-CERAZTNRE
BA-HI\E ZE-NERAZTLR
Other eligiole 9002015 124 29an2015t028 Jan 2017 59,470,000 - - 59,470,000 -
ersons
HoegBAL  -3-7f ZE-RE-AZTNRE
-AZThH “EtE-AZT/R
Total 152,150,000 - - 66,770,000 85,380,000
g3t
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the Company
(continued)
a. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 20 October 2010 was
HK$1.26 (Adjusted).

b. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 20 October 2011 was
HK$1.84 (Adjusted).

C. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 28 May 2013 was HK$1.78.

d. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 30 May 2013 was HK$1.73.

e. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 29 January 2015 was
HK$1.24.

(Adjusted) Price is adjusted due to the 4 to 1 share
consolidation with effect from 13 December

2012.
Note:
1. Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin ceased as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 8 March
2017.

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2017,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being interests of
5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above
in respect of the directors or chief executive officer of the
Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position/short position in the shares of the (a)

Company
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FERR (&)
AAARBZRAEER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company

(A

) HERE ERfTEER

RE4H BA/ER RENE EERYA RE2ERES L

Maritime Century Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.52%
K& DAER (Ht1)

Ginwa Investments Holding Group ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.52%

Ltd.

SRERAEREEERAT] RkE RREHEBRAER (W)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
REERERAR K& NSIL: (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
RkE RREHEBR AR (Hi2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
K& REEFEERAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
RkE RREHEBRAER (Hi2)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
K& REEFEERAER (Hit2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
RkE RREHEBR AR (Hi2)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
K& RGN BN AES (Hit2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
BOBASE RkE RREGEBR AR (Hi2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR(EZ)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b) REQATRRESTETIAEBTZHE
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as BAROZERE EE (ERERF
defined in Part XV of the SFO) REAE R BIEXVED)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

AR

g R ERTEER

REEE RE/KR ERtE LERYE REZBNEA

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 13.71%
REARERAF kE RAER (Hi723)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 13.71%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 13.71%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 13.71%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 13.71%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation ~ 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 113.71%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 113.71%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 13.71%
BYBLAE kE REEHZBSEER (Hi723)

L] L] L]
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1M

MCL held 336,166,156 Shares. Ginwa Investments
holds the entire issued share capital of MCL. Mr. Wu
Yijian beneficially owns 92% equity interests in Ginwa
Investments. As such, Mr. Wu Yijian was deemed to
be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of his
shareholding in MCL.

The long position of 658,893,428 Shares represents (i)
the 322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen"”); and (i) the security interest
held by Glory Keen over the 336,166,156 Shares held
by MCL under share charge. Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of Glory Keen.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the sole general
partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.. Hony Capital
Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hony Group Management Limited, is the sole general
partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P.. Hony
Managing Partners Limited owns 80% equity interests
in Hony Group Management Limited. Hony Managing
Partners Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr. Zhao John
Huan held 100% of the issued share capital of
Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the above-
mentioned parties is therefore deemed to be interested
in the interest held by Glory Keen.

The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.
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(b) RAELNTFAREFMEIAETZHE
BAROZEE EE (ERERF
RHEHRFIEXVE) (&)
5t -

(1 MCL#$H336,166, 156 A% - &
EREBBEMCLZ 2B BT
Ko B—BELERFBHSLER
BBz Em-ALL R —B5%
HEREEMCLZ B MR IERS
£336,166,156F% J& {7

) §€658,893,428Hﬁﬂﬁ1ﬁ%(i)
KEEREAERAA ([82Z])
ﬁﬁﬁﬁazz,727,z72ﬂxﬂx1
R(NBEMCLIR B R ML H A
336,166,156 R RN FTFFE 2
K #7 # 25 ° Hony Capital Fund
2008 LPHARZEZ 2HME
1T K - Hony Capital Fund
2008 GP, L.P.&Hony Capital
Fund 2008 L.P.2 M — & &
A% A . Hony Capital Fund
2008 GP Limited&Hony Group
Management Limited> & & M
B a - B &Hony Capltal Fund
2008, GP, LPZM—ERBERE
A ° Hony Managing Partners
Limited# H580% Hony Group
Management Limited > & < 1
# ° Hony Managing Partners
Limited &Exponential Fortune
Group Limitedz &2 & W B A
) o f 2 BR 5T A& F5 B Exponential
Fortune Group Limited 100%E
BATIRA . Bt &5 A MR R
REREMBEZEaTHEARE

=

(3) KEB1,294,774,999 K &
& 1 8 7 9 B AR ¥ 54 % AT
f& B S B& M AT A T A B 1T 2
1,294,774,9991% & th < #
7 o 771 54 3% AT 4R AR 4B 5T AR B A
ZHBENBSBRA-_T—=
F+—A+thBZBE WB%TM
] —EIETEERZE MK
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as at
31 March 2017, had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2017, director of the Company had the
following interests in business which competed or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of business

TERR (&)

B EXFEEEN R -F— 5= A
S+-H BAAREFRIEARAR
FF 0 - R4 £ 07 A 5 £ AT % 49 o 461 BRI
(3R A M2 R A AR B4 R
HEPIEXVEELR B3N B 2 HETAA
ATEE B KR A M AR
e AE 1T T 5 A9 B £ ] Bk B 2 )
2 IR A BRI A TE R AE 2 5%
Ik R -

EERBRERE2ER
R-T—+F=A=+—H AQAES

BA T EARE XS E R KRB
FHA BB FANRGROES:

Nature of interests

EsnE YNGR XBHE EEME

Mr. Wu Yijian Ginwa Investments Project investment, entity 92% of the equity
investment, real estate interest in Ginwa
development, property sales, Investments
leasing and agency services,
department store and
supermarket operations

R—B5%HE TIERE BERE ERE  THRAE 1 REIEREZ292%AME
EHE HERRERSE &K£2
BERSMBRTS

Note: M 5t -

Although Mr. Wu Yijian has competing interests in Ginwa Investments
by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors consider that such
competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the Group as
a whole. Furthermore Mr. Wu Yijian will fulfill his fiduciary duties in
order to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable
of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 March 2017. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 27 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall Company Limited
(“Century Ginwa Urumgi”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, was involved in legal proceedings with its
landlord and suppliers involving claims against Century Ginwa
Urumgi of approximately RMB30.8 million and RMB1.3 million
respectively. Details of such proceedings against Century
Ginwa Urumai are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 16 November 2016, 8 December 2016, 12 December
2016 and 17 February 2017. The claim from landlord has been
settled and fully paid in March 2017.
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BEEH
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B KA
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MATERIAL LITIGATION (continued)

On 13 April 2017, Century Ginwa Urumgi lodged further
appeal to the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC disputing
the default payment of RMB20 million arising from the above
claim from the landlord. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not received any affirmative or written response
from the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC in respect of the
appeal.

Save as otherwise disclosed, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries is engaged in any other litigation or arbitration
of material importance and there is no other litigation or claim
of material importance known to the directors to be pending
or threatened by or against the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s shares in the market as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Kam Hou Yin, John
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices, risk management and internal control policy and
procedures from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment
to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for certain deviations.
The corporate governance of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2017 is stated as follows:

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the directors (Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive) are subject to retirement at least
once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year ended 31 March 2017.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. He
should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the
Board and the chairmen of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee were not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 September
2016 due to other important business engagement. They had
delegated the Chief Executive Officer to chair and be available
to answer questions at the annual general meeting.
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CEERARE

CG Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. During the year ended 31 March
2017, not all Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors were able to attend the general meeting of
the Company due to their other business commitments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2017, the Board was comprised of three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. At the date of this
annual report, the Board is comprised of four executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors.

The followings are the members of the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang

Mr. Qu Jiaqi
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng

Ms. Sun Zhili

Dr. Cao Guoqi

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks
in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives. According to
CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 March
2017, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the shareholders’ meetings held for the year ended
31 March 2017 are set out as follows:

Name of Director

ExEpns

TEREREE
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% {8 5 4
G 55 2
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EEHE L
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Board
Meeting AGM & SGM
BRERBEF
XER

EXeed RREHAE

Executive Directors
HITEZE
Mr. Wu Yijian
R—BEE
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
BRANEE
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (appointed on 2 May 2017)
SEBAE (RZE—tERA-REZMHT)
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (ceased on 8 March 2017)
MEANEE (RZZ—F=ZAN\BET)
Mr. Sha Yingjie
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Name of Director

EEpNS

Board
Meeting AGM & SGM
RRBF
XER

ESEe3 RREAKE

Non-Executive Directors
HMTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai
PR BD 5% A4
Mr. Cao Yonggang
ER P
Mr. Qu Jiagi
HREEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIFNTEF

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

B x4

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng

Be Bz % 5% 4

Ms. Sun Zhili

BRERL

Dr. Cao Guoqi

EEHEB L

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.
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The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include: EEgNETEBEMBEOT

management of the overall business and strategic = —  EEERIREETE R HE KR
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans; —  EBFEIREEFEARE:

— convening general meetings and reporting to the — BIRERENABREETTR: &
shareholders; and

- exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred — TERERBREREASE T EME
by shareholders in general meetings. 7 BRRE R E o

The day-to-day management, administration and operation AATIHAESE - ITHEERZER
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer BIERTARAANBIITREZ LS HEIERE - X
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated NAG TR ERBRE R TEE®K &
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals  MiERBETVTEAX SR BEESSH
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant AE o

transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of 2 EEEZEHHAEARATN AT WEIZMHEE
the company secretary of the Company to ensure that the BNRRE RN ETEESRR T LT
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, BiEARAEEG I KREBESK &
are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable FAREEBATSKBEVEEER &
request, seek independent professional advice under ARARARAE - EECBAREELAS
appropriate circumstance at the Company's expenses. HiEMEBHEMNBYHEXSRUENE
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate, FEEN e A

independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist

the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIYFEHITES

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant BUYENITEETNEEZSANEEEEAR
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to B EEES SR IEMEBE T HE WEERAK
the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance. EERB -FENEREEECRARE
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision; in BEE LHEMEHAREBR R RIE X
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the ~ BA#EEE BRI RAIE TG 2 BEIH I IEHNTT
Group's strategy, performance and control. All independent EEHEAECHEN BERTEERK
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, BEELR MOESTSREZESR BT
professional and industry expertise and management IFNTEEUAEERNEBSBRE EEN
experience and have provided their professional advice to  BIREHBYER BERBREMFZES
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide EE - SAQTIRERENFEZHESR
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results =4

and management to ensure that all interests of shareholders

are taken into account, and the interests of the Company and

its shareholders are protected.

o SHEEERERAT
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The Board has four independent non-executive Directors,
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed four independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enroll in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refresh their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 March 2017 for ensuring their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Such
professional development was completed by way of attending
briefings, conference, courses, forum and seminars, teaching,
self-reading and participating in business-related researches
which are relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, renewable
automatically by three years on the expiry of such term and
every successive period of three years thereafter, subject to
the relevant provisions under the Company's amended and
restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-third of all the
Directors (i.e. both Executive and Non-executive Directors
are included) to retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Choon Hoi
Kit, Edwin and Kam Hou Yin, John have entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term, and all the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee, and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors: Ms. Sun Zhili, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
and Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, and two Non-executive Director,
Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang. Ms. Sun Zhili is the
chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and recommended the appointment of the external
auditor. Also, the Audit Committee together with management
and independent auditors have reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited results for the year ended
31 March 2017 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2016 prior to their approval by
the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, two meetings were  &HE-Z—+F=ZA=Z+—HIFE +F
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each RZEeRTTTRIAeZ - EXETEEeR
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit KERBEZRZESeEN T ERESHI WM
Committee is set out below: =
Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director Meeting
HE B
ZEg
ESpE ER¥E
Ms. Sun Zhili 212
BRBLT
Mr. Chen Shuai 212
PR B 5% A&
Mr. Cao Yonggang 1/2
Bk &
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 212
BlEEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 12
BB I 5% 4

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2017.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr.
Ruan Xiaofeng, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Sun Zhili,
and one Non-executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and
reviewed the remuneration package of the Executive Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one meeting was held
by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Remuneration Committee at the meeting
of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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HEe-_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE %
MEEERITT —AEH - FHNEESR
MERFHEZEETLHN LB LiRE W
™

Attendance/

Number of

Remuneration

Committee

Name of Director Meeting

HE B

ZEg

EEnE ER¥E

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 0N
B e I 5% 4

Mr. Chen Shuai 11

BR B 5% A4

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai il
BEBEE

Ms. Sun Zhili il

BRERL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of two Non-
executive Directors: Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang
and four Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang
Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr. Cao
Guogi. Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the board’s structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by Independent Non-
executive Directors and assessed their independence. Also,
the Nomination Committee will also give consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, and the board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, one meeting was held
by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee at the meetings of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Nomination

Committee

Name of Director Meeting

HE/RA

ZE®

EEpA BEHE

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai il
LEERE

Mr. Chen Shuai 1”71

BRED S 4

Mr. Cao Yonggang 11
ER bates

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 0/1
=1 3

Ms. Sun Zhili 1/1
BBt

Dr. Cao Guogqi 1”71
EEHEE L

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 March 2017. The external auditor
is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except for
specific approved items, such as review of interim results of
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external auditor’s
statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approves its
fees. A remuneration of RMB3,600,000 was paid/payable to
KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review of interim
results services in the year ended 31 March 2017.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company. As at 31 March 2017, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wu Yip Kai has been informed of the requirement of the
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while
the Board oversees management in performing its duties on
an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives;

Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly;
and

(i) Evaluation:

(iii) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 March 2017, no significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

(i) Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for
carrying out internal control across
the Group;

A dynamic and iterative process
for identifying and analyzing risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed,;

(ii) Risk Assessment:

Action established by policies
and procedures to help ensure
that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out;

(iii) Control Activities:
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(iv) Information and

(v) Monitoring:

Internal and external
communication to provide the
Group with the information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls;
and

Communication:

Ongoing and separate evaluations
to ascertain whether each
component of internal control is
present and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of disclosure requirements in relation to the
Group, which include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations; and

The Executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the
year ended 31 March 2017, no significant control deficiency
was identified.
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Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to carry out the Internal Audit (“IA")
functions of the Group. The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and ensuring review
of the effectiveness of these systems has been conducted
semi-annually. Several areas have been considered during
the Board’s reviews, which include but not limited to (i) the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since
the last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment, and (i)
the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA functions and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March
2017.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group's financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’'s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Scope

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report of Century Ginwa Retail Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we” in
this report). The reporting period covers the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 and this report includes our
main business in operating department stores, shopping
centers and supermarkets in the Mainland China.

Guidelines on the ESG Report of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong In order to comply with the disclosure
requirements and guidelines of the Listing Rules and
the "ESG Reporting Guide” (Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules), the Group started to disclose relevant
information of ESG for the financial year beginning
on 1 April 2016. We are the prime leader among the
medium to high-end department stores, shopping
centers and supermarket industry in the Northwest
region in China. We dedicated to offering our
customers with excellent shopping experience and
services, enhancing the combination of merchants
and providing brand suppliers with high-quality
facilities. While developing the company’s business
and generating value for shareholders/investors, we
hope to protect the ecological environment by better
utilization of resources and minimizing pollutants from
operation. As a responsible and visionary entity, we
often balance the relationship between our operations
and the environment through continuous optimization
of operation management and business strategies,
environmental protection, talent development and
community investment, hoping to promote the
sustainable development of the earth, mankind and our
business.

We welcome any comments and suggestions on this
report and as well as our performance in sustainability
development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We always advocated that protecting the environment
is everyone’s responsibility, hoping everybody can start
from something small and little; like “taking ONE
step ahead each time”; “making ONE small change”;
“clinging ONE belief” so that gradually we can create
a fresh world together. Since 2013, we have been
spreading the “Power of One” message to outsiders,
promoting the “Protect the blue sky” concept through
organizing a variety of activities, appealing for reducing
pollution to the environment, and drawing support
and attention from the community. We also hope that
the environmental protection can be turned into a
more meaningful and powerful journey. In April 2016,
we launched a series of activities on environmental
protection in that month and let everyone understand
that the environmental issues are closely related to
our health; and encouraging everyone to start from
changing one-self “Walking instead of driving” to
reduce carbon emissions and increase oxygen in the
city; actively participating in activities, caring for the
environment, and making contributions to the Earth.

1. Management of Emissions

In our business, energy consumption accounts for
a large part of greenhouse gas emissions. With
the “Green operation, balanced development”
belief, we set an example by raising our staffs’
awareness of energy-saving; actively promoting
the "Act to save energy, lead a low-carbon
living” concept. During the reporting period, we
set up an energy conservation project team to
optimize the energy conservation and emission
reduction policies, and take a number of reform
measures (see “Management of Resources
Utilization” below) to achieve the goal of energy
saving and carbon footprint reduction.

Our wastes are mainly divided into two
categories: recyclable and non-recyclable. They
are mainly produced from the product packaging
materials, kitchen wastes, slow-moving goods
and office daily wastes. Recyclable wastes are
gathered at the collection station and to be
handled by qualified recyclers. Slow-moving
consumable goods are reused by donating the
materials to the non-government bodies; they
can distribute the collected items to the needy.
During the reporting period, we did not produce
any hazardous wastes.
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2. Management of Resources Utilization 2.

We realize that at the same time as we conduct
our business activities, we also need to take up
the responsibility to preserve our environment; by
recognizing, monitoring and reducing the impact
from our operation to the environment. In order
to comply with the laws, regulations and policies
on resource conservation, we have established
a number of control measures at the shopping
malls, supermarkets and offices; demanding
our employees to understand the importance of
resource conservation; maximizing the resources
utilization effectiveness and avoiding wastage.

(1)

Management of Electricity
Utilization

Energy-saving slogans and labels are
posted in business places (such as
shopping centers and malls) and offices
to encourage our employees to change
their habit in using electrical devices.
Besides, we have established of a number
of energy-saving measures, including the
use of energy-saving lamps, better use of
natural light; switching off the electrical
appliances not in use, such as electrical
lights, computers, printers, photocopiers,
scanners, televisions, air-conditioners, etc.
Air conditioning is used by reference to
the seasonal and temperature change.
It is strictly prohibited to open the doors
and windows while the air conditioning is
turned on. The air conditioners must be
cleaned regularly to maintain it at good
conditions.

The malls and shopping centers have been
using high-energy consumption lightings
as the main light source; and increased the
indoor temperature. In order to provide
a comfortable shopping environment to
the customers, we have to lower the air-
conditioners’ temperature, which led to an
increase in electricity consumption. In view
of such problem, we replaced those high-
energy consumption lightings in the malls
and shopping centers with LED lights,
which consumes less electricity, brighter
and can last for a longer time.
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(2)

(3)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Besides, we adopt a variety of new
technologies to make more efficient use
of electricity. During the reporting period,
we use the frequency conversion control
technology to transform circulating pumps
of the central air conditioning plant so that
the system can automatically control the
frequency as the surrounding temperature
changes and reduce energy consumption.
We have also automated the electrical
appliances on/off switching process for
some of our malls and shopping centers.
Such change has strengthened the control
in the entire workflow. Besides, we have
also set timer and temperature for the
blower so as to control the on/off of the
device automatically; use LED lamps to
intelligently adjusting the luminosity; and
as a whole saved a lot of electricity.

Management of Water Utilization

Water conservation should start from
daily life. In order to raise our staff's
awareness, we have set up a number of
control measures. Drinking water cannot
be used in other way. Water flow from
tap is controlled at low level. Water tap
should be turned off after use. Water
facilities are regularly inspected to keep
them in good condition and to avoid
leakage resulting in wastage of water. If
there is abnormalities, they are repaired or
replaced immediately. Complete inspection
records are maintained.

Management of Paper Utilization

We promote using less paper and avoid
wastage. Papers are acquired through
unified purchasing; photocopying and
printing should be minimized. Full use
of the papers for photocopying and
printing is made, like reuse of single-
sided papers, recycle double-sided printed
papers to be put in recycle paper collection
boxes. Communication by emails and file
transmission is preferred.
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(4) Plastic Bags Management

In order to let everyone realize the
importance of using less plastic bags,
we distributed only a limited number of
environmental friendly shopping bags
during the "Environmental Protection
Month” promotional activities. This is
to encourage people to bring their own
shopping bags and reduce using plastic
bags. We strictly prohibit supermarkets
distributing plastic bags for free and to
comply with the requirement under the
plastic bag levy system.

(5) Management of Office Supplies
Utilization

Office supplies are procured and
distributed centrally by the administrative
department; and are properly stored so
as to reduce the chance of damages
and wastage. Departments set up their
own office supplies usage plans, and to
submit requisition requests according to
the stated procedures. All such requisition
records should be properly maintained.

Compliance

During the reporting period, there were no
confirmed non-compliance incidents in relation to
environmental protection that have a significant
impact on the Group.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s operation does not have significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources. Resource consumption is mainly
for usage of electricity, water, paper, plastic
bags and office supplies. During the reporting
period, we have developed measures to reduce
resource consumption and to properly dispose
of wastes (see “Management of Emissions” and
“Management of Resources Utilization” above).
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employees are our most valuable asset, we have
established a comprehensive personnel management
system, including the remuneration and benefits
management method, recruitment management,
performance management and training management.
Employees are critical for helping us to achieve our
long-term development strategic objectives. When we
set up our human resources strategic plan, we are keen
to build a fair, just and open talent development and
competition mechanism, as well as providing a non-
discriminatory, safe and harmonious workplace for our
employees. We give guidance to our people to prepare
their career plan; to provide them with a competitive
remuneration package and promotion opportunities; to
budget for sufficient resources in organizing a variety of
staff training. This is to ensure that our people are well-
equipped with professional skills and prepared for their
further career development.

Talent Selection

We are committed to build a fair, tolerant, diversified
and equal corporate culture; to ensure that all
employees are getting mutual respect, able to learn
from each other, continue improving under benign
competitive atmosphere. In order to provide equal
opportunities and remuneration to all interested
candidates, we mainly make use of the recruitment
portals on the web, social recruitment, campus
recruitment and internal referrals. We insist to fairly
select the most appropriate candidate; and they are
not discriminated against because of their nationality,
gender, age, geographical, religious beliefs and other
factors. We consider only their job experience and
qualification requirement and ability; and arrange job
assignment accordingly. During the reporting period,
we have hired few disabled person and evidenced that
we follow the fair principle in staff recruitment. Our
employees are considerate, supportive and tolerate;
who help us developing our business steadily and have a
positive impact on our future sustainable development.

We observe and strictly comply with the relevant labour
laws and regulations; and unethical hiring like child
labour and forced labour, are prohibited.

-

BREREZEIER
BMREIAREENEE BYT
—EETEMNAZTEEFIE - B
w|AMEERE BEEE BMEE
KRIBFIERE - B THRREHRBE
BREEEROER  EHEANE
IRREEES - RAIBAORITERF 2
IE R AT BEANBFHES] B
RETRHEIFER L2 MEHT
TFIRIE LRSI BB THETHER
g WAE TIRHARFE WM
BUEEE  UREBTRNER
REEEEI TOREETWEA
REXTR REIRENBERE
TEERE -

ATEE
BHBNhERAF -BF ZTER
FENRMEERE REMBET
BEMEEE HEER HEES
ZRUEBFAE B TIREFEH
GNFE EASHEBRES KM
TE2RBEEEE LEHE RE
FREMAMERSTRE BFHEE
BEC A ERNRA AT EEF
BT M ArARE &R Fik-
i RHBENEFRARZENTFE
HEF RPRSERBIENERE - 6
N EREBRIEREBRE  RIEZEA
BN DR PR - NIREH
N RPABBBTETREAAL ¥
BT XFBAFRAUMERN - HAFIH
B THELRER BANER &£
AEERSER YHAKERRE
ELENEE-

B —mESR M ERRETHEES
EEER BRERATH A ER
BEREE BEEL BHSEIE-




Staff Compensation and Welfare

We insist maintaining harmonious relationship with
our employees and to create a win-win situation.
Staff remuneration varies among factories and
offices at different locations. We follow the local law
and regulations in setting up staff work hours and
remuneration package. We align our remuneration
management to the business development strategies;
to keep it flexible; and the design of the remuneration
system is to provide adequate incentives and stimulus
to our people; to ensure that our Group can have
sustainable business development. Our staff pay level is
competitive in the market. In order to effectively attract
high-quality talent, our average staff remuneration is
competitive within the region; and the core staff in
the same industry is also competitive. We regularly
review and evaluate our employees’ performance; and
we have set up a performance-based remuneration
scheme. Staff salaries are adjusted according to business
performance, and it is indicated that the business result
and employee pay level are closely related. Besides,
employee compensation level changes according to
one’s job position and achievements. The remuneration
adjustment is bigger for outstanding performers; this is
to provide positive impact to our employees.

Employees are entitled to retirement protection scheme
with reference to the local labour laws and regulations.
Staff in Mainland China participate in the social security
scheme, five insurance and housing provident fund.
Hong Kong employees participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Employees are entitled to rest
days and holidays in compliance with the local laws
and regulations, such as statutory holidays, paid annual
leave, sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave,
funeral leave, and leave for visiting relatives and so on.
Besides, we have also provided a number of additional
welfares, such as work and festive welfare gifts, the
Chinese New Year subsidy, communication allowance,
medical expenses, transportation allowance, special job
subsidies, long service award, confidentiality allowance,
competition subsidies and key personnel insurance
subscription. We follow the local laws and regulations
for employee dismissal and compensation payment.
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In order to enrich our employees’ personal life, we
irregularly organize activities such as choirs, book fair,
art exhibitions, photography exhibitions, fun games,
and skill competitions. Our staff will also participate in
the activities organized by the Government like riding
and other environmental protection related events;
to improve their cohesion, sense of belonging and
team spirit. To better reflect the concept of humanized
corporate management and to show our care and love
for our people, we pay visits and show our condolences
for staff unfortunately having illness, injured at work,
death or accidents, employees’ spouses or immediate
family members passed away, and at time of major
festivals.

By offering competitive remuneration, benefits and
organizing a variety of activities, we attract and retain
our talents not only by means of “compensation”
but also by means of “relationship”, “career”, and
“working platform”.
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Development and Training

As a talent-oriented corporate enterprise, we
established a stringent and comprehensive recruitment
system, standards and procedures; introduced
competition mechanism, hoping to explore and cultivate
professional talents. We provide path for staff climbing
up the career ladder, and to build a professional team
by offering those staff positions requiring specific
knowledge, skills or qualifications. This is particular
important to keep our Group’s development sustainable.
In order to encourage our people to continue learning
in a systematic way, we build the atmosphere so that
everyone is eager to learn and offer a series of on-the-
job training courses; and facilitate self-learning. In order
to meet the development needs of the company, we
build a well-established and professional corporate team
and a learning organization, to raise the overall quality
and ability of the team, and improve the work efficiency.
We have formulated a series of training programme to
fit in our business development, including foundation
training, skills advancement, professional and
management training. We focus on improving the
staff quality, professionalism and management needs,
we raise our people’s skills and knowledge by offering
training. Executives, semi-senior and senior technical
personnel can join local and overseas training whenever
appropriate. For those critical staff roles and positions
meeting the business development needs as particularly
covered under our human resources development plan,
we commission outside professional organizations to
develop and deliver professional trainings to our talents
in a way to build and strengthen our professional
team to support the competitive development of our
business. We hope to grow together with our people.
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Health and Safety

We are committed to providing employees with a
safe working environment and developing a safety
management manual to strengthen our fire safety
management in our business sites, key departments and
offices. Smoking is prohibited for staff and customers;
and we target to keep our shopping centers, malls,
supermarket and offices smoke-free. We designated
staff to regularly carry out fire prevention patrol
every day at all locations and critical department;
patrol records are properly kept. We take immediate
remediation or precautions once fire hazards are found.
In compliance with the local fire prevention standards
and policies, we have stringent management on fire
equipment and facilities; have them regularly and
properly maintained; and keep records.

Safety education and training work plays an important
role to ensure the workplace is safe. New hires must
receive safety training prior to put into work. This
is to make sure that staff have the necessary safety
knowledge in their position; familiar and able to master
the safety techniques required. Key and special positions
(such as fire control center) have to take professional
training and pass the examination before they are
assigned to take up the role. Firefighters have to be
familiar with and master the use of various types of
fire prevention facilities to ensure that they can operate
with the equipment for fighting fire. We conduct safety-
related activities and competitions in various forms each
year to raise our employees’ safety awareness.

Staff of special work types (such as electrician,
welders) must possess valid license before they are
allowed to report duty. lllegal operations are strictly
prohibited. Carpenter should promptly clean up with the
sawdust and shavings after job completion. Fireworks,
inflammables, explosive, chemical or dangerous
materials are prohibited and no storage is allowed.
Paint workers should not blend paints on-site; and fire
is banned for paint blending off-site. Paints should
be covered with lids immediately after use. Operation
should not be carried out if the location is close to fire
and electric power.

Compliance

During the reporting period, there was no violations
related to labour measures and had a significant impact
on the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

IV. OPERATING PRACTICES - EEEN
Supply Chain Management HrEEERE
We have established policies and procedures in supply HAPEHREEE  RPIAREN
chain management and provided various reporting e HEZEAETE EET  HE
channels for employees, suppliers, customers and B BERPAMEEMESEENOA LR
other business partners in case they are aware of any WAEMMABBEE BRNTR-
violations of laws or regulations. During the reporting RMEBA FEFWEBRIRENE
period, the Group did not have significant issues relating KB EM

to violations in this respect.

We have strict procurement procedures for purchasing HREZEYH L - 55 RBRE TS
goods for shopping centers, malls and supermarkets. ER MR B EEBRISHE
We follow the evaluation system for selecting EEF SHERMVE  HRME
suppliers, potential suppliers and renewal. We regularly FARBTESE -FMT L HE
compile statistics and review the performance of our EHERAETRINAT THH
suppliers, assess their capability, business status and BN ERMANESEXEFETES
operational results; in order to understand the product %o ABEEEMEE SN fEHHE
sales situations and make appropriate adjustment to EEAR - ZRRNABIEITEM
our strategies. The evaluation covers reviewing of - FeEBh AmmE #HEE-
their position in the industry, their overall capability, HEXE FAREHETDNAEIL-
product quality, volume of supplies, sales performance, BERG SXRRE LE5THH
cooperativeness in carrying out promotions, quality ENX TSt ERETE I
service, business performance; using a scoring system L EEZEER FREIEE  E
together with comments in word to conduct a RETFEAMNEEMAGHESE N AR
comprehensive evaluation. The evaluation result is sent AIER BRUNANILEESE &
to management to ensure that the selected suppliers BEET ERTE %5 AJE
are competitive, qualified, with a sound internal control ENEEZ -ABRRNERELEIEE
system, stable quality, timely goods delivery, compliance £ B TRERNRERmET
to law and regulations, with appropriate size and T BEARR R WURE - R ER
standards, and so on. We follow the national product RENERERE L2 B RE
safety standards to set up stringent goods acceptance B EHERFERRNEMOE
criteria for different categories of products; to make S e

sure that the goods provided by suppliers are meeting
the requirements of the country in terms of quality,
safety, appearance, and labeling.

We will continue to review our supply chain monitoring TERFEHWBF B etEinfn
and management process in order to maintain high EHEBXGHEBINEIERIE
quality operations in selection of products, logistics FEMEERRARE EH YR
and transportation and waste treatment. As such, we MEYMRESE —RINEERFS
can monitor the goods quality and to ensure that the TN BEEEITSMEE MM E = R
products are safe and in compliance with the ESG HERLNEZE HESGHAFEE
requirements, including business ethics, observing the Ko BHREEEETANREEEE
standards in product quality and customer health. BENEEDmMEE.
L] L] L]
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Product and Service Responsibility

Customers are always our priority. We provide them
with good quality service and products. In order to
strengthen the brand products quality monitoring, to
maintain our credibility, to eliminate fake and shoddy
goods, and to protect the consumer rights and interests;
we follow the related local laws and regulations in
brands and goods selection; and monitor and manage
closely the brands and suppliers that we work with, and
also their merchandise quality.

In order to build up an image of excellent service,
we strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, conduct and behavior, dressing, job
descriptions and requirement, and service greetings.
We established service quality monitoring system to
accurately evaluate the company’s service quality, to
promptly remediate problems found, and to provide
customers with satisfactory services meeting their
needs. We frequently conduct customer satisfactory
survey to obtain feedbacks on our malls’ reputation,
merchandise and service quality, shopping environment,
service facilities, goods pricing, etc. We analyze and
evaluate our customers’ comments and suggestions;
and to formulate improvement plan to enhance our
service quality.

In order to strengthen our connection with customers,
we have set up the membership system since 2000.
Member services and concessions is provided according
to the member class. A customer service consultant
is assigned to each of our senior members and focus
on meeting the customer’s personal preferences and
needs. As a result, we become the pilot enterprise in the
Northwest Region. We currently have about 400,000 to
500,000 members; and set up a series of management
policies protecting our members’ personal information
and privacy. We will never transfer member’s
confidential information to other third parties (except
for the disclosure request due to legal and regulatory
requirements).

During the reporting period, the Group’s products did
not involve in significant violations and irregularities.
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Anti-corruption

The Company pays special attention to corporate
governance and staff ethics; and focus on the
monitoring and review work in this respect. In order
to strengthen the system and bring the discipline
inspection and supervision work in the operation
process, we set up staff suggestion box; rewarding
staff for good suggestions; providing various channels
like emails and hotline for reporting cases of obtaining
personal interests in carrying out one’s job duties,
briberies, extortion, frauds, money laundering in
breach of policies, regulations, and laws. We handle
such reports in absolute confidence. We shall keep
on improving our whistle-blowing system and are
determinant in combating corruption and contribute to
build a clean society.

During the reporting period, there was no legal action
against the Group and our employees for corruption.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

“With all the grace we got from time, we sincerely
paying back to the society” and “Agglomerate limited
ability can shoulder huge responsibilities” are both our
corporate principles. It demonstrates our determinant
in taking up the social responsibility; to care for our
staff, to push on building a harmonious enterprise;
we establish Century Ginwa Caring Fund and to
organize other charitable donation activities to help
those in need. We are a responsible tax payer and
spare no effort in easing local employment pressure.
We pay five social security insurance premium and
public housing funds for staff in Mainland China and
the mandatory provident fund contributions for staff
in Hong Kong. We have maintained good practices in
business, environmental protection and achieve a good
development order, were a role model for the industry;
and, to some certain extent, we have contributed to
social stability. The following are our major community
investment activities during the reporting period:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

With the theme of “Power of ONE, let us
change the world together”, volunteers,
the host, and audiences participated
in the form of “CO2 behavior art” to
promote environmental protection.

With “It's time to keep our city GREEN”
as the theme, we arouse everyone's
awareness to take part in environment
protection. The event is about riding
bikes together for charities, using the
slogan “Driving in a civilized way, less
traffic jam, protecting our environment”

Held the “Love from the Children” city
bazaar activities. The children sold their
own original paintings, handcrafts,
books, and learning supplies for charity
purpose and the money collected were
used in building a “Countryside library”
in Shaannan.

We organized “Send love to the
Children’s Village 2016" event; urged
for donation of clothes, daily necessities,
and school supplies to children of 1-16
years old. The purpose is helping those
children in the Children’s Village; caring
for their well-being; asking about their
study; improving their living conditions;
and reminding the society to offer their
love to these children.

Organized a “shoe box gift” donation
activities to encourage our employees to
donate a spare empty shoebox filled with
some stationeries, toys, daily necessities
suitable for primary school students. We
collected altogether 168 gift boxes, and
have them sent to the children in village.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION

ESG Committee is established and chaired by
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
committee members include representatives from
major departments, including the Human Resources
Department, the Marketing Planning Department,
the Enterprise Management, the Internal Control
Department, the Engineering Property Center, the
Finance Department, the Employees’ Union, etc. The
ESG Committee will follow the requirement of laws
and regulations; and to conduct business following
appropriate best practices; like setting up ESG targets,
policies, procedures and guidelines. In order to promote
our Group’s business and the long-term sustainable
development of the local community of our business
locations, we improve our corporate governance,
protect the environment, engage our stakeholders
and to contribute to the society. We have five ESG
Task Forces under the ESG Committee, with keys
members from the relevant departments assisting the
ESG Committee to supervise and monitor the progress
of various ESG activities, to coordinate in setting up
key performance indicators, to regularly assess the
effectiveness, and to hold seminars to enhance the
staff awareness in environmental protection. The ESG
Committee is responsible for submitting reports and
improvement proposals to the Board on a periodic basis.

The terms of reference, organizational structure,
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are
as follows:
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B -#HE8K

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
Leader: Chief Executive Officer
(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)

%%‘&%&E/Déﬁa
FE THAR
(EE8RE NIANE)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Shareholders/Investors Employees and

and Community
Focus Task Force
BR/REENLE
PN

Xi'an - Enterprise
Management
BAR-t¥EER

* To maintain good
communication with
shareholders and other
stakeholders, and to
enhance shareholders’
value in the long run

* To care for the
community and people
in need; to ensure
that the interests
of the community
are considered in
conducting business
activities

BRRMEAMF R

RERFOER K

BRERRRER

- BOHEBLARE
T BREBEDE
ZRHEN T

Occupational Safety
Focus Task Force
BIABZR

BEa

Xi'an - Human
Resources Department

AR - ANERES

e To care for our people,
from recruitment,
training to developing
our employees

¢ To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team

e To give appropriate
encouragement
and recognition to
employees

¢ To provide a safe
working environment

¢ To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

BB THAE &
BENER
HEREKIERTH
BRNEE
ﬂal TEE N
BRkE

- ﬁﬁi%%l@%ﬁ
- BB MR G

it s diollig s

Convenor
R HERERZEE
BEA

Suppliers

Focus Task Force
fER

B

Xi'an -

Purchasing Department

-RED

¢ To pay attention to
product safety of
suppliers

¢ To focus on the
procurement
procedures and the
practice in supplier
selection

¢ To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
suppliers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

- BIREREREZZ
- BIRBRFANER

R B fI

- EHREAREREN

BRMELERE A
REAEENEE-
AEMARHELER

Customers

Focus Task Force
EF

BE/hE

Xi‘an - Customer
Service Department

AR -BERER

¢ To concern about the
customers’ service
quality expectations

¢ To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

* To focus on protecting
our customers’ rights
and interests; and their
privacy

- BIBERRBERR
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- BERRERENE
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EREENEE
EMARELER

- BIEPRENME
sARELBHRE

BERRE

Environmental
Focus Task Force
RERE

B

Xi'an - Engineering
Property Center
AR - TRAMRP D

* To cultivate a corporate
culture in promoting
energy conservation,
to prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and
to reduce wastes

* To pay attention to
the environmental
protection related
policies, measures
and effectiveness
(including setting up of
KPIs and performance
evaluation)
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BRRE - HERERBRKE

VIl. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND R ZB—t /- NEETUHE
TARGET ACTIONS FOR 2017/18 BRRTBHNAR
The Group has the following targets and action plans to AREBHE_Z—+,/ —NFEH
strengthen the ESG performance: EATHEEIFTTEN B 1R - INRESG
FEHKRR
Action Plan/Targets Focus
iTEBE B

Optimize the existing ESG systems
and procedures

BB BESGH EMEF
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¢ To check the existing procedures, completeness and accuracy
of ESG data collection

e To establish key performance indicators for environmental-
related aspects

e To strengthen the stakeholders’ engagement (including
investors/shareholders, suppliers, customers and the
community), collect their concerns and to analyze

o IR FINEESGEIEMIEF R MR ERE

e BURBRENBHREIERZ

o MBEEFMNE (BREREE /R HEDN BEENHLE)
Bl WEERHDEMBINER BETRADN



Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to
220, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BEEZETEERERMOEXHE £
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the  HMEAMSGEVBERRNBZTRE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These  EHEE - XS EFEAER MY LKA BB R
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the  RETEEEZLMLERE REEIE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming BMETBEBIMNREER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

BB R E R

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and BRHGRE I BERERNFIEREI162118

the accounting policies on pages 116 to 118.

The Key Audit Matter
HREZEE

BH)EEIBE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHELPNAEEGRSEE

As at 31 March 2017, goodwill, which arose from
acquisitions of businesses in prior years, amounted to
RMB888.2 million and accounted for approximately
10.6% of the Group’s total assets at that date, and
impairment losses on goodwill of RMB273.0 million
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year then ended.
R-ZE—+F=A=+—H BHE (BEEFEREZX
BMEL)EARKESSS 200,000t thizB EBESEEH
BEEL0.6% A LEERERIEARK273,000,000
TREZEZAILFENGEBRRER -

The financial performance of the Group’s department
stores and supermarket operations, as a consequence
of the slowing down of economic growth in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”) as well as
a consequence of the intense competition from
surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales, has
underperformed management’'s expectations when
these business were acquired in prior years which
has increased the risk that goodwill related to the
acquisitions of these businesses may be impaired.
HRAPEARLME ([FE])ZLEERKERREE
BEDTOEMEFTENHRFENE - EEEAEHES
NBRTSREHMERBENEREBERBZEFR
BREOER ENTABREZEFXZBHEE R ERE
B B o
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Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BAHERERENEZEFERATERA:

o assessing and challenging the Group's
identification of cash-generating units
("CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill and
other assets to those CGUs with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o ZERTEFEANER FELRER &
R eEESM([REEESLL])HBER R
MZEReEFEMIRHERAMEE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BREXREE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

ERELZSE (&)
BERERNMG (F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMMEXZP A EESRASE

Management performs impairment assessments of the
relevant CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
at the end of each reporting period. Management
compares the carrying amount of each CGU with its
recoverable amount, which is determined by assessing
the value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
forecasts.
EREORSREHREESEBENEEREES
BEUETREN G ERERSReELAEMNEREE
HATKE AL e eBERAENMRE S
IR AEREEMEE -

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.

RERBEeREASREREELERHE  LHE
FEFERIUR A f= I 48 &0 M A M EE B 38 B BV BB KB -

L

assessing the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasting process by comparing
the previous year's forecasts with the current
year's results, discussing significant variances
with management and considering the
effect of such variances on the current year’s
forecasts;

FiR F—FENTEREAFEEEEL R T
HEEEReRTEABREN RS BERE
AmEARE  WEBZREHANFERARN

S/ 48 -
2

involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating management’s
valuation methodology with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards, in assessing the discount rates
applied by comparison with the discount rates
for similar companies in the same industry
and in assessing the key assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts based on available
market information and by comparison with
other companies in the same industry;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessment of impairment of goodwill (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BREXREE

ERELZEE (&)
BERENG (F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHEXP A EESRASE

We identified the assessment of impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the carrying
value of goodwill and impairment losses on goodwill
during the year are material to the consolidated
financial statements, and also because management’s
forecasts of the future cash flows involve certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made,
which are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

BARASEEBRENTEE —HERERZFE REZ
HMENFRAENFAREREBRYGESMBRKRE
BEXN BEREHARKRBECRENTNS K EBAEL
REREVE TR MaFHERE FR TN

AREXHEEERENTE-
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obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to which
the outcome of the impairment assessments
was most sensitive, including forecast revenue
and forecast profit margins, and considering if
there was any indication of management bias
in the selection of these assumptions; and
ENMERENGRE DN BERBEMNGER
BB AR RR (2RETEBIWA K& R
X)) EZERGERNURERNEREEEE
ZEBRRKFEERERR : X

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessments with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

SLERTEAENER  ZERESMB®REK
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and

investment property

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 109 to 111.

The Key Audit Matter
HREZEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

EREREE (&)
BEBRAZIHREFURKREWEML
&
BRAHMGEMBEREZMNTI2RIZUAKE
1092111 H B S 51 BR ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNELTPNMAEREERSEE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEETERFETELLEAERNES BYT O LBR

mi5 e

The Group’s land and buildings held for own use and
investment property are revalued at the end of each
reporting period and are stated at their fair values.
EEEREERZIHMERETFURKRENERE RS
HREMN BREAAREBEAR-.

As at 31 March 2017, land and buildings held for own
use and an investment property with aggregate fair
value of RMB4,262 million accounted for approximately
51% of the Group’s total assets at that date.
RZFE-—LtHF=ZA=1t—"H B2RERARY
4,262,000,0007T KR ER A 2 L RIEFIA LI EY
FHZAEEBREENST% -

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use
and the investment property were assessed by the
board of directors based on independent valuations
prepared by an external property valuer using certain
estimates, which included comparable market prices.
FEERAZ L REBFURKREMENAAERE
ESERNIINBMELEMEASE T (BEAELER
MSHER) RENBLAEM TG -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of land and buildings held for own use and
investment property included the following:

B ERFEEAC T HREFURKREMEMGE
WEZEFEFENATSE:

J assessing the external property valuer's
qualifications, expertise and experience in the
locations and types of properties subject to
valuation and considering his objectivity and
independence;
BREFIN:IE7E SEREGIRR R ERYE 38 P S kit
FTEHNER BREER TEZEEHTHER
BN

assessing whether the properties held by
the Group were valued on a consistent basis
using a consistent methodology by inquiry
of management and the external property
valuer;

FREAEEE LI MELERM  FE &
SEFAENYRREER —B AR —HHE
EfLE:

=
B

involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the valuations prepared
by the external property valuer by evaluating
the valuation methodology adopted and
comparing the valuations with recent sales
transactions of properties of the same type
and in the same location as the Group’s
properties which were subject to valuation;
and

2 BE R API B9 1A BB ik (B B 5K 197 Bh T I &1 Ak S 56
MEGEMRENEE  TERANEER
FoBEER EEE{EYENRE K
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and
investment property (continued)

ERELZEE (&)

FEBRAZIHREFURKRENEML
8 (%&)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HREELEE BMHELFNAEEGRSEE

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held e
for own use and investment property as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group’s total assets and also because determining their

fair values involves a significant degree of judgement.
BPRRFIEERZ T REBFARKREMENEE
RTIERREREE REAZHEBEEY S£EEEE o
BEAN HETHEAABFSRERREERH K-

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

' ““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17
T

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
valuation of land and buildings held for own
use and investment property with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

B %A RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

L] L] L]
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE REMEBEZGEMBHRRNEME
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (%)
STATEMENTS (continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding s ENEH ESENERIEBIEH

the financial information of the entities or business WM BERN TS EENETZER
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the WEEGRAEMBHRRERER -BME
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for EEE EBRETEEEZ -EM
the direction, supervision and performance of the group MAHKRMNEZERAELTE
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. o

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among  Fffist (AR 83 ) BZ MR 2| & E &R
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and HBEREZER (BREMESTZHER
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies B REBIESIE ARG ) R EZE BEE -
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that FfiMAEZZESRE—HEHR KR
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding ~ HRMEETEBEB L EMABERSK
independence and communicate with them all relationships 05L& ¥ A AE 38 204 B P9 98 32 1% 22 A 58
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on WATEBERK (WER ) BERERE RS
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. BEEEgER-

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, RiIFEBEZZE€BBNETE RMARB
we determine those matters that were of most significance @~ AR EBEIHBZ ARG E P ERERM
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the EHEZMNEE AHBRRBEESEZEE-
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We — BEZEEBREPHRAXEER KIE
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or  JARSERE FARFEZEE = (£i&
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or  DEBERT)ERETHEBEREETEHE
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a BB AR TS RA A KRz FMR
matter should not be communicated in our report because  BZEFETNEERMPNHRETHE-

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEAKBYRHBAMHRENETEBEAEA
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung. s a0
KPMG ESHEMEHAM
Certified Public Accountants #EEFAD
8th Floor, Prince’s Building BBEHIR
10 Chater Road EITE105%
Central, Hong Kong RNFARESE
29 June 2017 —E—tFRAZTNAE
L ] L ] L]
eSS EEEERERAT [
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mER&ER

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“"RMB”))  (UAARKE ([AR])Z5)
Year ended  Fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—+tF BE_Z—~F
=A=+-8 =A=1-H
ILEE IF+AEA
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Ky AR%FT ARBF T
Revenue W &= 4 1,144,753 1,603,739
Other revenue H bz 5 24,179 37,666
Cost of goods sold EMmEERE 20 (498,179) (650,962)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges $HE K E Ao 878 R T n i (37,893) (84,351)
Staff costs BT 6(b) (149,339) (196,393)
Operating lease expenses KEHERT (65,161) (105,394)
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 (141,137) (161,934)
Utilities expenses NEEEFRY (47,216) (67,727)
Advertisement expenses BERX (35,511) (43,571)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 15 (273,016) -
Other operating expenses H e s (112,491) (87,947)
(Loss)/profit from operations g (FR) BA (191,011) 243,126
Valuation gain on an investment property % & ¥ ¥ &Y 25 13 - 34,825
Net finance costs BB R 6(a) (136,851) (209,463)
Changes in fair value of derivative MELMIEZALEE
financial instruments = 3,200
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREAT (BE) BT 6 (327,862) 71,688
Income tax EiREE 7 (22,084) (41,853)
(Loss)/profit for the year/period KEE /HR (FE) w5 (349,946) 29,835
Attributable to: BMUTALRER:
Equity shareholders of the Company PAN/NGT )13 (352,337) 22,181
Non-controlling interests R E S 2,391 7,654
(Loss)/profit for the year/period rEE /R (BB &7 (349,946) 29,835
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (58 B
Basic (RMB) ER(ARBT) 11(a) (0.152) 0.010
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARET) 11(b) (0.152) 0.009

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEaRkHEMEZE KIS X
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB) (LA RBZ7)

Year ended  Fifteen months

31 March ended 31 March

2017 2016

BE-Z—+tF BE_Z—F
=H=+—8 =A=+—H

ILEE It+HEEA

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K et AR¥F T AREFT

(Loss)/profit for the year/period REE /HR (FE) HF (349,946) 29,835

Other comprehensive income AEE /HRHAE2ERE (£
for the year/period (after taxand BRFEBEREH I ERAE) .
reclassification adjustments):

ltem that will not be reclassified to BreEfsEEERs AR
profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of land and —EEFEERZ L RETR

buildings held for own use R 10 60,874 109,297
Items that may be reclassified Hign&HoBEEBn cBEA
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Available-for-sale financial assets: —AHEEERMEE:
net movement in fair value reserve AR EREEEFH 10 10,359 44,370
- Exchange differences on translation — — X525 8 S [EH =5
into presentation currency 10 (36,482) (51,770)
(26,123) (7,400)
Other comprehensive income AEE/HRHME2EKE
for the year/period 34,751 101,897
Total comprehensive income AEE /HREEREEE
for the year/period (315,195) 131,732
Attributable to: HUTALEMN:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARA AR R (319,230) 116,926
Non-controlling interests JEIE R ER 4,035 14,806
Total comprehensive income AEE /HREZEKSEE
for the year/period (315,195) 131,732

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial ~ 510122208 2 KisE WK &S M @wE
statements. Z A7 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= BB AR R R

At 31 March 2017 R=-ZE—+&F=F=+—H

(Expressed in RMB)  (LAAR#Z31)
At 31 March At 31 March At 31 December
2017 2016 2014
RIBE—tF RZIZE—F"F RZIZT—WEF
=A=+—H =A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—8
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
k=3 AREFTT ARSFT ARSFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and ER
equipment 12 3,175,792 3,207,530 2,964,546
Investment property LEYE 13 1,366,500 1,380,300 1,427,000
Intangible assets BREE 14 424,812 424,812 424,812
Goodwill HE 15 888,151 1,161,167 1,161,167
Prepayments for acquisitions  UxBE ¥ ¥ ~ Y& 1+ 3B
of properties 17 879,727 727,023 440,500
Available-for-sale financial AL ESREE
assets 18 367,612 335,400 283,200
Deferred tax assets BN IEE E 26(b) 2,265 2,660 15,403
7,104,859 7,238,892 6,716,628
Current assets RBEE
Short-term investments MHR & 19 150,274 628,163 462,317
Inventories FE 20 76,152 90,653 99,625
Trade and other receivables 7 AT B R % L JiE Ui
= 21 506,207 474,049 635,487
Cash at bank and on hand BIEERFERS 2 512,697 394,653 282,168
1,245,330 1,587,518 1,480,097
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERBRFREMENZR 23 940,931 1,190,828 1,225,179
Bank loans RITER 24(a) 790,874 1,401,550 1,140,024
Income tax payable FER TS 26(a) 37,354 42,093 72,495
1,769,159 2,634,471 2,437,698
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (523,829) (1,046,953) (957,601)
Total assets less current BEERABARS
liabilities 6,581,030 6,191,939 5,759,027
L [ ] [ ]
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R

At 31 March 2017 RZFE—tF=A=+—H

(Expressed in RMB)

(AAERBZ3)

At 31 March At 31 March At 31 December
2017 2016 2014
R-ZE—tF RKRZZT—FRF RIT—OF
=A=+-B =A=+—-H +=ZA=+-—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
fff &t ARMF T AREFT AREFT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loans RITER 24(b) 1,666,000 983,913 745,749
Deferred tax liabilities EXEBIBAEE 26(b) 597,725 579,617 543,186
2,263,725 1,563,530 1,288,935
NET ASSETS BEEFH 4,317,305 4,628,409 4,470,092
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R e 27
Share capital [N 198,480 198,480 197,058
Reserves [ 3,970,012 4,285,151 4,143,062
Total equity attributable to <2 7R RE(EEE
equity shareholders of the #2%8
Company 4,168,492 4,483,631 4,340,120
Non-controlling interests R R 148,813 144,778 129,972
TOTAL EQUITY S 4,317,305 4,628,409 4,470,092

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 June 2017.

Kam Hou Yin, John
o
Director

EF

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial
statements.

REZEN_T—LtFRAZTAARE
Ko F T3 o

Sha Yingjie
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBE X

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (XA KRB Z231)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREER

Shares

held under

share Property Non-
Share Share award Capital  Contributed ~ revaluation ~ Fairvale  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital - premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve Teserves reserve profits Total  interests equity

RERD

EERE] S

k& RAEE mAEMRD  AREE  SARR  EREE MAERE  EERE  EXBE  REEA fit kehEs  ERLE
RMBO00  RMB00O  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB000  RMBUO0  RMB000  RMB000  RMBUO0  RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFL

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

27(d) 20) 7)) 27)i) 27y 276 27 27 27(@)i)

(Wit (Kt lif3 if3 i3 i3 (Wt (Wit (Wit

270) 00)  20m)  2d)  2dw)  200)  27d6)  27d)  27aNi)

Balance at 1 January 2015 R=%-E%-F-H
£e 197,058 1,115,154 = (4717) 995,255 884,624 (38752) 120,041 195,253 876,204 4,340,120 129972 4,470,092

Changes in equity BREEE:

for the period:
Profit for the period B - - - - - - - - - 28 7654 2983
Other comprehensive income £ 2 EW - - - - - 109,297 37,218 - (51,770) - 94,745 7152 101897

Total comprehensive income A2 NGB
for the period - - - - - 109,297 37,218 - (51,770) 2,181 116,926 14,806 131,732

HRE
250)) - - 292) - - - - - - - (2922) - (2922)

Shares purchased under share R4} {7
award scheme (Note 25(b) (3 (f
Shares issued under share IR EEEERR IS EE LT
option scheme (Note 25@) {3 (Hf225(a)) 1422 18,700 - (2.479) - - - - - - 17,643 - 17,643
Equity-settled share-hased ~ ZREZENRATH

transactions (Note 25(a)) 235 (Mit256) - - - 11,864 - - - - - - 11,864 - 11,864
Transfer between reserves  EefBRER = = - (5437) - - - - - 5437 = = =
Appropriation to reserves BB Z = - - - - - - 4,86 - (4,286) - - -

1422 18,700 (2,922) 3948 - - - 4,286 - 1,151 26,585 - 26,585

Balance at 31 March 2016 R=Z-#xE=F
=t-R&H 198480 1,133,854 (2,922) (769) 995,255 993,921 (1,534) 124,327 143,483 899536 4,483,631 144,778 4,628,409

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial F101E 2208 2 W ek Th AR % 5 B 1§ sk
statements. Z B ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaS X

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB)  (UAARKEZ7)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARFER
Shares
held under
share Property Non-
Share Share award Capital Contributed revaluation Fairvalue  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
RERGEE
HHEENR NREfR M FER
k& BRBEE ft EAGE HABH R BE iR EXGE REEY Eh BE ERAE
RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARBFR ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
) 7)) 27) 7)) 27 27 d) 27 27(a)ii)
(W lif3 (Wit lif3 (Hizt (Hizt (Wit (Wit (Wit
00 ady) 200 2@6)  206)  276W) 2700 2766)  27Ki)
Balance at 1 April 2016  R=F-AEMA-A
& 198,480 1,133,854 (2922) (769) 995,255 993,921 (1,534) 124321 143,483 899,536 4,483,631 144,778 4,628,409
Changes in equity rEEREEY:
for the year:
(Loss)profit for the year A% (5%8) /7 - - - - - - - - - (3337 (35233) 2391 (349,946)
Other comprehensive income £ 1 2 E Mz - - - - - 60,874 8,715 - (36,482) = 33,107 1,644 34,751
Total comprehensive income  AEE2 AR ELE
for the year - - - - - 60,874 8,715 = (36,482)  (352.337)  (319,230) 4035 (315195
Equity-settled share-based BB MR G TA
transactions (Note 25(3)) fiit250)) - - - 4,091 - - - - - - 4,091 - 4,091
Transfer between reserves  GEREER
(Note 27(c)v) (Hiiz2nioi) - - = (8352) - - - - - 8352 - - -
Appropriation to reserves  EEZE - - - - - - - 4,326 - (4,326) - - -
5 5 - (a6 = - - 432 = 402 4,091 = 4,091
Balance at 31 March 2017 R=F-t&=§
=t-B&8 198480 1,133,854 (2922) (5,030) 995255 1,054,795 7181 128,653 107,001 551,225 4,168,492 148813 4,317,305

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERETMRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HE-F—+F=A=1—AIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (A R#Z3%I)
Year ended  Fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2017 2016
BE-FT—+tH BE_T—RF
=Z=A=+—-B =ZA=+-—H
HFE IF+AaEA
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ft i ARMF T ARETT
Operating activities REED
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEAT (B1B) & F (327,862) 71,688
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation expenses FERE 12 141,137 161,934
Impairment losses on goodwill EESEREY 3R] 15 273,016 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant  EEW¥E  BE k& E 2 B8
and equipment HEE 6(c) 18,074 2,255
Valuation gain on an investment REMFAERS
property 13 - (34,825)
Interest income FEWA 5 (18,479) (30,643)
Net finance costs B E RS 6(a) 136,851 209,463
Net income on a financial guarantee BEETEmMERIFRA
issued 5 (5,700) (7,023)
Changes in fair value of derivative NMESBMTEZ AR EE
financial instruments - (3,200)
Equity-settled share-based payment RIREEE ARG N 2 HIE
expenses 5 4,091 11,864
Changes in working capital: LIEE S )
Decrease in inventories FEZRD 14,501 8,972
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JRE Ui B 3R e L R M SR 2
other receivables (&) /Fd (23,369) 160,441
Decrease in trade and other payables — J&{<HBR 2% N ELfih & 5t 30 2 Bl 4> (210,407) (7,741)
Net cash generated from operations L& EKEL 2 FRE 1,853 543,185
Income tax paid EHFEH 26(a) (30,101) (67,004)
Net cash (used in)/generated from & F8 (£FH) EXz2ERE
operating activities (28,248) 476,181

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

)

BERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB)  (UAARKEZ7)
Year ended  Fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—+tF HE_ZT— %
=A=+-B =A=t+—H
HEE IETAREA
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ff ARETFTT AREFT
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of BEME BELIRBEHR
property, plant and equipment (32,860) (98,728)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREMR  WENREZE5R
plant and equipment 1,755 2,248
Payments for acquisitions of W% 2 K
properties (120,000) (369,000)
Payments for purchase of short-term BB R ERE X
investments (672,500) (2,503,420)
Proceeds from redemption of short- FEAEPSEEE K EF /O]
term investments 913,702 2,725,529
Payment for purchase of available-for- BEER[ftHELREEN R
sale financial asset (20,000) =
Payment for entrusted loan to a third RREFE=HAZEFTERMR
party (21,000) =
Interests received B UWF S 5,177 29,566
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZFHELE (FR)ZFHE
investing activities 54,274 (213,805)

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.

Z B0 o

F10122208 2 M s Th4A R 52 S I ISR R

HESLERERERAT

—N—tEEH |

.__iZIETZ T




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (XA KRB Z231)

Year ended  Fifteen months

31 March ended 31 March

2017 2016

BE-Z—+tF BE_Z—~F
=H=+—8 =A=+—H

ILEE It+HEMEA

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat AR¥FTT AREFTT

Financing activities BMEED
Proceeds from new bank loans ¥ IRITE TS RE 1,430,000 1,858,825
Repayment of bank loans BEETER (1,401,392) (1,433,984)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17 {# B IR 1 2 BT 15 218 - 17,643
Payments for purchase of shares under 12 %% I 7 2 Bh =1 2188 B I () 1t =X

share award scheme 25(b) - (2,922)
Payments for redemption of fE O] R B A K

warrants (15,184) -
Increase in restricted cash at bank SR ER1TIR S A0 22 (136,030) (19,293)
Other finance costs paid HiE e E KA (184,882) (236,519)

Net cash (used in)/generated from ®EZEE (£FH) EXZ2ERE
financing activities (307,488) 183,750

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BRERBEEEEEH 2F (BD)
cash equivalents /% m (281,462) 446,126

Cash and cash equivalents at the REEE /HEIzEERAS

beginning of the year/period ZEEE 22 655,946 209,359
Effect of foreign exchange rate PERRESH 2 E
changes 572 461

Cash and cash equivalents at the REAFE/HERRZRERRE
end of the year/period %HE1ER 22 375,056 655,946

The notes on pages 101 to 220 form part of these financial — Z5101E 2208 2 M5 T4 %2 5 BT IS wR R
. statements. ZBB7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”). The principal activities of the Group
are the operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The Company’'s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). The presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements in the prior
financial periods was HK$.

Since the Group mainly operates its business in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated and settled in Renminbi (“RMB"),
the directors of the Company consider that it is
more appropriate to use RMB as the presentation
currency of the Group and that the presentation
of consolidated financial statements in RMB can
provide more relevant information for management
to control and monitor the financial performance
of the Group. Accordingly, pursuant to a resolution
passed by the board of directors of the Company
dated 27 March 2017, the Group has changed its
presentation currency for the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements from HK$ to RMB
starting from the financial year ended 31 March
2017. The comparative figures in these consolidated
financial statements have been restated from HK$
to RMB accordingly.

For the purpose of translating the financial
statements of entities which have a functional
currency other than RMB for the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, the assets
and liabilities are translated into RMB at the
closing exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses for the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and cash flows are translated at the average
exchange rates for the relevant financial periods,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during
the year, in which case the exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of transactions are used. The share
capital, the share premium and certain of reserves
are translated at the exchange rates on the dates of
the relevant transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE (&)
(continued)

(b) MBHBREREE (/F)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

The relevant exchange rates used to re-present the
comparative figures at 31 December 2014 and 31
March 2016 and for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014 HK$1 = RMB
Average rate 0.7922
Closing rate 0.7889

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 HK$1 = RMB

Average rate 0.8117
Closing rate 0.8333

The change in presentation currency leads to
the change of carrying amount of exchange
reserve from HK$181,902,000 (credit balance)
and HK$184,815,000 (debit balance) to
RMB195,253,000 (credit balance) and
RMB143,843,000 (credit balance) as at 31
December 2014 and 31 March 2016, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for equity securities classified as
available-for-sale (see Note 2(f)), derivative financial
instruments (see Note 2(g)), land and buildings held
for own use (see Note 2(h)) and investment property
(see Note 2(i)) which are stated at their fair values.

BEHRVIR-_ZE—WNE+_A
=+—BEZZE—-—X"F=A
= t+t—RAUREBEZZT—XRF=
A=+—HIETAEAMLERE
FEAREREEERDT

BE-Z-—DIF 18T

+-A=+-HLEE AR¥
TR x 0.7922
Wi fE & 0.7889

B2-_T-—X~%F=H 18T

=t—HIt+HEAR ARE
EHEX 0.8117
Wi B 0.8333

2y EEFRS T —N4F
+ZA=+—HEZZE—KF
A=t RELFEBENDER
M EHE181,902,000/ 7T (&
7R %E) 184,815,000 7T
(fBEFHBzB)DNERARK
195,253,000 (B /5 # %) &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB523,829,000 and incurred a net
loss of RMB349,946,000 for the year then ended.
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis because the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
based on a cash flow forecast of the Group for
the year ending 31 March 2018 prepared by the
management, which take into account of unutilised
banking facilities of RMB349,125,000 as at 31
March 2017 (see Note 24(e)) and the Group’s ability
of financing new bank loans as needed, the Group
would have adequate funds to meet its liabilities as
and when they fall due at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

(BIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(l)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BB RWE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z — ‘tfﬁ A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 3/:’j7 ﬁ? BRIAAREZ3I)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEHE#)
(continued)
(e) Goodwill (e) BB
Goodwill represents the excess of: EEEicE
() the aggregate of the fair value of the i) FEEREBzZARE R
consideration transferred, the amount of any WS 5 2 (] JEYE AR
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and 2 & F R ANE B ST R F
the fair value of the Group's previously held BERMETREZARE
equity interests in the acquiree; over ZHEEE A
(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable (i) RUEEBHMtE 2w
assets and liabilities measured as at the E%‘EZTE%%%ﬁE&E%
acquisition date. ZFRRAR
When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess sl (i) i 1A Jﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁ
is recognised immediately in the consolidated RERE 183 %ﬁ?’é REEREW
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain o
purchase.
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated HEE LAW$M%;&M@J§5T§§U
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business R-EBEHEECHBED
combination is allocated to each cash-generating K?E%TT%’V%ZTMHA& ‘:M%
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is B EREELBEMNIACEL
expected to benefit from the synergies of the B 2 B4 - W ST RIE R
combination and is tested annually for impairment 2 CRMEE200G) ) °
(see Note 2(I)(ii)).
(f) Investments in debt and equity securities (f) EEREZESRE
The Group's policies for investments in debt $%Z1§%&%ﬁﬁ§f%&ﬁﬂ
and equity securities, other than investments in F(RHMEAR BEARRE
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, are as MA%Z&A RN AT
follows:
Investments in debt and equity securities not at fair WA R ERBERTIRNERS
value through profit or loss are initially stated at REZFBHFIEE %ﬂ*?ﬁz@ﬁfﬁ
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, nEEEEERR SRR
where fair value is their transaction price unless it is ERAREBERERSER: H?F
determined that the fair value at initial recognition NEHERZ AR BHERZERE
differs from the transaction price and that fair FrRR - ek A 7 B LAE BB T35
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active RA AR EERARZAMRE
market for an identical asset or liability or based BEERBAIBEMISENRZ
on a valuation technique that uses only data from SR A M ERM ] b E
observable markets. 2K e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities which do
not fall into the categories of loans and receivables,
investments in securities held for trading or held-to-
maturity are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from equity securities and
interest income from debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit
or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
Notes 2(v)(v) and 2(v)(vi), respectively.

When the investments in debt and equity securities
are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(I)(i)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments in debt
and equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments may be embedded
in other financial instruments, for example,
interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 2(o)) with
an embedded warrant. Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely
related to those of the host contract; the terms of
the embedded derivatives would meet the definition
of a stand-alone derivative if they are contained in a
separate contract; and the combined contract is not
held for trading or designated at fair value. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes therein recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments are classified
as assets when their fair value is positive, or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different
transactions are only offset if the transactions
are with the same counterparty, a legal right of
offsetting exists, and the parties intend to settle the
cash flows on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be

credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual values, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated useful

lives
Land and buildings held for 20-50 years
own use carried at fair value
Residential properties held for 3-35 years
own use carried at cost and
leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and 3-28 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

()

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(v)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)(ii)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as land and
buildings held for own use (see Note 2(h)) or
an investment property (see Note 2(i)).

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17

[
W L h
- __'._‘i
) iy
4

2

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

TESTBER (8)

(k)

HEEE
HAKEEE —BL AR
EHRABENN —EH—FS|
PR RMESERX-—FEER
EXNZBERFEEEZIER Al
ZH(H—RRHE—RIXS
M) RHERBRBEE -%E
EDRBEL B2 BE ARG
tEH - MAmEEEEAGHEE
ZIERE

() FEEAEZEEZDE

AEEREBEEEREE
E MEBREESHEEZ
BEZBAEBMDER LD
BETAKE AREE
BEAREREMAERSE
ZEE-MEKKEHEEE
B2 BAEMD B ke & [ #R
WYAEEHE AR

BREZEHE-

(i) EREHEEEHR
WEREE AL EHRE
EREE AIREHEHEX
2z BN B E AR E

SETHRA UERE
Bam AINRR - M A H At
EER T BN RMRER
EEEMELENKAER
AR S A& PP B ) 3%
Bz A ERED
ERAREEFNKAEN
M -EHEER
ELMETHEATEER
B HER

WEREEEHEREZ
Tz RARIERE FH
REGREH BRIFZY
EWOBRBIEFERZLE
i KT (ALK E2(h)) %
wEWE (RHE20)) -



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z — & ‘tfﬁ A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEHE#)
(continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt (i) BEEREZEFRERE
and equity securities and receivables Wz (&)

(continued)

For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEEHBE(#)
(continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE(Z)

() Impairment of investments in debt (i) BEEREZEFRERIE

and equity securities and receivables Wk 2z (&)
(continued)
Impairment losses are written off against WEBEEEEHERARE
the corresponding assets directly, except E-ERERARREKE
for impairment losses recognised in respect U [ # & 37 S 5T 2 IR
of receivable whose recovery is considered K2 EERREERER
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the SheFEBLBER T RERZ
impairment losses for doubtful debts are BEBERBEERLCS
recorded using an allowance account. When EASEEAKDKEY
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, RoEEAEIZNENE
the amount considered irrecoverable is e HEERKT M
written off against the receivable directly and - i £ ] 5] A % 4 AR R
any amounts held in the allowance account EEEEN S E Y B E
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent | - H 1& & W m z /i 2 &
recoveries of amounts previously charged to BEERPTTANSE 8
the allowance account are reversed against FEBEBRPER -BE
the allowance account. Other changes in the BRIz HAth BB R H 12 IR
allowance account and subsequent recoveries Bl ZRIEEZEMIEN S
of amounts previously written off directly are RiBa AR

recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets (i) BEtEEZBE
Internal and external sources of information REERZ®REHRR
are reviewed at the end of each reporting N B 2 IR B K DA E8 R
period to identify indications that the THEERS LB ED
following assets may be impaired or, except Rk BREEIN BECHE
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss RZBEBEETNBEFEESK
previously recognised no longer exists or may R

have decreased:

—~  property, plant and equipment (other - ME - BEL&ZE
than land and buildings carried at (REWESBTEZ
revalued amounts); T RAEFRRIN)

- intangible assets; - EREE:

—  goodwill; - AE:

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions - WEMEZERBE
of properties; and NHRIE: R

— investments in subsidiaries in the — RARRBZEHBRR
Company's statement of financial KARMB AR 2R
position. B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—Z

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHE#)
(continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE(Z)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EMMEEZHRME (&)
—  Reversals of impairment losses — REEERELD
In respect of assets other than goodwill, HBREBINCEEM
an impairment loss is reversed if there = - fiw A LA TE AT UK
has been a favourable change in OB EEER
the estimates used to determine the e Blg KR E
recoverable amount. An impairment loss EERD-mMABEBY
in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 27 REEER T
@ o

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited PR O 2 BEEEE
to the asset’s carrying amount that PR 74 i o 3z A X 3R 1
would have been determined had no FEERBERBEM
impairment loss been recognised in prior AEEZEERE
years. Reversals of impairment losses are BB 2 R/ E S
credited to profit or loss in the year in BERRABRE 2 FE

which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(I)(i) and 2(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(I)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 2(I)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs and,
where applicable, the fair value of the embedded
derivative financial instruments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

—  Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

TESTBER (8)

(s) BERH (&)
(i) Rk ()

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company's shares on grant
date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEHE#)
(continued)
(t) Income tax (continued) (t) Fs®H (&)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BNVERFR TE 45 04 S IR AE B IR AL BR LA

movements therein, are presented separately from NEBEFIBILES TR

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are HomMARRNAEEABEE

offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax TG BN BT I8 & A B BN HA T

assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company HEEEHE BNE A TEIME

or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set 4 BIBDEARE I8 & 2= B RN AT 18

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities BEEE  MELENRIEEZER|H

and the following additional conditions are met: B IB A EEE:

-~ in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, — BAENEBEEEREEM
the Company or the Group intends either to TOARAIRAEEEIZ
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and SR HLAE 4L B o [F] A IR
settle the liability simultaneously; or BERBENBME: X

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - HEEMBEEKRAEGEM
if they relate to income taxes levied by the = - i B2 AR [R] A 75 4 4 Bt
same taxation authority on either: WTFHEAF —BRBRZAE

A :
—  the same taxable entity; or — RA-—ERREE: K
-  different taxable entities, which, in — ATRERBEE M
each future period in which significant ZEEBERNSEER
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or 78 1 3k Y B3R RE 7 18
assets are expected to be settled or BEXEBEEZERS
recovered, intend to realise the current 2 Bz HifE - #ik
tax assets and settle the current tax FRREEFR AT
liabilities on a net basis or realise and BEERFNEIEAT
settle simultaneously. HEEXFRERE
ERENEE-
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (u BERIREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain WE AEBEHARAARE &

timing or amount when the Group or the Company EZEHRELRESEERR -

has a legal or constructive obligation arising as METZEARIJEGERL

a result of a past event, it is probable that an ER IR WA EH AT 52 2 1

outflow of economic benefits will be required to o EgRRERNEENEZ

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be BERRARE NREBRHEE
made. Where the time value of money is material, BEEXRK BEIRETETE
provisions are stated at the present value of the ERFPRAXZBEBEAR-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(v)

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales are
recognised when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue or net income excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any sales discounts.
No revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management
involvement with the goods.

(ii) Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—Z

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle
the customers to the right to exchange
for products offered under the customer
loyalty programme. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the
programme credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the
programme credits is estimated by reference
to the fair value of the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme, adjusted to take into account
the expected forfeiture rate. Such amount
is deferred and revenue is recognised when
the programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments

is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

BE—
(BRIF=BEEH

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)

(2)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(iii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vij The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member

of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(z) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 12, 13, 15, 25 and 28 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of land and buildings held for own use,
investment property, goodwill impairment, fair value of
share options granted and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the
required payments. The management bases the
estimates on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below cost. The determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement from the
management. When making such judgement, the
Group considers a variety of factors, including but
not limited to the normal volatility of the security
price, the length of the period over which the fair
value is lower than cost, the magnitude of the
decline in fair value and the financial position of the
investee.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(I)(ii). The
carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or, except for
goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and the residual values of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful
lives and the residual values are based on historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net income from concession sales, rental
income from operating leases and management and
administrative service fee income. The amount of
each significant category of revenue and net income
is analysed as follows:

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

4 WaERkDEWHEE (4)

(a)

Wz ()
WatERAEFPEhZEmiHEE
B FAEEHEFRA KE
HEZESWA AREERTT
BARTE BUA o & F BUas KF
WARERl 2Bz ifran | :

Fifteen months

Year ended ended

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

BE-FT—+tH BE_T—RF

ZA=+—-B =A=+—H

HFE I+ H1EA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETFTT AREFT

Sales of goods EmiHE 579,412 755,527

Net income from concession sales T EEHEFIRA 416,425 641,173

Rental income from operating leases ~ KZHEZHL WA 85,815 134,629
Management and administrative service &I R {THIREE A

fee income 63,101 72,410

1,144,753 1,603,739

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s customer base is diversified and
has no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: RMBNIl). Details of concentrations of
credit risk are set out in Note 28(a).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI S EIEH  BRIUARKZZ])

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WaERkDEWHEE (4)

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wz (&)
Information on gross revenue BB R ERZER
Gross revenue represents the gross amount B REEREE FTAZTER
arising from the sales of goods and concession PZRHEEHEE KEHEY
sales charged to retail customers, and rental WA LA K AP WER 2 B
income from operating leases and management RITHARFS B WA 2 4858 -
and administrative service fee income charged to
tenants.

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-Z—+tF HE-ZT— %
=A=+—H =A=+—H
LEE IE+AR@EA
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETT

Sales of goods EmidE 579,412 755,527
Gross revenue from concession sales BB E v B 2,466,370 3,520,778
Rental income from operating leases K& FHE 7L A 85,815 134,629
Management and administrative service &3 & 1T HEURTE & Uk A
fee income 63,101 72,410
3,194,698 4,483,344
Further details regarding the Group's principal ERASEXEXB 2 E—FERR
activities are disclosed below. TR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 7 department stores and
a shopping mall at the end of the reporting
period. During the year, one of the Group's
department stores has been closed.

Supermarkets: this segment operates 7
supermarkets.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

4 WaERkDEWHEE (4)

(b)

DEEE (&)

AEEEBEGRIUEERAR
B BIRD A RERRFAEM
5 ORNERAKREZZRRE
BEEEANSBREER TR KE
B 2R A T MIE R R E 2 5T
2] -MELE D RS HABX
ATNA#RE D8 :

s BERALEEBOHL R
BEMR HOoMEREL
REERS K —REYTH
DERFR AEE—FK
BERBE/HEA-

s HBAMBL: HOHMEREL
REBRT 5 ET -

(i) DEBEF
R BB E D ERIA
EABERME  A&%E
= AR E IR E BL ORI & AT
MEDPBEIEEE H
EEWMT

Yz BRI A A K i 2 9
RzaHmENE 2R
& E D AT E AW R F
WA %% D BFTE L
FISZ o AT > 7 2B 2 B P2
HEL A TErE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA"” i.e. “adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded
as including interest income, changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments,
and other financial charges and income, and
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets and valuation gain or loss
on investment property. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs. No inter-
segment sales have occurred for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31
March 2017 and the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016 is set out below.
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H R w3 E &
HIBRRBENWEERER
BEZRBEFBEHEIEED
¥z HERESEE B
HE & A EEBITDA A&
B 2 B F) T K 1% Y
EEBRER DS 2IEE
ELE — T B
KANBITHAAE-BEZ
T—+F=A=+—HIt
FEREE_T—XRFE=
A=+—HIE+HRM@AY
mEEE D ERESHE -

BERBETEEHAR
BreMERERD
Ao it - B B A E
LEBEARZENZR-

INTHHEEBEAEE 2T
WENPHBERTIREFA
CEEZESREERE A
HEERBE T —+F
=SA=t—-BHLEELRH
EE—RF=ZA=1+—
BiEt+R@ASEERK
FEDERIR

R SEHEERER AR
:i—%\/—tﬂifﬁﬁl




Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 15 8ok WY &
For the year ended 31 March 2017 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

—tF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BrIF=B1EH

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b)

(i)

(i) Segment information (continued)

BAIUNRIEL5))
4 WamKkoa®mE (4)

DEEE (&)

DEEH (E)

Year ended 31 March 2017

BE-_Z—tHF=A=1+—HLEE
Department
stores and
shopping
mall Supermarkets Total
BERER
YO AR TIS At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥FT AR®TrT
Revenue and net income 4 REE 7 Wz &iF
from external customers UYL A K Al & H &
and reportable segment U285 &R U A
revenue and net income 867,726 277,027 1,144,753
Reportable segment profit a] ¥z 25 55 36 Y4 7]
(adjusted EBITDA) (4% A EEEBITDA) 226,884 4,986 231,870
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
HE-_ZT—A"F=-A=+—HBLETHMEA
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEES K
YL FBAR T % st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBEFIT ARMTT ARKTFIT
Revenue and net income 4R E P 2 Wz & F
from external customers U A K A ¥ &5 5 56
and reportable segment Uz & IFE U A
revenue and net income 1,226,032 377,707 1,603,739
Reportable segment profit =] & 2 264 £l
(adjusted EBITDA) (&R EZEBITDA ) 400,787 12,784 413,571

.. ‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHREKDTHHRE (&)

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(b) DEHmE (&)
(i) "I E 7 5L AR

profit
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—+tF HE_Z—1 %
=H=+—H =A=+t—H
ItEE IE+H@EA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARSFT
Reportable segment profit B3R 4 5 2656 F 231,870 413,571
Other revenue H b U3 24,179 37,666
Depreciation expenses FERX (141,137) (161,934)
Impairment losses on goodwill BEREEE (273,016) -
Valuation gain on an investment REMEMRERE
property - 34,825
Net finance costs B %8 R (136,851) (209,463)
Changes in fair value of derivative TEEMTAY
financial instruments NI = 3,200
Unallocated head office and R BL A8 ES &
corporate administration expenses ANETTHR X (32,907) (46,177)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (BIB) % F (327,862) 71,688
OTHER REVENUE 5 Hitlkz=
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—+tHF HE_Z—1F
=H=+t—-B =ZA=+—8H
LtEE IEt+H@EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Interest income FEWA 18,479 30,643
Net income on a financial guarantee issued 3772 FBER 2 FWA 5,700 7,023
24,179 37,666
[ ] L] [ ]
O STEEEERERAT

S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 15 8ok WY &
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-ZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(a) Net finance costs:

—tF=A=+—HILFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

Bx Bt Al
A)

(a) MBBERFHE:

BRBLAT (E5IR) A
(B38) /HMEME (5

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-2—t& BZ-_T— %
=A=+-B =A=+—H
EEE E+HEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
Interest expenses on bank loans RITERZFEZH 158,329 222,992
Bank charges and other finance costs ﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬂ RE MM E A 7,829 12,402
Total borrowing costs BEBRA 166,158 235,394
Less: interest expense capitalised into B BB AMRBYERNR
prepayments for acquisitions of HZNBRX
properties (26,704) =
Finance income on entrusted loan froma £=FZEH 2
third party I TGN (847) (26,032)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss X (W), BiEFEE (1,756) 101
136,851 209,463

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate

of 7% per annum (see Note 17).

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(BIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBiA (BB BF (&)
(continued)
(b) Staff costs: (b) BI A
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-ZE—+tF HEZZT— %
=Z=A=+—-B =ZA=+-—H
LEE IE+AR@EA
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBF T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMER 135,984 176,787
Contributions to defined contribution A 7 28 it FUR KA Sl A3
retirement plans 12,704 14,966
Equity-settled share-based payment FREE AR ME ST B IR R IE A B DA R
expenses in respect of share option L
scheme (see Note 25(a)) (EKt7$25(a)) 651 4,640
149,339 196,393

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 20% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

AEENPEXZZHBRRZ
BESHEM T HTHEBEE 2 E
BEFCRKEME S B % F
MBARAZREELRAFHEZ
20%[Ra% E T &K - RIE bt
RKEE ZEHBAREER
FEHIEFRINFIRIS AR Lt
BRI ZERTEFHFHFEK
FED LR ZRKER -

R SEHEERER AR
:i—%\/—tﬂifﬁﬁl




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

HE-F—+F=A=+—AIFE

(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 FRBiAT (BE) BR (4)
(continued)
(b) Staff costs: (continued) (b) BIRA&: (&)
The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident AEBETREEERFERER
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the T EIEA REBERES 2 DA
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme e T 2 EBEE— (Bl
Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of NEEFE ([REBERETE]) -
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF et A —ERBLXTEA
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan BIR 2 ERMRETE - RIREE
administered by an independent trustee. Under the 8- BEEXREEEHARKE
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are BHEBHE % (BAEBE
each required to make contributions to the plan at & PR A30,0007 7T ) M &1 &4
5% of the employees’ relevant salaries, subject to o MEE R B 2 KA
a cap of monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000. & -
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of BRIEH B FEHRIN AEE
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual MEMREMRAEBNNIRZE
contributions. fFo
(c) Other items: () HtER:
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z2—+tHF BZ_ZT— %
ZA=t+-B =A=1-H
EEE tt+HMEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®FT
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R &
— statutory audit service —EEBZRS 3,600 4,250
— other services — Hfth R %5 800 510
Net loss on disposal of property, plant ~ EEW¥  BELBRE 2 EBT
and equipment b5 18,074 2,255

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 SZEBBEXRAMEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEeBEERAZHIEE:

profit or loss represents:

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-Z—+tHF HE_ZT— 1%
=A=t-B =A=t+-A
IEEE E+HEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARETT

Current taxation (see Note 26(a)): KERE (2 H1iE260)) -
— Provision for PRC Corporate Income —HRBPEMGHERE
Tax 27,984 42,264
— Over-provision in respect of prior —BREFEBRREEE
years (2,622) (5,662)
25,362 36,602
Deferred taxation (see Note 26(b)): ERERE (A A7F26(0)) -
— Origination and reversal of temporary —ERZ27E4 K
differences B (3,278) (55)
— Write-down of deferred tax assets —WOREE TR E - 5,306
(3,278) 5,251
22,084 41,853

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=-T—+tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBBRAMES (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) MEBEXHRE (FHE) &
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax MZREAREZRAGOT :
rates:

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-Z—+tF HE-ZT— %
=H=t+—-H =A=+—8H
ILEE IE+AR@EA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT ARBF T

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRiE (E38) %A (327,862) 71,688
Expected tax on profit before tax, BREIATE R 2 TREARIIE - R

calculated at the rates applicable to MR A ERES A2 E

profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned ~ FAHi K=t & ( B H31() - (i) &

(see Notes (i), (ii) and (i) (iii)) (74,289) 33,399
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N A 1 2 ) 2 Bt 75 52 2 78,019 16,752
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) MIBE R (BHZEG)) (15,586) (26,533)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERRDAREERB 2 HEE

recognised & 36,562 18,611
Tax effect of write-down of deferred tax MUBEEHRIBEE 2 M5 T £

assets - 5,306
Over-provision in respect of prior years &7 & & R & & (2,622) (5,662)
Income tax ke 22,084 41,853

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made, as
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: RMBNil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 25% for the year ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016: 25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020.

mEBBERAFES (4)

(b) BIEXHRETERIZERB
RZRABWMT: (&)

GEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AR R RAEEREBEMAK
M ZHWE AR BBRNE SR
EBHRHEERA165% (BE-Z
—NEZA=t+—HILT+HE
A:165%) ARARA R
A& B R E S e A L 2 B
BRARIBE_T—tF=A8
=+ —BIEFETEEMNE
BRIEH 2 ERERA (BE
—E-—RNF=ZA=+—H81t
T+THEA: AREZIL) '
W AR BB SRS R AE L B -

ARARAEERTE (B
FB ) ASNBEI SR A S 2 Bt
BRRIREE S 8 T E
R AR RERBBGRER
PS5t o

HE_ZT—t+t&=HA=+—H
WEEE AEBMRBERKLZ
BB A Rl BB AN B 2 TS
HBER25% (BEZZT—~
FZA=Z+—HBIL+HEAR:
25% ) °

RZZE——F AEEETE
HR B AR 7 2 T R R EEAS A B
RBRIX GREZBEAR
HEFEE ARG EE BT

EREBABBRE Wi
RZB——FE_T_TFF
FEX15% 2 BBFBRAMERN
BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

EEHM
RIFEE R BHEDIFE383(1)IER M A 7]
(HEEEMREER) ROIE 28 E

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part

2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ZEEFHMWOT :
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Year ended 31 March 2017
BE-E-tEZB=1-HLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary ~ scheme  Termination Share-hased
fees in kind bonuses contributions  benefits  Sub-total  payments Total
He:
EHRAM B
Eshe EUER  MERL O HEER  KLEA Mt RBAR 5t
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
AEEFL AREFn ARETr ARETn ARETT ARETn AREFn ARETR
(Note (i)
(W)
Executive directors HiEE
M. W Yijan (Chairman) 8854 (15) 4,336 966 - 16 - 5318 10 538
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter BELLE 1,561 114 151 16 - 1,842 - 1,842
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (ceased tobe  BIRALE (RZE—+E=AN
director on 8 March 2017) ATEERES) 1858 516 1,106 16 838 4,334 57 4,391
Mr. Sha Yingjie DERLE 83 - - - - 83 35 118
Non-executive directors FHEE
Mr. Chen Shuai BRaLE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Cao Yonggang BARAE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiag HFELE 9% - - - - 9% 57 151
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFH/TEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng mELLE 260 - - - - 260 - 260
Ms. Sun Zhili ERBaT 260 - - - - 260 - 260
Dr. Cao Guog EEAT 260 - - - - 260 - 260
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LEEEE 260 - - - - 260 - 260
8,972 1,59 1,257 ] 838 12,1 159 12,870

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bf %% 3R 3k MY &
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

8 EEFM (&)

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
HEZ-T-A"E-B=t-HLTAEA

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme ~ Termination Share-based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions benefits ~ Sub-total  payments Total
R BRI
EZpe  EMET  MERA HEEN  RLREA U S g
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKFT ARETR
(Note i)
()
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. W Yijian (Chairman) R-B5k(2E) 5073 1,067 - 19 - 6,159 13 6,282
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (re-designated BB &4 (R=3-1fF
on August 2015) NREfE) 950 - - 10 - 960 - 90
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin PEARE 1,960 657 1481 19 - 4117 366 4,483
Mr. Sha Yingjie DEAEE 97 - - - - 97 29 306
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (resigned on BoEss (RZE2-1F0
17 May 2015) AT EARE) = = = = = = = =
Non-executive directors Fi1ES
Mr. Chen Shuai REEE = = = = = = = =
Mr. Cao Yonggang (appointed on EXBLE(R-E-n%E
17 May 2015) ATtBEZE) = = = = = = = =
Mr. Qu Jiag BRELE 110 - - - - 110 366 476
Independent non-executive directors BU#417EZ
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (appointed on GELLE (R=5-1FE
17 May 2015) At+RAEEH) m - - - - m = M
Ms. Sun Zhili (appointed on 17 May 2015)  EhEZ+ (A-F-1&%
RATLREZT) 212 - - - - m - 21
Dr. Cao Guog (appointed on EAMET (R=5-18
5 November 2015) T-ARREZA) 9 - - - - 9 - 9
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LHELE 304 - - - - 304 = 304
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (resigned on BEAEE(R-E-REN
7 August 2015) AEREE) 146 - - - - 146 - 146
Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May 2015) ERgt(N=3-1%1A
HHARH) 9 - - - - 9 - 9
9,256 1,724 1,481 18 - 12509 108 13593
Note: Bt &
(i)  These represent the estimated value of share options 0) ZESBEEBEAATBERESZ

granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option schemes. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note
2(s)(ii). The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of share options granted, are
disclosed in the directors’ report and Note 25.

BRTEEzBRRgzAHEE &
EEREZBESREAEEIIN
B FE2()DA I AR 5 2 B RTEIR
AE-ARULEEMERNZFRE 2
BREIBGRAER T ZEBRERE
ERNEFSRE RMFE2HKE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=-T—+tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EeHAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, EhEZmHATH =2 (HEZ
three (fifteen months ended 31 March 2016: two) are TE—RNFE=ZA=+—BIt+HEA:
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8. WE)BES  MEAMSFBERHE
8= °
The emoluments in respect of the other two (fifteen EAEMME (BE-T—XRF=A
months ended 31 March 2016: three) individuals are as —+t—HITHMBEA: =) AL 2B
follows: ST
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March

2017 2016
BE-F-tF HE-_TF
=ZA=+—-A =Z=A=f-H

LEE LE+AEA

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 2B R E A E ¥E T 1,975 2,647

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 631 1,550

Retirement scheme contributions RIRGFEIEE R = 28

Share-based payments LSRR EA 28 343

2,634 4,568

The emoluments of the two (fifteen months ended 31 WaE(HE-_ZE—XR"F=HA=1+—H

March 2016: three) individuals who are not directors and IF+RER: =) WIEEEEENA

who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the EERELRESF AT ZEAMALT T
Group are within the following bands: BN LA T &

Fifteen months

Year ended ended

31 March 31 March

2017 2016

BE-Z—+t& BE_Z—F
=A=t+—H =H= = H
IEFE IF+AR@EA

Number of Number of
individuals individuals
18 B A E ERIDN
RMBNil to RMB1,000,000 AREZTTE

AR #1,000,0007T 1 =

RMB 1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017CE
AR #2,000,0007T 1 3

L [ ] [ ]

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
LAnnuaI Report 2016/17

Z :__*ﬁ




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10

Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2017

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

—tF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIFAEHEH BRAIKAREZS)

Hfth 2 | W &=

EEM 2RSS BOEEBE
7

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016

HE-E-tF=fA=1-AL%E HEZS- A EZA=T-ALTHEA
Before Net-of- Before Net-of-
tax Tax tax tax Tax tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BEEm nk 3 i ik
k1 RERY fEeH BHeE A% HEeE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT ARETT ARETn AREFT AREFTI  ARETR
(Note 26(b)) (Note 26(b))
(W26(b) (Ki26()
Surplus on revaluation of land  EftEfEARLHEETZ
and buildings held forown &% (£fiit12)
use (see Note 12) 80,802 (19,928) 60,874 145,390 (36,093) 109,297
Available-for-sale financial EHESREE:
assets:
net movement in fairvalue ~ AL EHEEDEE
reserve 12,212 (1,853) 10,359 52,200 (7,830) 44,370
Exchange differences on AER2IIER Y ER S
translation into presentation
currency (36,482) - (36,482) (51,770) - (51,770)
Other comprehensive income £t 2 E i & 56,532 (21,781) 34,751 145,820 (43923) 101,897

There was no reclassification adjustment relating to
components of other comprehensive income during the
year (fifteen months ended 31 March 2016: Nil).

Emlﬂ*ﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬂiﬁl&ﬁ-& B2
BN BERB(BE_T—XRF=H
=t—RALt+RHER:E)-

HESEEERRARAT
—F—/—LEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

1 8k (E8) &7

(a) BEREAX(FE) EF
EREXRBEDERARRRK
RIE(LEE AR 352,337,000
T(BE=ZZ—XR"F=A=1+—
BHE+RMB@A G AR
22,181,0007T) & F N E 170
HE S ¥5 202,312,693,0000% & &
BRABKRELIR (BEZZ
—ARNEZA=Z+—BLt+AHE
A :2,303,561,0000% & @ A& &
ATRRELER)GFENAT

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB352,337,000 (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016: profit of RMB22,181,000)
and the weighted average number of
2,312,693,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares (fifteen months ended 31 March 2016:
2,303,561,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares) in issue during the year calculated as
follows:

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—+tHF BE_ZT—RF
=H=+t—-H =A=+—8
IEEE IF+HEA
‘000 ‘000
IR TR
Issued ordinary and convertible RZZE—R"EMA—H/=%
preference shares at 1 April 2016/ —hF-A—BZBERTLRE
1 January 2015 (see Note (i) 8% K% AT #23% 18 2 %
(RHE) 2,312,693 2,298,233
Effect of shares purchased RERMREFTEBERD 25
under a share award scheme & (B [ftz25(b)%27(c)ii))
(see Notes 25(b) and 27(c)(ii) - (2,591)
Effect of shares issued under share BEERESEEHTRO 2
option scheme (see Note 25(a)) 2 (AKE25a) = 7,919
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—HZ TEBR R A#H
and convertible preference shares at IR (2 S AR N4 3 &
31 March (see Note (i)) (R HFEEG)) 2,312,693 2,303,561
Note: Bt &%

(i)

The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation
of basic (loss)/earnings per share, the convertible
preference shares issued have been included in the
calculation of the weighted average number of
shares in issue.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB352,337,000 (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016: profit of RMB22,181,000)
and the weighted average number of
2,312,693,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares (diluted) (fifteen months ended 31 March
2016: 2,421,309,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (diluted)), calculated as follows:

11 SR (B8) &R &)

(b) ER#EE (F5EB) EF
(#&)
ERBSEBNERKADRRK
HIE(5EE ARM352,337,000
ﬁ(ﬁﬁ_g—/\izﬂz—f——
BE+HRBEA : GA AR
22,181,0007T ) K h0#E F 15 £&
2,312,693,0000% & i A% K 7] 3
RELRKR (BE) (HEZF

—RNFE=ZA=Z+—BLt+AHE
A :2,421,309,0000% & & A% &
ATMREBER (BE) )it E W

T
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—tHF HE_T—RF
=B=+-BH =A=+—H
HFE E+HEA
‘000 ‘000
FiR T
Weighted average number of ordinary  R=A=+—Hz L@ LA
and convertible preference shares at 31 # A8 5E B 04 F 15 &
March 2,312,693 2,303,561
Effect of conversion of convertible EHRABRREER I TE
preference shares - 117,707
Effect of deemed issue of shares under 18 BRI A1 5] B A i =t 81 %
the Company’s share option schemes TRz #E - 41
Weighted average number of ordinary WR=A=+—BZE@BKR KA #
and convertible preference shares REBERIMET DS (#8)
(diluted) at 31 March 2,312,693 2,421,309
L ] L ] L]
HESHEEEERERAT
BN EEER

._—'}"—.f: '




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

12 V¥ BERKXE

Residential
properties
landand  held for own
buildings Use carried
held for at cost and Furniture,
own Use carried leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
at fair value ~ improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
RARE5IR. RS 5
BEER fEEREEME  GRCEER
THRET REEMERE % EHTE fRTE st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ABETT  ARETT  AREFD  AREFR
Cost or valuation: HASGE:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-fA—-H 2,693,200 431,825 98,566 9,181 6,613 3,239,385
Exchange adjustments B A% - 30 906 18 - 954
Redlassifcation from investment property ik &NEEH A E
(see Note 13) (ZHiE13) 81,525 - - - - 81,525
Additions "E 93,170 30,000 9,980 850 47 946 181,946
Transfer in/(out) g21/(1) = 39,499 7471 - (46,970) -
Disposals RE - (17,975) (3,459) (421) - (21,855)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10)  EftBs (2 H#10) 145,390 - - - - 145,390
Less: elimination of accumulated B EEETTE
depreciation (101,375) - - - - (101,375)
At31 March 2016 R-2-AEZA=1-B 2011910 483319 113464 9628 7589 3525970
Representing: K
Cost B - 483,379 113,464 9,628 7,589 614,060
Valuation - 31 March 2016 AE-ZF-7"E=A=t-0 2911910 - - - - 2911910
2,911,910 483,379 113,464 9,628 7,589 3,525,970
Accumulated depreciation and ZANERAERS:
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-f—H - 228,243 39,107 7489 - 274,839
Exchange adjustments B A% - 18 371 5 - 394
Charge for the period Bnme 101,375 43920 15,864 775 - 161,934
Written back on disposals REREMD - (14,007) (2,937) (408) - (17,352)
Elimination on revaluation BfEEEH 101,375 - - - = (101,375)
At 31 March 2016 R-Z-REZA=1-H - 258,174 52,405 7861 - 318,440
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 March 2016 RZE-REZA=T-H 2,911,910 225,205 61,059 1,767 7,589 3,207,530

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(BRIFAEHEH BRAIKAREZS)

12 M BEKRE (&)

(continued)
Residential
properties
Land and  held for own
buildings ~ use carried
held for ~ at cost and Furniture,
own use carried leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
at fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
YRS 2
KB
NAAESIR FENER
BEER HE B %ER
THREF NERE #f EgIR EBIR gt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR  AREFR  ARETT  ARETR  ARMTr  AREFR
Cost or valuation: HAGGE:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-/~ENA-H 2,911,910 483,379 113,464 9,628 7,589 3,525,970
Exchange adjustments A% - 36 1,112 2 - 1,170
Reclassification from investment property & HEEHHE 13,800 - - - - 13,800
Additions ARE - - 8,507 - 25,663 34,170
Transfer inflout) B8/ (i) 6,280 15,158 - - (21,438) -
Disposals (see Note (i) RE(ZNE) - (35,868) (20,444) (2,210) - (58,522)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) ~ EfE B (ZH#10) 80,802 - - - - 80,802
Less: elimination of accumulated R RHZHITE
depreciation (87,082) - - - - (87,082)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=A=1-A 2,925,710 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 3,510,308
Representing: i
Cost AA - 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 584,598
Valuation - 31 March 2017 E-—5—tE=A=1-H 2925710 - - - - 2,925,710
2,925,710 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 3,510,308
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAERSE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~EMA-A - 258,174 52,405 7,861 - 318,440
Exchange adjustments B - 2 681 12 - 714
Charge for the year Enirg 87,082 35,127 18,611 37 - 141,137
Written back on disposals (see Note () REREE (ZATE()) - (27,661) (8,933) (2,099) - (38,693)
Elimination on revaluation LR (87,082) - - - - (87,082)
At 31 March 2017 RZF-tF=A=1-H - 265,661 62,764 6,091 - 334,516
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=A=1-A 2,925,710 197,044 39,875 1,349 11,814 3,175,792
Note: Bt &
(i)  The Group's department store operated in Xinjiang, the 0) HARESHEERETNE AEEHE

PRC, has been closed since 1 August 2016 due to its
underperformed operational result. Accordingly, items
of property, plant and equipment with net book value
of RMB17,064,000 associated with this operation were
disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2017,
resulting in a loss on disposal of RMB16,862,000.

FRNBLCENEERBER T
—~NENA—BE@EE Al BRE
SEE A R #17,064,0007T Y 1) % -
BENEEEHERBE-ZT—+tF
AT BLEFERE BIE
EEB AR 16,862,0007T °

HESEEERRARAT
—F—/—LEER
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B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s land and buildings and investment
property measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The

level

into which a fair value measurement is

classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

12 M%E BERRE (&)

(a) BAREIRZLIHUREFR
REWMEZNREE

(i)

R RAEER
TREJRNHERRRE
FUEEFEZASEHZ
THREFUARKREDE
ZonfE BRZAAE
RO AHE(RE
BB TS s R FE 1358
(AABEFEIZER)D
B-BAREAEDSR
EXRTD2EWMTEENE
TR ABEZIBRT
NEZUREF:

s FAfAE:EEH
B — A A BUR (A
REtERRBEEEN
BENEERTIS 2K
RBAERRE)FEZ

STSER

s HF_AfAE:-ERE
— R ABE (AR
BEERE Rz AE
K@ AHE) BY R
FEREATAIBERS
ABEBEFEZRAR
B NI B R AR
B AETSBEREHR
TZBAHE-

e F=-HHMHEEAE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ -BERSE (&)

(continued)
(a) BAAREINRZIHERBFER

(a) Fair value measurement of land and

buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

REWMEZAAREE (&)

(i) AAREER(E)
Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 2

TERE-RZDAETE

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016

R=-Z—tF RZIZT—RF

=A=+-H =ZA=+—H

Recurring fair value RMB’000 RMB’000
measurements REMAREST ARB T ARKEFT
Land and buildings held for own use #{E8 B2 i MIEF 2,925,710 2,911,910
Investment property (see Note 13) & EW¥ (2 Hfa13) 1,366,500 1,380,300

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016: no transfer).
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

All of the Group’s land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment property were
revalued as at 31 March 2017. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Company’s Financial Controller has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

BHE_ZT —+F=H
=+t BUHFE WEF
—RELZE — AR R e
EAERE=H(EE
—E—RF=HA=+—H
IETHMEA : EEE) oA
B ZBR BN
ZHREHRERALEE
WE D PE 2R

REBABRAABYEE
ZTHEBFURKE
MER_ZT—+F=A
=t+—RETEMRB-BE
HER—RBE LA EMT
BEEBREFHEERRA
(BER2MEeres
YEAERFHEDERE
ih & ¥ B R 7 R B E
RE)EIT - RERHNE
EhE BT EER
AR A B iEEEE B
ST mAEREERR

HERER-

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=-T—+tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 YE -BERRKREB (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a) BAREIRZLIHREFR
buildings carried at fair value and REVEZDIRETE (&)
investment property (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i) EF-RAAEFEFEH
Level 2 fair value measurements Z 15 7L R A B 1%
The fair value of land and buildings carried NP EZERREYER
at fair value and investment property located ZTHREFURKEEY
in the PRC is determined using market EZRARBEEATISER
comparison approach by reference to recent FET HKL2ETHLE
sales price of comparable properties on a price BMERETHARERE
per square meter basis using market data BERRARAIAZ TS
which is publicly available. BatE 2 HEE-
(iii) Depreciated cost of land and buildings (iii) ARAEIRZIFEEA
held for own use carried at fair value Y EITEAK
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016

R-ZB—tF RZZT—RF
=A=+—-HB =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFL

Had the revalued land and buildings fRAR 72 E5I8R 2 & {f tH# K%
carried at fair value been carried at  #5F LARK 2R 5 2 51 37 & R IR
cost less accumulated depreciation {EE1858R - BREE S A
and impairment losses, the carrying

amount would have been 1,682,468 1,719,988
(b) Title ownership (b) ¥EFE®

As at the date of this report, the Group was RARERH AEEBEER
in the progress of applying for registration of HETYERBELMBER
the ownership certificates for certain of its EZoZEMEN T —+F=H
properties. The aggregate carrying value of such =t+—BZHERABARNARE
properties as at 31 March 2017 was approximately 28,222,000 EER B A%
RMB28,222,000. The directors are of the opinion BEEAXETHARGEZEY
the Group is entitled to lawfully own and occupy £

these properties.

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 13 REWE
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March

2017 2016
BZ-2—+tF HE-ZT—~F
=A=t—-B =ZA=+—8H
EEE F+aEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFTT ARBF T

Valuation: fhE:
At 1 April 2016/1 January 2015 RZZ-—R"EMA—B/=ZT—*h
F—H—H 1,380,300 1,427,000
Reclassification to property, plant and BN BEENE BERRE
equipment (see Note 12) (RHiF12) (13,800) (81,525)
Fair value adjustments AR EHE = 34,825
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,366,500 1,380,300
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEFREE
Trademark-use-
right
BEEAE
RMB’000
ARETT
Cost: [N
At 1 January 2015, 31 March 2016 and RZZE—HF—HA—H ZZ—~F=A
31 March 2017 =+—HEZZT—+tF=A=+—H 424,812
Accumulated impairment losses: R RERSE:
At 1 January 2015, 31 March 2016 and RZE—RF—A—H ZZ2—X~F=A
31 March 2017 =t+-HE=Z—+tF=A=+—H -
Carrying amount: RREE:
At 31 March 2016 and 2017 R_E-—RER_F—+tF=A=+—H 424,812
The Group's trademark-use-right represents the Group’s NEE 7 GEFERAEREKE B FGE
use of the trademark “Ginwa” which the Group has (&Il 2B EREEFEEHE
acquired through its acquisitions of department store and WHE R S RBL T IEEEES-

supermarket operations in prior years.

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH
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B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB’000
AREFT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015, 31 March 2016 and RZE—HF—HA—HB ZT—R"F=A
31 March 2017 =t+—HEZZE—+tF=H=+—H
1,451,814
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt BERBE:
At 1 January 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—RF—A—BR-ZE—X~"E=H
==E 290,647
Impairment losses (see Note (ii)) REERE (ZH ) 273,016
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+tF=F=+—H 563,663
Carrying amount: RREE
At 31 March 2017 R-ZBE—+$=A=+—H 888,151

At 31 March 2016

R-_E-—R"F=A=1—H

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and

1,161,167

BERBCREELEMZRER

=

BERENTAEE 2 BERNS RS
RS EBAEEANEEZERAIR

supermarket operations acquired as follows: TELEM:
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R-ZE—tF RIZE—RF
=B=t+t-B =ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARETFIT
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. g e FERMHBRAF
("Ginwa Bell Tower") (TefEER]) 515,069 659,478
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited (“GCX") Golden Chance (Xian) Limited
(reexJ) 150,264 278,871
|deal Mix Limited Ideal Mix Limited 222,818 222,818
888,151 1,161,167

' ““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—Z

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Notes:

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the financial
performance of the Group's department store and
supermarket operations, as a consequence of the
slowing down of economic growth in the PRC as well
as a consequence of the intense competition from
surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales,
has underperformed management’s expectations.
Management performed impairment assessments of the
relevant cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. These cash flow projections adopted
annual sales growth rates ranging from 0% to 6% (31
March 2016: from 3% to 10%), which are based on the
Group’s historical experience with these operations and
adjusted for other factors that are specific to each cash-
generating unit. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimate weighted average
sales growth rate of 3% (31 March 2016: 3%). The cash
flows are discounted using discount rate of 14% (31
March 2016: from 15% to 16%). The discount rates used
are pre-taxed and reflect specific risks relating to the
respective cash-generating units.

15

—tF=ZA=+—HIFE

(BRIFAEHEH BRAIKAREZS)

[k €,
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Wt -
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B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Notes:

(i)

As a result of the above impairment test, impairment
losses on goodwill of approximately RMB273,016,000
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the current financial year, which relates to the
cash-generating units of Ginwa Bell Tower acquired in
August 2008 and GCX acquired in December 2010.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for the above two cash-generating units are as follows:

Key assumptions

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

15 BE (&)
BEEESRSELENZHER
5 (4E)
Bt -

(i) MBRALIRENS  mEREEE
#) N #273,016,0007T A2 B B 4
ENGRABERRER SRR _Z
SNFNAKRBENESTEEERR =
T—2F+ - AREMNGCXHRE
LA

EdmEREELEMNERER
AHEMANBRERRNT

At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
RZB—tF RZZE—RF

BEERR =Z=A=+t—-H =HA=+—H
Ginwa Bell Tower  Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period 0% - 6% 5% — 6%
DIEEE BELFHENFHEERE

Annual sales growth rate beyond five-year period 3% 3%

hFEHRENFHEERE

Discount rate 14% 15%
B IR %

GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period 0% - 6% 4% — 10%
BERLFHENFHEERE
Annual sales growth rate beyond five-year period 3% 3%
RFHERNFHEERE
Discount rate 14% 15%

BE TR

Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating
units would result in further impairment losses.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17
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Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMNERQF
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHIEFZEZEASEEXE B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets EXBEZHWB ARG

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

BRREREZLA
Place of The
establishment  Particulars of Group's Held
and registered and effective by the Held by Principal
Name of company operations paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries activities
RIR BafikERE  AKEz mARE HNEATE
NAER EXuE kAg8  BERER 2] BE IEER
Ginwa Bell Tower* The PRC RMB AR 83.88% - 83.88%  Operation of
eTLER t 235,500,0007C department
store
REREmS
Century Ginwa Urumai Shopping Mall The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100%  Operation of
Company Limited* s 50,000,0007T department
S ESEAEBNRLOERAA store
BERERS
Shaanxi Century Ginwa Tangrenjie The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100%  Operation of
Shopping Mall Company Limited* G 20,000,0007T department
RALLEEEAEREAEREALR store
REpERS
Xi'an Century Ginwa Nandajie Shopping  The PRC RMB AR 100% = 100%  Operation of
Mall Company Limited* H 5,000,0007T department
Azt L EEAEENTLERAR store
Kengms
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping Mall ~ The PRC RMB ARH 100% = 100%  Operation of
Company Limited* i 30,000,000 department
ARt e EERRNERAA store
KEnEmS
Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall The PRC HKS 100% - 100%  Operation of
Company Limited* i 65,000,000 department
REt LS ERNERAR store

KR g =}
LRERERS

R SEHEERER AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMBEATF (4)
(continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
BREREZLA
Place of The
establishment  Particulars of Group's Held
and registered and effective by the Held by Principal
Name of company operations paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries activities
RIR BafkERE - AKE2 mARE HNEATF
NAER EXHE kAg8  BRER 2] BE TEXR
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and The PRC RMB ARH 100% - 100%  Operation of
Commerce Company Limited* r 3,000,0007T department
Rt e EEEERARA stores and
supermarkets
RERERER
ek Gk
Xi'an Yixin Property Management The PRC RMB AR 100% = 100%  Properties
Company Limited* r 536,885,7507C management
BREENFERRRAA nEER
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100%  Operation of
Limited* i 252,800,0007C shopping mall
RETEEXERAR and properties
management
BEBMHR LR
MEER
Xi'an Honghui Property Management The PRC RMB ARH 100% - 100%  Properties
Company Limited* i 124,000,0007T management
B BENEERRRAR nEER

* The English translation of the names of these companies
are for reference only. The official names of these
companies are in Chinese.

The following table lists out the information relating
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI").
The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REHBAE (&)
(continued)
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-Z—+tHF BEZ-_T—RF
=H=+-H =H=+—H
LEE IF+FEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARET T

Revenue U 5 309,237 419,511

Profit for the year/period AEE/#BHNHEF 14,835 47,482

Profit for the year/period attributable to NCI  ZRE[E /8 A FE#2 IR 25 FE 15

ikl 2,391 7,654
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,456,303 1,363,965
Current assets RENEE 1,043,294 1,326,878
Current liabilities mEAE (1,574,962) (1,792,716)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,477) =
Net assets BEFE 923,158 898,127
Net assets attributable to NCI RS (A E R 148,813 144,778
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF 17 WYX HANRIA
PROPERTIES
RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—HF—HA—H 440,500
Additions NE 403,189
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EHESYE B KRG (116,666)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZZE—A"F=ZRA=+—-BXK
—E-R"FMA—H 727,023
Additions NE 126,000
Interest expense capitalised BEER AN EFRX 26,704
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—tF=A=+—H 879,727
The amounts at 31 March 2016 and 2017 represent RZE—RER_ZF—LtF=H
partial payments made by the Group for its intended St -HBHRMREBEEASEERKEML
acquisition of commercial properties under development R EEEEMERIEL 230
that are situated in the PRC. On 4 December 2014, DRI -RZE—NWFE+=-FMAH -
the Group, through Ginwa Bell Tower, entered into REEBBLEEZE FBIEEIK
an acquisition agreement with Shanghai Huade ERMR AR ([TEEEE )T WEE
Investment Company Limited (“Huade Investment”), W B EER AR =R FIER
pursuant to which Huade Investment agreed to procure NERESHEEEERBAZX LAY
a project company to develop the above properties in ¥ MetEERENRAREARE
accordance with the requirements of Ginwa Bell Tower, 1,651,112, 750 CiE B3 Lt 2 -
and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to purchase part of the EEMENBEEIRNR T —F+
above properties for an aggregate consideration of AERA -8 —tF=A=1+—
RMB1,651,112,750. The substantial construction of the BIEFE AEEZTSREERE
commercial properties commenced in October 2016. FRAR#120,000,0007T ° ;25 W%
During the year ended 31 March 2017, a scheduled HEAANSEERANIBER S EXKEE-

payment of RMB120,000,000 was made to Huade
Investment by the Group. These properties are intended
to be used by the Group to expand its retail operations.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 A HESRMEE

At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R-ZBE—+tF RZZ—RF
=H=+—H —A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%FT ARETF T

Available-for-sale equity securities AN ERRES (AHE0))

(see Note (i) 347,400 335,400

Available-for-sale securities (see Note (i) Bt H & &% ( &8 HfaL(ii)) 20,212 -

367,612 335,400

Notes: HfaE -

(i)  The available-for-sale equity securities represent the (i) AT S e 35 % $530,000,0008%
30,000,000 A-shares in Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc., a SR (EBR)RDERAR (—
company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. MR EEESRZGMEMZAR) A

A& o
As at 31 March 2017, these available-for-sale equity R-ZE—+F=A=+—H8" Ltit
securities were pledged to secure one of the Group’s A ERREFRBERUAAERE
short-term bank loans (see Notes 24(a) and 24(c)). B RBRITEREER (BT
24(a) K2 24(c)) °

(i) These securities represent a two-year term investment in (i) ZEBHFERTREBASHKEIRY
subordinate trust units with no guarantee of principal or BEETEMHNMELRRE -
returns.

R SEHEERER AR
:i—%\/—tﬂifﬁﬁl
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 15 8ok WY &
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-ZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

—tF=A=+—HILFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

19 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 19 BHIRE
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
RZE—tF RZT—R%F
=B=t+-B =ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®FT ARSFT
Investments in debt securities: BREEHEE:

— with original maturity more than three  —RE|/HIB Z RN =18 A
months = 227,900

— with original maturity within three -RIMBAAR=EAR
months (see Note 22) (R HiaE22) 150,274 400,263
150,274 628,163

The debt securities represent wealth management

Fi‘%uﬁ’f;ﬁa BB ERIT 2R

products issued by financial institutions in the PRC with Z!Kijjujzlmjom@#&zﬁﬁﬁF

guaranteed principal amounts plus fixed or variable o v AR R FE2(F) R2(n)FT 8 & 5T K
returns, and are recognised in accordance with the R T UARER -

accounting policies set out in Notes 2(f) and 2(n).
20 INVENTORIES 20 78

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016

R=ZB—tF NZE—XRF

=A=+—-B =ZA=+-—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARETFIT

Merchandises o 72,034 85,428

Low value consumables KESER 4,118 5,225

76,152 90,653

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ—Z

—tF=ZA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))
20 INVENTORIES (continued) 20 ﬁﬁ (%)
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an REAZWIAGEEBRERIFEE
expense and included in the consolidated statement of /TJ\IAJJTJ?ZZDT~
profit or loss is as follows:
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
BE-Z—+tF BE2_Z—~F
=A=+-B =A=t+—H
HFE I+ H1EA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFTT AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 498,179 650,962
21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BRI N H B WK
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R-ZE—t&F RZZT—RF
=B=+-B =ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Trade receivables from third parties WE=FRR(EKiF21@)
(see Note 21(a)) 25,370 40,377
Amounts due from related parties FEN R A TRIB (2 R/ aE21b))
(see Note 21(b)) 15,960 18,587
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables: T8 - 24 K H b fE U 5k
- Value added tax refundable — AR BIE(E R 68,075 95,082
— Receivables from third parties —ENE=HFA
(see Note 21(c)) (RHEF21(c)) 367,853 294,162
— Prepayments and deposits for operating — Q&M E 7 B KIERIKE
leases 5,413 5,125
- Others —HAth 23,536 20,716
464,877 415,085
506,207 474,049
L ] L ] L]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Except for deposits of RMB2,958,000 (31 March 2016:
RMB3,052,000), all of the trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note
28(a).

(a) Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis (based on the
invoice date) as of the end of the reporting period:

21

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

FE W B AR I L PR KUK (4)

Bizéd AR¥2,958,0007T (=ZZF—7~
F=ZH=+—H: AR®3,052,000
70 ) AN+ FT7E FEUR BR R K L Ath FE U 5K T8
R —FAWE RER B L -

AEBZEEBRRFBHAKE
28(a) °

(a) FRERTDHT
FEA B AR 3 & Ho At UK 2
R (EMBRRERHEE) R
HERR BRI (RERA
)

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016

R-ZB—tF RIZE—XF

=HA=+—H =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARETFIT

Less than 1 month LR—1{EA 14,485 17,385
More than 1 month but less than 3 —@ALAEELR=MEA

months 7,503 6,814

More than 3 months =EANE 3,382 16,178

25,370 40,377

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group's department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets for whom
there were no recent history of default and have
a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

' ““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BUWERRRHEMEWRR (&)
(continued)
(b) Amounts due from related parties (b) EWBEALRE
The amounts due from related parties are FEMEE A T RIBAEEIE - 5
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed B A [E] FE AR SR E o

terms of repayment.

(c) Receivables from third parties (c) EWE=ARE

Included in the balance are receivables of RZE—-—tEF=H=+—
RMB305,168,000 at 31 March 2017 (31 March B - EBRE=ZFREBEARK
2016: RMB273,026,000) due from a third party 305,168,000t ( =& — X
which provides services in managing the Group's F=ZA=+t—H: ARE®%
customer loyalty programme, and the sale and 273,026,0007T) E st A& - 3%
usage of customers’ prepaid cards within the F=A(ULTHEHBRITEANKE
Group's department stores, shopping mall and BRAll)RASENES BH
supermarkets (hereinafter referred to as the E&rE RBEERS BYWE D
“Prepaid Card Management Company”). RBRTHSAHEERERATFE

NRREEERS -

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND 22 ROTEFRFERE
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016

RZIE—tF RZIZ—F
=ZA=+-B =A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFL

Cash at bank and on hand in the mAEMBRAREBE NRITEERTF

consolidated statement of financial BEE e

position 512,697 394,653
Add: short-term investments with m:REEB A=A NAZEE%

original maturity within three months & (RHat19)

(see Note 19) 150,274 400,263
Less: restricted cash at bank (see Note (i) & : SR{TXBRIE (B HTaE3)) (287,915) (138,970)
Cash and cash equivalents in the mEReRERZAER

consolidated cash flow statement Re%EER 375,056 655,946
Note: i aE -

() Restricted cash at bank at 31 March 2017 represented () MZZE—tEtF=ZA=Z=+—HHX
bank deposits of RMB275,000,000 (31 March 2016: REIRITIHSE ARG AS HIR
RMB138,970,000) pledged to secure the Group’s bank TEZMERNBTERARE
loans (see Note 24(c)), bank deposits of RMB11,215,000 275,000,000t (=& —~NFE=A
sealed up by a court as a result of a legal proceeding =+—H: ARK%138,970,0007T)
against one of the Group’s subsidiaries and bank deposits (RFFEE24(c))  HEH AL EH —
of RMB1,700,000 pledged to a bank for the performance fEl Bt B 2 B 89OR 2 32 7 1 #A B
guarantee in relation to a sales contract. B IRITERARY11,215,000

TERFEITAR —BHESHOME
RGBT RITORITERARE

1,700,0007T °
e o o
HESEAERRERAT

S

(A
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B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

22 RITEERFEERES (&)
AEBMAREY BEEE BYHDL
RBBTISESEBTTIAA RS
T AR AFEMEBREY WA
o B 9 b B L A RS TE 2B 2 R B
T 98 445 #0745 BB INTE & 351135 B K% 48 51 BT

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)

The Group's operations of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets in the PRC are conducted in
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of RMB out of Mainland China is subject to
the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government. IR -
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ENBEFREMENR
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R=ZZB—tF RZT—RF
ZA=+-8 ZA=+-7
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFR AREFT
Trade payables arising from: FERTBR AR LA T & THE & -
~ Concession sales - FAERHEE 538,005 730,161
— Purchase of inventories -BEFE 71,763 80,703
609,768 810,864
Amounts due to related parties (see Note (i) FEfBEE A L7 (B HT:()) 2,682 11,160
Other payables and accrued expenses: HENRRETER:
— Payables for staff related costs BN 2EIHHEER 26,211 33,338
— Payables for miscellaneous taxes — FEAT BT 9,087 8,552
— Payables for interest expenses and —ERNEERRBEZRS
transaction costs on borrowings BN 24,369 23,320
— Payables for handling charges to the —ENENREERRIZER
Prepaid Card Management Company BH 5,940 8,424
- Payables for operating leases —ERNEERE 98,537 105,303
- Deposits from concessionaries and —RTREEREFPES
customers 34,360 40,513
— Dividends payables —ERRE 5,752 5,624
— Payable for redemption of warrants — JE 1 FE 1o SR A 1 2F - 15,184
— Others —HA 48,210 40,858
252,466 281,116
Financial liabilities measured at amortised NS AFTEZ S RAE
cost 864,916 1,103,140
Deferred income EIEWA 13,540 14,515
Receipts in advance TR IE 62,475 73,173
940,931 1,190,828
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23 ENRFREMENSRK(£)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to Fir 78 FE A BR 3% R B 0 B 1< SR TR BB 8 14

be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or —FAEERIERR/WRIOFIAZL

in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on BRgiRERER-

demand.

Note: i aE -

() The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and () ZEREAEKE 8 K EE
have no fixed terms of repayment. TE B RER

Ageing analysis BRiR 2 AT

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables FH A R R L At B A R FE A B
with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity RN ERARZ R (REHH)
date) as of the end of the reporting period: LN

At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R-ZZE—+tF RIZE—XF
=ZA=+-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AREF T

Due within one month or on demand A —18 A R 2 B8 sk iz BRI 57 {+ 609,768 810,864
[ ] L] [ ]
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK LOANS

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

24 RITEFR

(a) The Group’s short-term bank loans are () AEBEZEHBITERD W
analysed as follows: T
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R=B-—tF RZZT—RF
=B=+-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®EF AREFT
Secured by the Group’s land and ARER 7 + 30 RIEFIERHR
buildings and guaranteed by the WHARRARA]—%
Company, a director of the Company EERAEE-HMNBAR
and a subsidiary of the Group ER - 50,000
Secured by the Group’s available-for-sale  LAZ 2 [B A] it & #E 25 B 551
equity securities (see Note 24(c)) B/ (LR E24(c)) 210,000 160,000
Secured by the Group’s bank deposits UAREEZRITERRL/ X
and/or short-term investments RER BV - Wi
and guaranteed by the Company ARARER (R HF24(d))
(see Note 24(d)) 238,249 290,872
Guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Group, HALEENE AT K&,
and/or the Company and a director of P N/NCT N NN B =
the Company ER 100,000 50,000
Guaranteed by the Company AARD B ER 150,875 209,080
699,124 759,952
Add: o
Current portion of long-term bank REFTER VA
loans (see Note 24(b)) (B K 7£24(b)) 91,750 74,169
Overdue bank loan repayable on AR EREE 2 BERTT
demand ¢ - 54,305
Long-term bank loan repayable on BRERKEEZ RBPRT
demand (see Note 24(b)) B (R HaF240)) - 513,124
790,874 1,401,550

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

24 BANK LOANS (continued) 24 RITEFR (&)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are (b) XEBZRHRITERS U
analysed as follows: T:

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016
RIE—tH& RZT—R%F
=A=+—-B =ZRA=+-—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARKEFT
Secured by the Group's investment NAREEZREMER L RE
property and land and buildings FEE R 363,750 381,250
Secured by the Group's bank deposits — IAZRERE 21T FER K3+
and/or land and buildings and REFEERR YHEARAR
guaranteed by the Company and/ SEARRR—REERER
or a director of the Company and/or E BB A ER
subsidiaries of the Group 1,394,000 1,189,956
1,757,750 1,571,206
Less: Ve
Current portion of long-term bank loans & #4377 & 5k~ BN EAZ6 (5
(see Note 24(a)) (R Htat24(a)) (91,750) (74,169)
Long-term bank loan repayable on BREREEZREBBETER
demand (see Note 24(a)) (ZH17F24(a)) - (513,124)
1,666,000 983,913

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as REE REBITERER TS
follows: HARS (g8 :

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016
R-ZB—tF RIZE—XF
=A=t+—-H =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARB¥FT ARSFT

Within 1 year or on demand —ERGIREK 91,750 587,293
After 1 year but within 2 years —ERERER 125,000 91,443
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBRER 1,244,250 378,123
After 5 years REH 296,750 514,347
1,757,750 1,571,206

[ ] L] [ ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 15 8ok WY &
For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

24 BANK LOANS (continued) 24 RITER (&)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are (b) XEEZRER\RTERS W

analysed as follows: (continued) T:(%&)
All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans FREFERIHAG RRITERRER
and the long term bank loans repayable on demand ERIFEE 2 RRITEFG R
are carried at amortised cost. None of the non- AR AR - S IERNHAGT B
current interest-bearing bank loans is expected to RITERERERN —FABE-
be settled within one year.

() The following assets and their respective carrying () TIEERHEEZBZEREERSK
values as at the end of the reporting period are WMERREWERUMEARSE
pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans: ZRITERZER:

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016

R-B-—tF RZT—RF

=ZA=t—-B =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMF T ARETT

Land and buildings THRETF 1,829,094 1,815,294

Investment property REYE 1,366,500 1,380,300
Available-for-sale equity securities At EERES (ZH1T18)

(see Note 18) 347,400 335,400
Short-term investments (see Note 19) 2% & (2 H1aE19) - 227,900
Cash at bank (see Note 22(i)) RITEETE (R HTEE22()) 275,000 138,970

3,817,994 3,897,864

(d) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to (d FTEBETRITEFEREHS
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in BB ERLHER 2T RHE
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If o MAEEERRE  EXRE
the Group were to breach the covenants, the loan BRAKREREE - R-T—+t
would become repayable on demand. At 31 March F=A=+—H HEEXREH
2017, none of the covenants relating to the bank RITE AR E -
loans had been breached.

L] L] L]
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Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

24 BANK LOANS (continued) 24 BITER ()
(e) At 31 March 2017, the Group’s banking facilities e) RZZE—+tF=ZA=+—
amounted to RMB500,000,000 (31 March H A&EBWMETEEAR
2016: RMB500,000,000) were utilised to the 500,000,000 ( =& — X
extent of RMB150,875,000 (31 March 2016: F=ZH=Z+—"H: AR%
RMB209,080,000). 500,000,0007T) F E & A A

E#150,875,0007 (= &
—RNEFE=ZFA=+—"H: AR¥
209,080,0007T ) °

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BRELEURAIF2RS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share option scheme (a) BBRESE

The Company has a share option scheme which $%?EE§%%;_¢:H+§
was adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the AR mAE R B Bt - AR

directors of the Company are authorised, at their ET%%ET%%E@%%X% 8 X
discretion, to invite employees and service providers $%;HE%{#§% WFE%%%
of the Group, including directors of any company Tffﬂ\ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁh%n
in the Group, to take up share options at HK$1 BN BB AT BB R

to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. IBEE - R =F ——FHHZ

For the share options granted in 2011, 6,975,000 Eﬁﬂfﬁgﬁﬁ/ﬁ ' 6'975'009@5‘%/%
share options will vest immediately from the date R e B BT -

of grant, and for the remaining 37,050,000 share L&k T37,050,00013 B8 AR

options, 50% will vest after one year from the date 5 AFBNEAKLHE ﬁlﬁﬁ:a—
of grant, another 30% will vest after two years from FRBE  S530% 88 Kl
the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will vest EI,HH%:EH?i&E%}% ' %TZO%%
after three years from the date of grant. The share BEEMLA EI/H%@EE%E%J%\OE(\\
options granted in 2011 will lapse on 20 October —F - ERNBRENER=

2017. Each share option gives the holder the right g:?%—'—i:—'— H %an@
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company FR AR T 1 B AT A 1.96

at HK$1.96 each, and is settled gross in shares. ;%ﬁ?@ﬁ%z]&@aﬂ—ﬁ%%;@;ﬁ&%
7 WARD ZHEE 2R -

On 28 May 2013, 67,105,000 share options were i e e LA R
granted to directors of the Company and employees i _E B A Rt B R R R R

of the Group under the above share option scheme. F67'105£00@'ﬁ‘§ﬂ§%%$@i
Of the share options granted, 50% will vest one EERAKEES - RN B

year from the date of grant, 30% will vest two years %EPE’ 50%%73/\\\%%& EI’,H\E@H—
/ 2 =, 0, ‘\ 17
from the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will FREBE 30% 0 AL A8

vest three years from the date of grant. The share @ﬂﬁi? BE J’X&%TZOO//"H%
options granted will lapse on 28 May 2019. Each B\/\\\ﬁtﬁ E%@EE%%E"&‘E
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe Z BB R AR Hgffé:/_%\i j&%ﬁﬂ
for one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.73 :i+)\E|9§:"éz 1137 E%HET%,E\K%
each, and is settled gross in shares. FEARAGE. 73R8 —
ARG L BRRG - WARD
EHBEZEN -

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BBREEZEUROSIF 2R
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 2 (&)

(a) WBREE (&)

(@) Share option scheme (continued)

On 30 May 2013, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules, 4,750,000 of the share options
granted to certain directors of the Company on 28
May 2013 were cancelled, and the Company has
replaced them with the granting of 2,300,000 share
options to these directors. Of the share options
granted, 50% will vest one year from the date of
grant, 30% will vest two years from the date of
grant, and the remaining 20% will vest three years
from the date of grant. The share options granted
will lapse on 30 May 2019. Each share option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company at HK$1.76 each, and is
settled gross in shares.

On 29 January 2015, 77,000,000 share options
were granted to service providers of the Group
under the above share option scheme. Of the share
options granted, 50% will vest six months from the
date of grant, and 50% will vest one year from the
date of grant. The share options granted lapsed on
28 January 2017. Each share option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company at HK$1.24 each, and is settled gross in
shares.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17

R-_E—=FFAA=+H8 54
HELETRA R_T—=F
AAZ+N\BEFETARFA
T E 74,750,00010 B AR #E 2 5
- ARRMERAZZEERT
2,300,00017 i A& #E AR R 52 &
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RREGEURAZNZR
TRANSACTIONS (continued) =z ()

(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE(E)

(i) The terms and conditions of the options (i) ERHBIREZIFFIRIEF
granted are as follows: Tk

Contractual
life of
Number of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
I8gE EERE BRESYH

Share options granted to directors:

RYESZRRE:

- on 20 October 2011 5,312,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——%+A=1H R ASE—F N
- on 20 October 2011 3,187,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-—%+A-tH BRHAHEmE ~E
- on 20 October 2011 2,125,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-—5+A-tH BRHAHE=F ~E
- on 28 May 2013 5,250,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-=FRA=T/\R R ASE—F N
-on 28 May 2013 3,150,000 Two years from the date of grant b years
-RZE-ZRA-1/\H B A BREmE NE
- on 28 May 2013 2,100,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-ZFRAZTNH BREABEE=F N
- on 30 May 2013 1,150,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-ZFRA=TH BRI ASE—F N
-on 30 May 2013 690,000 Two years from the date of grant b years
-RZE-Z5¥nA=1A B A BREmE NE
- on 30 May 2013 460,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=$1A=1H BRI ASE=F ~E

R SEHEERER AR
:i—%\/—tﬂifﬁﬁl
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=-T—+tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZH1E8H TAIUARKEZS)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EREZEUAROG M2
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 2 (%)

(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE (&)

(i) The terms and conditions of the options (i) ERUBREZIFARIE
granted are as follows: (continued) HuT: (&)

Contractual
life of
Number of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
IAHHA GRAE BRESHH

Share options granted to employees
and service providers:

RYEERRBMEE CBRE:

- on 20 October 2011 6,975,000 No vesting condition 6 years
-RZE-——%TAZTH TEZBRN ~E
—on 20 October 2011 13,212,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-—£+AZtH BRHASE—F ~E
- on 20 October 2011 7,927,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——%+A=1H B ASEmE N
- on 20 October 2011 5,285,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-——%TA-TH BRIEABE=F N
- on 28 May 2013 25,927,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-=FRA-T/\H BRI ABE—F ~NE
-on 28 May 2013 15,556,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-=FRA-T/\R B ASEmE N
- on 28 May 2013 10,371,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-R=Z-=FRA-1/\H ERLAMR=F N
- on 29 January 2015 38,500,000 Six months from the date of grant 2 years
-RZZ-RF-A-TAR B A&/~ fE A -
- on 29 January 2015 38,500,000 One year from the date of grant 2 years
-RZE-LF-AZTHH BRI ASE—F ¥
Total share options granted 185,680,000

BRIz BRELH

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RREGEURAZNZR
TRANSACTIONS (continued) =z ()
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE(E)
(i) The number and weighted average (i) BREZZERINEFS
exercise price of share options are as TEEMT :
follows:
Year ended Fifteen months ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
HE-F-tF HE_E—NE
ZA=T-ALEE ZA=t-HItTh{ER
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of share price of share
HK$ options HK$ options
MEFH MEFS
e IR
AT  BREZE Br  BREZHE

Qutstanding at the beginning of the &4 / S K17

year/period 1.594 152,150,000 1.775 111,555,000
Granted during the year/period &£/ /BIRF L = = 1.250 77,000,000
Exercised during the year/period £/ /HIN{T{E - - 1240 (17,530,000)
Forfeited during the year/period 7,/ HIR% 1.809  (7,300,000) 1780 (10,300,000)
Expired during the year/period ER/HRNEH 1.240  (59,470,000) 1.260 (8,575,000)

Outstanding at the end of the year/ £ X /BIR 4 KT
period 1.823 85,380,000 1.594 152,150,000

Exercisable at the end of the year/ K /87K A] F17{E

period 1.823 85,380,000 1.583 140,969,000
The share options outstanding at 31 March R-ZE—+&F=A=+—HHKITE
2017 had a weighted average exercise price of R MEFEHITEER1.8238
HK$1.823 (31 March 2016: HK$1.594) and a T(ZE—RF=A=+—H:1.594
weighted average remaining contractual life of BIL) RINEFHHBTEOFHAS
1.5 years (31 March 2016: 1.9 years). F(ZE—R"F=ZA=+—H:19

F)e
L ] L ] L]
HESHEEEERERAT

S
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BBREEZEUROSIF 2R
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 2 (&)

(b) Mt7ERBET &

(b) Share award scheme

On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the
directors of the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group
and certain eligible participants and to attract
suitable personnel for further development with the
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme
came into effect on the Adoption Date, and shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the directors of
the Company.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BREZEURA A 2R
TRANSACTIONS (continued) =2 (&)
(b) Share award scheme (continued) (b) KRPIEBETE (E)
Details of the shares held under the Share Award BAE B BB ET 213 B MR (D 5
Scheme are set out below: BEESINT
Year ended 31 March 2017 Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
HE-E-tE=R=1-HL%E HEZ-Z— 7 ¥=R=t-HLT+REA
Average Average
purchase No. of purchase No. of
price  shares held Value price shares held Value
%A #
THREE K#%E BE THBEER OE ! BE
HKS ‘000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
BT T TEn BT % FEn

At 1 April 2016/1 January 2015 N=F—-~EMA—-B/

“E-1%§-F-H 147 3,070 3,600 = = -

Shares purchased Ep/HREBERND
during the year/period - - - 1.17 3,070 3,600
At 31 March R=A=T-H 1.17 3,070 3,600 117 3,070 3,600

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=-T—+tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 MHEMRRRAZFABH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HWEMBRAKRAZAREPHE
consolidated statement of financial position BEIE:

are as follows:
Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-2-tHF BE_T—KF
=ZA=+-B =A=+—H
LR IE+R1EA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARETT

Balance of income tax payable at R-ZE-—REMA—RB/ =-F
1 April 2016/1 January 2015 —hAE—A—BEMRER
e 42,093 72,495
Provision for income tax on the estimated 3t 4 A,/ H3 A fiby 1 FE SR 8 % 7l 2

taxable profits for the year/period FTiSfiE (R 7))

(see Note 7(a)) 27,984 42,264
Qver-provision in respect of prior years B FE BB EE (A7)

(see Note 7(a)) (2,622) (5,662)
Income tax paid during the year/period R /HRE 5% (30,101) (67,004)
Balance of income tax payable at R=A=1+—HEMNMEHEH

31 March 37,354 42,093

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
LAnnuaI Report 2016/17

% ' :.‘_'_ﬁ




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 ¥R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 MHBEMRRRAZFER (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEHBEEEREE:
Fair value
adjustments
on
property,
plant and
equipment, Interest
Depreciation Fair value investment capitalisation
expenses Accrued adjustments property and on
in excess of  expenses on available- intangible prepayment
the related and for-sale  assets and for
Unused depreciation deferred financial related  acquisition
Deferred tax arising from: tax loss  allowances income assets depreciation of properties Net
VES
BERRE:
RENER g
nEHEX THLE EFEEZ  WEEA
ABA  BHEE EHEXR SREEZ AQAENRE  FEZE
ATSEBEE 2 BERE: REER hERE BERA DQAEIE EERRE N4 28

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETT AREFn ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R_E-RE—-f—

H 1,566 3,740 1,944 8,153 (543,186) - (527,783)
(Charged)/credited to the (¥18) /3 AGA1E
consolidated statement %% (8 A:#7(s))
of profit or loss
(see Note 7(a)) (1,566) (3,740) 393 = (338) = (5,251)
Charged to reserves NERE
(see Note 10) (8H1310) - - - (7830 (36,093 (43,923)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=A
=t-H = = 2,337 323 (579,617) - (576,957)
(Charged)/credited to the (¥18) /3t AGATE
consolidated statement %% (£ #f5t7())
of profit or loss
(see Note 7(a)) - - (72) - 10,026 (6,676) 3,278
Charged to reserves B M
(see Note 10) (&HiE10) - - - (1.853) (19.928) - (21.781)
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+E=R
=t+-H = - 2,265 (1,530) (589,519) (6,676) (595,460)
L ] L ] L]
HESHEEEERERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

26

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

26 MBRRRAZAER (4)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () REEHMBERRREINEL
liabilities recognised in the consolidated REEERAEBHE
statement of financial position
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R=ZB—tF RZZ-RF
=B=+-H =R=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEETFT AEEFT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE B AR R ER K
consolidated statement of financial position EEHIBEBE 2,265 2,660
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the PR A BTN R R E
consolidated statement of financial position EEHIEEE (597,725) (579,617)
(595,460) (576,957)
Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) RXERZELERBEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set BIEM 20T 2 &5 IR
out in Note 2(t), the Group has not recognised N B W R TR A B R B) A AR %
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax B8 A R #239,150,0007T ( =
losses of RMB239,150,000 (31 March 2016: E-—RE=ZA=1+—H: AR¥K
RMB141,735,000) as it is not probable that 141,735,000t ) 2 i i i 10 &
future taxable profits against which the losses E REREREBAUBAER
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax REBE TR g IERK
jurisdiction and entity. The remaining unused tax JERT A ABREIB - R
losses at 31 March 2017 will expire on or before the —tEFE=RA=1T—BZHBTKE
financial period ended 31 March 2022. AREEEEREE T
= A=+—H I EERRE R AT
i R
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised () RERZELEHEBEARE

At 31 March 2017, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
amounted to RMB1,661,241,000 (31 March 2016:
RMB1,563,647,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB83,062,000 (31 March 2016: RMB78,182,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits
from these subsidiaries will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI S EIEH  BRIUARKZZ])

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX-#HERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) ERIHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGREER 2B EBH 2 BT
closing balances of each component of the Group’s &Hﬁﬂi EER HER BN AR A 1R
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated & BEEK - $#|§¢Hﬂ%ﬂ§:ﬁﬁ§fi$
statement of changes in equity. Details of the szﬂﬁéx* D2 EBFHE
changes in the Company’s individual components of HHE

equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

Shares held
Under share
Share Share award Capital  Contributed  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium scheme reserve surplus reserve losses Total

RERGZR

R
Bx  RiieR WRt  EARE  BABR  ENBR  2HER &3t
RVBO00  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBU00  RMB000

ARBTL  ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFn  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
27(0) 00 2y 27y 270 27

(W) (stondn)  (Wanom)  (Bsz70m)  (Fs270m) (atanoi)

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-15-f-BEH 197,058 1,115,154 76,604 995,255 2831 (300,885 2,106,017
Changes in equity for the period: ] Mﬁﬂﬁt

Total comprehensive income for the period £
Shares purchased under share award

= = = = = 119070 (19122) 99,948

scheme (see Note 25(b) ( ﬁ W+25( ) - - (2922 = = = = (2922)
Shares issued under share option scheme BB REF B TRA 1422 18,700 - (2479 - - = 17,643
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ ZREEENRA RN 255

(see Note 25(3) (EH3256) - = = 11,864 - - - 11,864
Transfer between reserves FEERER - - - (5,437) - = 5,437 =
Balance at 31 March 2016 and RZB-AEZA=1-AR

1 April 2016 ZE-REMA-RALH 198,480 1,133,854 292) 80,552 995,255 141,901 (314570) 2,232,550
Changes in equity for the year: ERERSD:

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £R2E4ELE -
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ ZREEENRA RN 255

- - - 146,044 (13,075) 132,969

(see Note 25(3)) (BHi#2506) - - - 4,091 - - - 4,091
Transfer between reserves FERER

(see note 25(a) and 27c(y) (IR0 - - - (8.352) - - 8352 =
Balance at 31 March 2017 RZE-tE=A=1-A 198480 1,133,854 292 76,291 995,255 287,945 (319.293) 2,369,610
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BE—FT—

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the year/period

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016: RMBNil).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the previous financial year, approved
during the year/period

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended
31 March 2016: RMBNil).

“‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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27 EX-RHERRE (&)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX -BERRE (£)
(continued)
(c) Share capital () B=X
(i) Issued share capital (i) BEITERX
Year ended Fifteen months ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
HZ-Z-tF HE-Z—~E
ZA=t-HLEE ZA=t-HItt+EfAA
Number Number
of shares of shares
KRG E DAE !
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
FE ARBFT Fi& ARETL

Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRARERER:

fully paid:
At 1 April 2016/1 January 2015 R=Z—~EME—R/
“Z-1%—-f-H 1,138,695 102,713 1,121,165 101,291
Shares issued under share option 1R 8 R#E=t 2217 (D
scheme - - 17,530 1,422
At 31 March R=R=1—H 1,138,695 102,713 1,138,695 102,713

Convertible preference shares, B % 1T R H2 TRKE %

issued and fully paid: B :
At 1 April 2016/1 January 2015 R-Z—~¥MA—-H/
and 31 March “T-0%-A-H
k=A=1-H 1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767
Total share capital RABH 2,315,763 198,480 2,315,763 198,480
Ordinary shares I IR
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled LB A A A ERE T
to receive dividends as declared from time to BFEIk 2B &AERA
time and are entitled to one vote per share at NEARE FEEIE—Zo
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares AT @EIERARNT ZH
rank equally with regard to the Company’s HREET@MBES RS
residual assets. i o
L] L] L]
tHESEHEERERDR)

S
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX -RERRKRE (£)

(continued)
(c) Share capital (continued) (0 BE(E)
(i) Issued share capital (continued) (i) EBTRE(E)
Convertible preference shares A 2 I 18 55 AR

(i)

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

At 31 March 2017, 3,070,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the share
award scheme (31 March 2016: 3,070,000)
(see Note 25(b)).

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17

(i)

Al #2 iR B o RS BT A 18 2=
R BBRELRIFTEA
B RER ] R iRz
BEAZRBEEEZEEZ TR
1% 18 5t i% &SP sk AR /] 3R 1D
HRARKNBZEHEE
AR - IR AR AT R AR
BRERERIRE R -
AMREERIFAEARE
L BRFEALEEE
BARR AR S 3 H AL ok
FEAAB RS A4
NaER  EESERE 1]
BRELRFEABRL
BRBERELRDREES
8] 72 4% 5 A% AT 2 3% 8 o8 AR
1.60%8 7T I EFTAEETR
KRR B ZFKIE -

R-_B—+tEFE=A=+—
H - 3,070,0000% & i@ A%
AR ERIER D EE T
gEREE(ZE—XRF=A
=+—H:3,070,0004%)
( BLBt5EE25(b)) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EXR-FERRE (&)
(continued)
(c) Share capital (continued) (0 BE(E)
(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i) FRIR & H K faf K 2 B K% 15
options at the end of the reporting period KRITEBIREZ K
At 31 March At 31 March
Exercise period Exercise price 2017 2016
RZB-tF RZE-1F
Gl R ZB=t-H =A=1-H
Number Number
#E #8
‘000 000
) T
Share options: BRE:
20 October 2011 to 19 October 2017 —E——&+A-1HZE
“F-tFtATAR HK$1.96% T 34,275 36,775
28 May 2013 10 27 May 2019 “E-ZERA-1/\AZ
“E-NFRACTEA HK$1.73% 7 49,955 54,755
30 May 2013 to 29 May 2019 Z5-ZERA=tRZE
“E-NERR-tAA HK$1.76% 1T 1,150 1,150
29 January 2015 t0 28 January 2017 —S-RF-A-tNEZ
“B-t£-fZTNA HK$1.24% 7 - 59,470
85,380 152,150
Each share option entitles the holder to BHEBRER TEE AR
subscribe for one ordinary share in the BAQARz —REBARK-
Company. Further details of these share REBREZE-FFE
options are set out in Note 25(a) to the R BT S 3R 2% MY 5E25(a) °

financial statements.

(iv) Transfer between reserves (iv) #EEZER
The share options granted in 2015 (see Note RZE-—RAFREHZER
25(a)) lapsed in 2017 and the equity amount #(RWiE25:)ERZ
previously recognised in capital reserve was T+ FRI A KA
accordingly released to retained profits. REREHEARNER 2 ER

SHREBRHERZBREM-

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH

._—'}"—.f: '
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(i)

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid
for shares held under the share award scheme.

(iii)

Capital reserve

At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, capital
reserve comprises the following:

the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(s)(ii);

the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(d) RE2MERRAZR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

B4 EE
o aEERMERB AR
ZE—NN\—FRaEFE4L0

fFREZE ©

RIER 7 R BFHEZ
B 17

TRERBRIERD ZE)
A BN E M ZK

N
RZF—EF=A=+—
Ak=F - "F=A
=t B BEAREER
ATR&EE:

- BYARRQRRIEZEEUR
RNEEZREE KRR
HEE 2 MARITER
REAREBHZA
REI G THERE
BT 5E2(s) (i) gk LA 2 £7
MR R 2 B 5T R
RIER

— ARBRBR_-_ZEZT
TFENAZ+N\B#
T2 RBEAMRET
BBk mERE B
A7 S 4 B W B 2 —
BB A Al 2 IR I
BinmERaE R
ZHE

- RZF——FKk=F
——FEREEEKA
FRZEEERAS
Rz 28 R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(h).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Notes 2(f) and 2(I)(i).

(vii) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(viii)Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(w).

(BIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

27 EXR -BEERE (&)

(d) REzMEERRAR (&)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BA B &

BABBRKRZERAXAR
FE-NN\—FRENEFES

fFRESE

WEE M #E
MEEGHFBERILILAR
EH 2R EE R
WRBFRMZ G EER
BRI o

AREEE

N EEEEERRESH
KB BTHREESHER
MARBERTEHIER
TRAE ST 5E2(F) B 2(1)(i) BY
BRI

(vii) JZE &

RIEANEBE R P E KL
ZHBRARAZABER
AR ZEMBRRAR
ME TR DR ZETE [
o EHEcEERS
MEAREFTWIRET
EERBEAIRBHEER
HWERANBLEEZA
®o

(viii) (& 5 f# 15

ELEEEREME RFE
LEBUBBRREERE
JIERMFELMNER =
B o AT RIEM EE2(wW) P
LG HRERIE °

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH

._—'}"—.f: '
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Distributable reserves

()

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company’s retained profits,
if any, contributed surplus and share premium,
subject to equity shareholders’ approval) available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB2,129,109,000 (31 March 2016:
RMB2,129,109,000). The directors of the Company
do not propose a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (fifteen months ended 31
March 2016: RMBNil per ordinary and convertible
preference share) (see Note 27(b)(i)).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes bank loans), plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash at bank on hand and
short-term investments. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

' ““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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27 EX -HEERE (&)

(e)

()

A DR T AR AR E 2 F
HEE (BEARRZREH
F(wmE) BARBEED
mE(BERERRZIE) ) A
AR#2,129,109,0007T (=&
—NE=ZA=F+—"H: AR¥
2,129,109,0007T) e AN RIE S
TEEHEE_—_ET—+tF=A
—t+—HIEFERERBERE
(BHE-_Z—XR"E=-ZA=1+—H
IR EA : EREEKRKEAS
B ARBEZ L) (AT
27(b)(i) ) °

EXEH
AEEEEEATEEERER
SEMFELER N AEAE
1B R R IKF S F i B KR
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A B R IR R E i N AR E AR
SAERE SR &

REBEESR N E RS REER
BARE ERFBRSEEKY
M AJ B 7 R B = SBR[ ¥R B ER AT
Rl & MNP R A2 a8 M AR
&2 fEL P& WRRERE
HEBENERRBETHAE

AEEAERHEFERYERL
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27
(continued)

(f) Capital management (continued)

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group’s
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016 is as follows:

EX -REERRE (&)

(f)

EXRERE (&)

RER - AEREZ R BERE
HEFERHUEARA L R A&
K BREAREEZEARR
B AEEREBEMNTREN
REERE BITHRD BKRH
MEGREILEEENRDE
7% o

R=B—tF=A=+—AR=
T-XF=A=+—R0 £B
FEBEHEARLEDT

At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R-ZE—t & RZE—RF
=H=+—H =A=+t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T

Current liabilities: MEBE:

Bank loans RITER

Non-current liabilities: FREBEE:

Bank loans RITER

Total debt BEE

Less: cash at bank and on hand W RITEELFERS
Less: short-term investments W EHRE

Adjusted net debt RARFEE

Adjusted capital RREER

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KRB FEEHEAR L X

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

790,874 1,401,550
1,666,000 983,913
2,456,874 2,385,463

(512,697) (394,653)
(150,274) (628,163)
1,793,903 1,362,647
4,317,305 4,628,409
42% 29%

ARRREEAHERRRAZ
SNSRI N2 B AN KR TE ARBR

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE=-T—+tF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations in
which they relate.

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investment in another entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to short-term investments and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place, and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s short-term investments are wealth
management products issued by various financial
institutions in the PRC. The principal amounts
of these products are guaranteed by the issuers.
In view of the sound credit standing of these
counterparties, the management do not expect any
of them to fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtor operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 3 months from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from debtors.

‘Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a)

28 MIBEEAREERAAE(A)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At
the end of the reporting period, 27% (31 March
2016: 21%) and 44% (31 March 2016: 33%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively. Trade receivables are mainly due from
credit card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group's department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 30, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 30.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from short-
term investments and trade and other receivables
are set out in Notes 19 and 21, respectively.

FER (&)
AEEAX 2 EERREERE

BEBABEMRAZTE MIEE
BALERMETE BRERE
FEERRTESEEASEA
EZEERNEE A ZERER
By EE AE o AR5 HA R © IR URER
HBRE227% (ZF—RF=A
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk
Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings are
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB523,829,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group
can be required to pay.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEMEER A AME (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEARK (&)
At 31 March 2017
R-E-tE=B=1-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARARRRERH
More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years Carrying
year or on less than  but less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
E -FiE MENL =t-8
REXE  EORBE  BHREF BEME st ZRAE

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETZ  ARRTZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ

Trade and other payables & EHi A58 2
measured at amortised  [ENEHZ R EM

cost EfT 864,916 - - - 864,916 864,916
Bank loans RITER 924,393 230,765 1,466,041 324,012 2,945,211 2,456,874
1,789,309 230,765 1,466,041 324,012 3,810,127 3,321,790

At 31 March 2016

RZE-7 E=R=T1-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANATRA SR

More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years Carrying
year or on less than but less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
- E ik MENE =t-H
RERK BONME BHREE BENE h LRAE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARETT  ARBTR  ARETn ARETr ARETn ARETx

Trade and other payables & #EH A58 2
measured at amortised B EZRE{

cost B3 1,103,140 = = = 1,103,140 1,103,140
Bank loans BOER 1,494,597 159,59 535,278 579,286 2,768,755 2,385,463
2,597,731 159,594 535,278 579,286 3,871,895 3,488,603
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEMEER A AME (&)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=ERE
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REEZFEREREERBFE
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at B E o A B F X RIRE E =X
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group BT BEFEAER D RIFAZIR
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest enEfERREASBENER
rate risk respectively. % o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FUERER
The following table details the interest rate TRHAIIAEBRGFERBE
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of R EHAR 2 T EBER :
the reporting period.
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
RZB-tF=R=1-H R=E-~F=A=1-A
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate fate
ERFIE ERFX
% RMB000 % RIMB'000
AREFT AEEFT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEMEREE:
Bank loans RITER 5.7% 210,000 8.4% 214,305
Variable rate borrowings: EFIREE:
Bank loans RITER 6.1% 2,246,874 5.7% 2,171,158
Total borrowings EER%H 2,456,374 2,385,463
Fixed rate borrowings as a percentage B EFIREEHEELEZ R
of total borrowings it 9% 9%
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z — & ‘tfﬁ A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiIXRKREERAALE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) MR (E)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group's loss after tax and decreased/
increased retained profits by approximately
RMB17,305,000 (31 March 2016:
RMB16,337,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’'s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016.

(d) Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes

arising from available-for-sale equity securities (see
Note 18).

The Group's investments in available-for-sale
equity securities are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The performance of the available-for-sale
equity securities are regularly monitored.

(i) BB
#:% +tE=ZRA=1+—
EEFFIEREE LA
Tjﬂmmﬁ% AR
mT“EI%%%Tﬁ
ERAT  AEBE 2R IE
%%mﬁm/ﬁ R EAR
B MR s A
R #17,305,0007T (==&
—RNFE=ZA=+—H: A
R #16,337,0007T) °

bt B R D AT FE R R R
S RAERRNEE T
B2RZHFERFE 2B
ﬁﬁ?iZﬁémgﬂ$

CHASERBRES
E&%mmﬂ FETIR
EEAMNEEHHEF M
ZFEFEMmMGEE D
WEREBEE T —XRF=
A=+—Bit+HBEAZ
R EEHIT o

(d) RERE

AEBEmMBAIHEEERES
ELXZREZFREK (FKE
18) °

REERAIHEHEREREF 2K
BN EBEFR G B
HERGSEF CRECEEHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Equity price risk (continued)

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% in the relevant stock price with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's other comprehensive
income by RMB29,529,000 (31 March 2016:
RMB28,509,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that none
of the Group's available-for-sale equity securitiess
would be considered impaired as a result of the
decrease in the relevant stock price, and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

28 MIEEAREERAAE (&)

(e) AREFE (&)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured () BARBHEZEHEE
at fair value (continued) REEFE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARBEER (&)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.

FE_REE-EAS
— & ARE (AR
BEERE — R 2 A ER
Z@ABE) BIX K

Unobservable inputs are inputs for which FRERTAE R
market data are not available. ABEBEFEZARN

B NI B R AR
R ET IS BIRRER
TZBABE-

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e F=ZRFHEE:FHE

using significant unobservable inputs. AT A B R AR
STEZARE-

Fair value

measurements as

at 31 March 2016

Fair value Fair value ~ categorised into
at31 Fair value measurements as at 31 3 RIE-nE
March  March 2017 categorised into December  =A=T—F
016 R=E-tEZR=1+-B2EBN 014 HEBHTER
RIE-tE TEfzRiERE N-E-mE _ 7QREHE
=A=1-H Level 1 levl2 T-f=t-A Level 1
LARE £-1 it LA -4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AREFT  AREFr  ARETT  AREFx
Recurring fair value measurements %% A AEHE
Assets: BE:
Avallable-forsale financial assets AR ESRAE
- Listed (see Note 18() -t (EHE8)) 347,400 347,400 - 335,400 335,400
- Unlsted see Note 18(i) ~k LT (B8 20212 - 20,212 - -
[ ] L] [ ]
O STEEEERERAT

S
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )
28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 Bi#EMEER A ALHE (£)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AAEE(£&)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured () BARBHEZZHEE
at fair value (continued) REME(E&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARNBEER (&)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in E_RAREFEFEHAB
Level 2 fair value measurements i {8 5 110 12 0 A 2035
The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale FoMIELEMAHLES
financial assets in Level 2 is determined BEEMNRAETFERZ
by using the quoted price of the collective EeRMEEMBONEREK
investment scheme, where these financial BT EMRE - HBRESL
assets belong to, and deducting the portion EREMNARBETS
of fair value of senior trust units, which is (REEE DR E L FI=X
calculated by reference to the contractual rate HE)EE-
of fixed returns.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) EHFBEAALEIIRZEH
carried at other than fair value EEREEBEHNAALE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

29 COMMITMENTS 29 E¥E
(a) EAREE

(a) Capital commitments

At 31 March 2017, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the

RZE—tF=ZA=+—H 'K
SERERAMBHRETEEL

consolidated financial statements were as follows: R BEREFEDAT
At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
R=B—tF RIT—RF
=A=+—-HB =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARETIT
Commitments in respect of purchase of BEWE  FHE MRENUKIEE
property, plant and equipment and N7 R
investment properties
~ Contracted for —B5H 802,452 926,670

At 31 March 2017, capital commitments in respect
of purchase of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties are for leasehold
improvements to be installed in the Group's
department store and supermarket operations and

W-E—tE=A=+-H %
BBENE BERREARR
By EAFRTREHAE
2 E S S RERTEREE

RHERERBBYMRZHT

the remaining payments for the acquisitions of NRBEA-
properties.
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE

At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

R-ZE—+E=A=+—H 1

BRI &S

HEEBRE

M2 &EREMNTERET

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016

R-ZE—tF RZIZE—RF

=A=+—H =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMFTT AREFT

Within 1 year —FR 55,248 79,977
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBERFER 194,815 309,297
After 5 years HF& 213,422 335,743
463,485 725,017

R SEHEERER AR

S
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BF 15 8ok WY &
For the year ended 31 March 2017 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

—tF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

29 AIE(E)
(b) REHERE (&)
AEERBECLTEERESTY

29 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)

The Group leases properties for the use by its

department store and supermarket operations, and
office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 20 years,
where all terms are renegotiated upon renewal.
One of the leases includes contingent rentals which
are calculated based on a fixed percentage on the
department store’s revenue.

EHEEAERSARBRATSES

N A ER o

ZEHE—ROFL

REP-E—+%F MAAGRA
REMREN®E HP—1BAHE

E @?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ“ﬁ

S 735 W ek < Bl E

DHEFEZHAEE -

(c) Properties leased out under operating leases () BELEHEHEZYE

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s total future R-ZZE—+F=A=+—H" '«

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SERBEIARECCEHER

operating leases are receivable as follows: Hig W 2 &IKHEEFRIEEFE LN

T

At 31 March At 31 March

2017 2016

=R=t+—H _H_+ A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AREFT

Within 1 year —FR 33,072 36,249

After 1 year but within 5 years —FREREFR 58,723 87,374

After 5 years hFE 23,372 45,273

115,167 168,896

The Group leases out its shopping mall and parts AEEREBELEHENEERE

of its department stores under operating leases. MELRBEES 2D EY

The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to [@ o ZEF ff—ﬁx%ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬂ ES

15 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon THE - ETA GRER AR E

renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent BHEE - %?Tﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁ@%fﬂ

rentals which are calculated based on a fixed Pligs 2 BB D st E 2R
percentage on the tenants’ revenue. A&

L] L] L]
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 HAREE

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has RBEHR AEEDEHNUATE

issued the following guarantees: =R

(@) A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in () REBEER—BBIEF=TR
respect of an interest bearing bank loan drawn by —EERFRERRZFERITE
an independent third party in 2005. The loan will MR 2 BR - ZEERHERN
mature in July 2018. In September 2010, Ginwa ZE-NFLAEH -R=T—
Investments Holding Group Limited (“Ginwa TFENLA RIEREEREERSR
Investments”) provided a counter-guarantee RARI([RERE]) BERMESTE
to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on any losses BRI -TARER ARER
incurred arising from the above guarantee. As of FtERATEA ZEMEBEK
31 March 2017, the outstanding loan balance is 2T —+HF=A=+—8"
RMB68,200,000 (31 March 2016: RMB75,719,000). MABEZ ERBRBERARE

68,200,000 JT( —ZF —/NF =
A=+—8: AR¥75,719,000

JT) e
(b) A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in ) SEEERSERENR_ZTZTH
respect of a payable for acquisition of a property FNRAWE—IBME 2 B FUE
by Ginwa Investments in August 2005. Ginwa itz #BR - @IERELWRE
Investments has defaulted repayment of the above ELMENRIE BE_T—+F
payable. As of 31 March 2017, the outstanding =RA=1—H8 "REEZEMNK
balance of the payable is RMB9,500,000 (31 March THER %R A A R #9,500,0007T (=
2016: RMB9,500,000). Z—RE=ZA=+—H: AR¥

9,500,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(@)

A guarantee provided by the Group in respect of
an entrusted loan drawn by Huade Investment in
February 2015, where the guarantee is in addition
to the payments made by the Group for its intended
acquisition of commercial properties as mentioned
in Note 17. The loan will mature in July 2019.
Land and buildings held by one of the Group’s
subsidiaries with book value of RMB1,096,616,000
at 31 March 2017 were pledged for the above
entrusted loan in the amount of RMB 600,000,000.
In February 2015 and July 2016, the Group has
obtained counter-guarantees from (i) the project
company developing the above commercial
properties; and (ii) the intermediate holding
company of Huade Investment on the pledge of
its 70% equity interests in the immediate holding
company of Huade Investment.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it is probable that a claim
will be made against the Group under any of the above
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group at the
end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued
is the outstanding amount of the bank loans and liability
of RMB677,700,000 plus accrued interest.

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
{Annual Report 2016/17
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(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

30 HAEE (&)

(c)

R

AJ

AEBREERER_ZT—H
FZARBZEZEXERIRHEIE
R ZER TR R 1767 2
AEBRWBBEEME 2K
INZER-ZEEFTBR_Z
—NFLtARHB-AAEE—
MBARBEER-ZZE—+tF
—A=Z+—BHMEEmFEFEAA
K #1,096,616,0007T &) £ b
MEFHHR LB AAREK
600,000,000t By & 5t & K i
H R ZEBE—REFE_AR_-Z
—tF+tA rEEEHOER
Ll EmEZIEE A A &)
EERE CHEERARRE
ERECZCHEEBEZERARZI0%
IRBEE L AEUE REMR

FHRR RARBEEFRB/BE AR
BEERBMM LAERME A KE

RORE - AEERHERARZEH
HERB N Z&SRBERFHRERZ

R1T

ER KA EAR®E677,700,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZE—ZF—+F=HA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBEAERS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in MRz SR HEME DT E 24
these financial statements, the Group entered into the ERIN REBTRETATEREEA
following material related party transactions. TR
(a) Transactions with equity shareholders () EXRATRERBEEHEAL
and their affiliates, and a director of the UR—BEFETZRS
Company
Fifteen months
Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-Z—+tHF BHE_ZT— %
=A=t-8 =A=t+-A
IEEE E+HEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBEFTT AR T

Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BELH&E

equipment 1,041 =
Rental and management and HeWAREER

administrative service fee income THRBEERA 6,600 9,162
Operating lease expenses REHERY 46 267
Net decrease in advances granted to B TEEAT 2B IR FE

related parties (see Note (i) (B HEEa)) 703 6,356

Guarantees provided by a director of ~ RBEFER HAALQE —£E
the Company for the Group’s bank EAREBZRTETREZ

loans at the end of the reporting ER
year/period 560,000 600,000
Further details on the guarantees the Group BEANEEAEE A TIREER
provided for related parties are set out in Note 30. ZHE— SRR EEH M EE30 o
Note: Hfat -
(i)  The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing () ZBRAEIKW pERIE
and have no fixed terms of repayment. EEEhE o

O STEEEERERAT £
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBEAERS (#)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) TEEEAESHMH
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEBABZHM (BENT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors STEBEE N TARRIEE ZK
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid BERMFFEEDN TE T &
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: SEFMEBR ZFE)MT

Fifteen months

Year ended ended
31 March 31 March
2017 2016

BE-Z—tHF HE_ZT—F
=A=t-B =A=+-AH
EEE ETREA
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 - 85 & & 1 E )42 7 23,669 27,415
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 317 405
Share-based payments IR 17 15 5K 460 3,249
24,446 31,069

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see HFMaETFTATE IRA] R
Note 6(b)). (R KIzE6(b)) -

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to () LTRAFMERBEERZ 2B
connected transactions A%
Certain of the related party transactions disclosed in FM @M EE S T
Note 31(a) above constitute connected transactions BALTRSEK ETRAIE14A
or continuing connected transactions as defined in BEMREZAER S FHERE
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures XG5 EMBAEMAZERTEZ
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules BEREIENRESTSREC [FAE
are provided in the section headed “Connected RS ] —fio

Transactions” of the Director’s report.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

32 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

32 1 EEEYBHMR K

At 31 March At 31 March
2017 2016
RZBE—tF R-ZT—RF
=A=t+—-B =RA=+—8
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 4,774 7,842
Interests in subsidiaries N GIENGIPA £ 2,552,552 2,406,413
2,557,326 2,414,255
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b ok 32,970 32,184
Cash at bank and on hand WITHEGERFEES 131 185
33,101 32,369
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H A FE T 3K 220,817 214,074
220,817 214,074
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (187,716) (181,705)
NET ASSETS EEFHE 2,369,610 2,232,550
CAPITAL AND RESERVES (&N 27
Share capital A% 7K 198,480 198,480
Reserves B 2,171,130 2,034,070
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,369,610 2,232,550

REFER_ZT—LtH XA
—TABRHERRERE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 June 2017.

Kam Hou Yin, John Sha Yingjie
S£8 DER
Director Director
EE ZF
L ] L ] L]
HESHEEEERERAT

S
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B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIEFE
(BRIF=EEH  BRIAAREZS)

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING 33 EERBAERAA
COMPANY
The directors of the Company consider the immediate RAREZRAR RARAFARZE—t
and ultimate holding company of the Company at 31 FZA=T—HZEERSKERR
March 2017 to be Maritime Century Limited and Ginwa 719 Bl &Maritime Century Limited &
Investments, respectively. Neither of these companies SHERE ZREFLAVEEHAIHEAD
produces financial statements available for public use. RERA 2 BEmE-

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS 34 EEMERARBE=ZT—t

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new standards and
amendments to standards which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

FZA=+t—BHLEFEERZ
HRIEARREBZEESE

BENNEZEWHEHRRAH FES
A ABERMEHARNARBE-F
—tF=A=t—BIFELEHEH
R % EF ISR R RF AT R &
ZHZERT @B N g ARE
EIRE e

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BAT A2

ERRNETBEER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
BREENETS (BER) (A2 B KExtd —E—t+5-f-H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses 1 January 2017
BRGENE 2% (BATK) [fi50 BASHE BRI ELHERE] “E—+F-f-H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BAMBREENES [2HTA] —E2-\§-H-H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
EBNBREENE 1% [KEEFENZUA] “2-\f-A-H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement of share-based payment sanctions 1 January 2018
BRMBRSENRLS (BAIR) [RONF:ROX G2 7B RitE] —E-\¥-A-H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BERBREENE16% [HE/ “E-NF-HA-H

““Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further
impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken
into consideration when determining whether to adopt
these new requirements before their effective date and
which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, calculation of impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other
hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive
changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts
of the new requirements on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

34.

(BIHFZEHER BRIAAREZS)

CHEAEEAREE-F—+
F=ZA=1t—-HLEFELEN
ZHAEARRBZEER
JE-P)

AN B EAE STl S5 T A RATE R
RERERARBERERNTE- L
SARIE AEEEERIEAN LS
FEAREHERAMBRREREX
V- BEHYENE—SHEH RN
T A A SR R SR AR ST A - A A
ERERE—SVE WKEEER
BREHRABANRAZENERR
(EETER £ P ST %) SRR — T8
BERESEREME—SHE-

ERAUBREENFRSMIA ]
BEAMBHRELEAFIRFEMRE
BEERFEIR [T A R
P2 BETEHEEM T ASTERE
B IR B A2 2E - B/ B B 75 R 45 £ BI 59
RHReMEENSEATERERME
ERENERE RS IELFAR
FeR—FE BEVERELELSE
IR ER T AMERRKLILER

CRABNSEMAT B ELSE
39RMIRE BEWEHEEHEKXRE
o MBATEHASBMBHRERNTER

FEWMT :

HESTEMERRERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) ERMKHREEAFSR ST A |
(&)

(a) Classification and measurement (a) ZERFE
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HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") as follows:

The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised
in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The
only exception is if the equity security is not
held for trading and the entity irrevocably
elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI
then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains,
losses and impairments on that security will
be recognised in other comprehensive income
without recycling.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
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MARCH 2017 (continued) & (%)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) ERMKREEAFSR ST A |
(&)

(a) Classification and measurement (continued) (a) 7ERE (&)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’'s financial assets
currently classified as “available-for-sale”, these
are investments in equity securities which the
Group may classify as either FVTPL or irrevocably
elect to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling)
on transition of HKFRS 9. The Group has not yet
decided whether it will irrevocably designate these
investments as FVTOCI or classify them as FVTPL.
Either classification would give rise to a change
in accounting policy as the current accounting
policy for available-for-sale equity investments is to
recognise fair value changes in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss in accordance
with the Group’s policies set out in Notes 2(f) and
2(l). This change in policy will have no impact on the
Group’s net assets and total comprehensive income
but will impact on reported performance amounts
such as profit and earnings per share.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9
requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes
of that financial liability’s own credit risk to be
recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently
does not have any financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement may
not have any impact on the Group on adoption of
HKFRS 9.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
"expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure expected credit losses as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances. This new impairment
model may result in an earlier recognition of credit
losses on the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—=—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is
currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15
on its financial statements. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified the following areas
which are likely to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in Note 2(v). Currently, revenue from
the sale of goods and provision of services is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers and when
the services have been rendered, respectively.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS 34. EEMEEAREBE=-F—t
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT F=Z=A=T—HLEEER
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ZHAIERRZEZBES
MARCH 2017 (continued) & (&)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with ERMBREENEISKREFE
customers (continued) EatizWAl (&)
(a) Timing of revenue recognition (continued) (a) WARERLERE (&)

()  When the customer simultaneously receives () BEBEYE BFERE
and consumes the benefits provided by the BEREBEERBAMRE
entity’s performance, as the entity performs; GoREE

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or (il BEEBHNEBEANAREIHER
enhances an asset (for example work in —EREPERETIERN
progress) that the customer controls as the BE (WWEREIR)

asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create (i) BEERBHNEBEATEIZYER
an asset with an alternative use to the entity HAFEEHMBERAR
and the entity has an enforceable right to WEE NRERAE
payment for performance completed to date. ST BEAEEN

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do WMERNBERREREEL B

not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under REZEF=-BELNEM—T& 8l

HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale RIBEREM B ®REERF1558

of that good or service at a single point in time, RE ZERMEEE MRS

being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and e ERE R (BN HlEE E®%
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators Ry ) BE SR UL A - BT B #E B9 & B %

that will be considered in determining when the [B] ¥R &) B A% (£ R 75 5E ] PF 35 AR 9

transfer of control occurs. HEEBRREEERNERZ

(b) Significant financing component (b) EXGER S

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the BBV ERELERIE1SHRRTE

transaction price for the time value of money ERANHBEARMENSF B

when a contract contains a significant financing REREENRREEARRS

component, regardless of whether the payments B (MTEREEEANIRAIK
from customers are received significantly in advance RSN BRI AK
or in arrears. Currently, the Group would only EEENREREERFERZ

apply such a policy when payments are significantly BR - MazER B R EASEE R

deferred, which is currently not common in the BEPNTHHRITER - RATR

Group's arrangements with its customers. Advance REAEEEE SO HEF I

payments are also not common in the Group's TER Bt N5 B 78 B ER 4

arrangement with its customers. Therefore, the BERAMBHREENE1SKTE

Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will HAEERRBRAN G N EKE

not materially affect how the Group recognises A&

- revenue.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS 34. CHEAMEBEEARREBEZE=ZS—t

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(c) Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the products, the Group estimates the level of
returns and makes an adjustment against revenue
and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement
to recognise separately a return asset for the
products expected to be returned will impact the
presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group currently adjusts
the carrying amounts of inventory for the expected
returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(k), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into leases as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of
the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

FZA=+t-BLEFEEN
g%ﬂﬁ%&%%t%&%
= (#&)

BERAUMKREEAEISHKKRER

EE&H2ZWA]l (#&)

() MEEEEBNHEE
BAT EEFHAFEER K
SBEHFHR EKFIETH A K&
HEXANEL AR

AEEFEY RABEMBRS
EREISHE T EHEFPERE
FRE By 7 5= [ i SR MR B B B AR
M REEBERFE AWM 5
EHROIMEmEBRERRLE
RV HUE A AR A B IR R
MEREETE RERAEE
BRI BEHIR S REFEMNER®E
B MTIERREBEE -

ERVBHEERE 165 [HE ]
A RE2 (K FTHR EE - AR EIR A A AR AT
DRBEHERKEEHEE YRFHE
ENEBHEEREDRIAR AEH
TER A ART LAY

ERBHHHRELEDF165REMIEL -
AERAKTEROBMEHEREEM
E-BMMARzZOZE REERNER
ZEt AR A BB RORERE
BEHOSFREEARNTAARK:
BN EAR I B H A ABRKE
AREENKHBRERDBNFERE
BE YHEREERNIERE]E
E-RZEENRBENSHERR &
HARREE BB RESRBER
BAHNBRXEEREEENE M
BB RN ERRE R GOERRBR
EREANELNHERX FAE
FREVIESS 2 5T ATHARE BN E A
HAFE 40 (BN B R 12ME A sl A ) &
EEEEERBZSRE £IIF
AN HeRX BEENHBARE
FOEER -

HESTEMERRERAT
-/ —tEFH

._"}"—..—‘ i




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=—F—+F=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES B8 BAIAAREZ )

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS 34. CHEAMEBEEARREBZE=ZZ—t

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
lease. As disclosed in Note 29(b), at 31 March 2017 the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to RMB463,485,000
for properties, the majority of which is payable between
1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than 5
years. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16
and the effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16
before its effective date of 1 January 2019. However,
early adoption of HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is
no earlier than the adoption of HKFRS 15. It is therefore
unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be adopted before the
effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1 January 2018.
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